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NATURE AND STAGE OF PROCEEDING

Petitioner GR US Licensing LP (“GRUS” or “Petitioner”) iitiated this action
on October 13, 2016 by filing a Verified Petition seeking the dissolution and winding
up of GR Burgr, LLC (“GRB” or the “Company”) pursuant to 6 Del. C. § 18-802
and the terms of the limited liability agreement governing GRB (the “LLC
Agreement”) (the “Dissolution Petition” or “Compl.”).

On November 23, 2016, Rowen Seibel (“Seibel” or “Respondent™), a 50%
member and manager of GRB, voluntarily appeared in this action and filed a
Verified Answer to the Dissolution Petition (the “Answer” or “Ans.”) and Verified
Counterclaims against GRUS (the “Counterclaims™ or “Countercl.”), asserting
various derivative claims purportedly on behalf of GRB. GRUS subsequently moved
for judgment on the pleadings with respect to its Dissolution Petition, and moved to
dismiss or, in the alternative, to sever or stay the Counterclaims.

Following a telephonic scheduling conference on January 3, 2017, the Court
determined upon GRUS’s application that it would consider and rule upon the
motion for judgment on the pleadings with respect to the propriety of dissolution
before considering the issues raised in the Counterclaims, and stayed discovery
pending resolution of that motion. The parties then submitted, and the Court entered,
a stipulated briefing schedule with respect to the motion for judgment on the

pleadings.
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This is GRUS’s opening brief in support of its motion for judgment on the
pleadings.

PRELIMINARY STATEMENT

The Dissolution Petition 1s ripe for judgment on the pleadings. The material
facts are undisputed and establish as a matter of law that dissolution is appropriate
and necessary in light of the unresolvable deadlock between GRB’s managers and
GRB’s 1nability to carry on its business following the felony conviction of Seibel
and his designation as an “Unsuitable Person.”

First, 1t 1s undisputed that the relationship between the members and managers
of GRB has deteriorated to the point of total deadlock that can only be resolved
through an order of judicial dissolution. The pleadings make clear that the LLC
Agreement requires unanimous approval of GRB’s two co-equal managers for
nearly all decisions and provides no means of resolving a voting deadlock between
the managers. With the members and managers of GRB engaged in contentious
litigation across various jurisdictions for several years, it 1s undisputed that the GRB
managers have reached an impasse. As a result, judicial dissolution 1s appropriate
and necessary under the circumstances as a matter of law.

Second, it 1s undisputed that GRB has no current business to operate. GRB’s
only business and sole income generating asset 1s a license agreement with an

affiliate of Caesars Entertainment Corporation (“Caesars”), which has been
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terminated because of Seibel’s felony conviction and his designation by Caesars as

2

an “Unsuitable Person.” Nor does GRB have any fufure business prospects. As
noted above, the LLC Agreement provides that all decisions concerning GRB’s
business must be made based on a majority vote of the managers — essentially
requiring unanimity among the managers for all decisions. Mr. Ramsay’s other
current and anticipated future business dealings with regulated entities would be
jeopardized (to say the least) by being associated directly or indirectly with any
Unsuitable Person, including Seibel. As Seibel admits in his Answer and
Counterclaims, the members and managers of GRB are deadlocked concerning Mr,
Seibel’s disassociation from GRB. Seibel may quibble with his designation as an
“Unsuitable Person,” and even disagree with GRUS that a continued relationship
between him and Mr. Ramsay places Mr. Ramsay’s other business ventures at risk,
but such disagreements are immaterial. What matters is the undisputed fact that Mr.
Ramsay has no desire, and cannot be compelled, to carry on any further business
with Seibel. There 1s thus no chance that the managers of the Company will agree
to renew operations. Therefore, with no current business or future business for the

Company to run, it 1s clear that dissolution is appropriate under the circumstances

and must be ordered as a matter of law.
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STATEMENT OF FACTS'

A. The Ownership And Governance Of The Company.

GRB 1s a Delaware limited liability company (“LLC”), formed in December
2012 by celebrity chef Gordon Ramsay (through petitioner GRUS) and respondent
Seibel. (Ans. § 35; Countercl. 4§ 20-21.) GRUS and Seibel each own a 50% member
interest in GRB, and each 1s entitled to designate one manager of the Company.
(Compl. Ex. 1 at § 8.2; Ans. 95 & 6; Countercl. § 21.) GRUS appointed non-party
Stuart Gillies as its designated manager and Seibel designated himself as a manager.
(Ans. g 6; Countercl. 9 21.)

Under the LLC Agreement, the managers have the “full and exclusive” power
and authority to manage the business and affairs of the Company, and all decisions
of the managers (other than those relating to the License Agreement, discussed
below) must be based on a majority vote of the managers. (Compl. Ex. 1 at § 8.1.)
With two managers, this provision requires unanimity among the managers; in the

event that the two managers are deadlocked on a particular decision, the LLC

! The facts on which GRUS relies for this motion are (i) admitted by Seibel in his
Answer; (i1) taken from the Counterclaims filed by Seibel; (i11) part of the public
record and therefore subject to judicial notice; or (i) taken from documents
appended to, referenced in, or integral to the pleadings. See McMillan v. Intercargo
Corp., 768 A.2d 492, 500 (Del. Ch. 2000); accord In re Gen. Motors (Hughes)
S’holder Litig., 897 A.2d 162, 169 (Del. 2006) (addressing motion to dismiss under
Rule 12(b)(6)).
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Agreement provides no mechanism by which to break the voting deadlock. (See
generally id.)

The LLC Agreement further provides that the Company shall be dissolved
upon (a) the Company’s cessation of its business on a permanent basis, (b) the sale
or transfer of all or substantially all of the assets of the Company, (c) the entry of a
judicial decree of dissolution in accordance with 6 Del. C. § 18-802, or (d) as
otherwise determined by the managers. (Compl. Ex. 1 at § 13.1; Ans. § 27;
Countercl. 9 23.)

B. The Company’s Business.

GRB was formed to develop, or license the rights to develop, first-class,
burger-themed restaurants utilizing Mr. Ramsay’s name and celebrity cachet.
(Compl. Ex. 1 at Recitals & § 4; Ans. § 5; Countercl. 99 19-22.) To this end, as
contemplated by the LLC Agreement, contemporaneous with the execution of the
LLC Agreement, GRUS and GRB executed an agreement (the “License
Agreement”) through which GRUS granted GRB an exclusive license to use and/or
sublicense the “BURGR Gordon Ramsay” trademark in the operation of its business.
(Compl. Ex. 1 at Recitals; Countercl. § 26; see also Ex. 1 to the Transmittal Affidavit
of Jacqueline A. Rogers (“Transmittal Affidavit” or “Trans. Aff.”), filed

simultaneously herewith.)
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In connection with the formation of GRB and execution of the License
Agreement, GRB entered into a Development, Operation and License Agreement
(the “Caesars Agreement”) with an affiliate of Caesars. (See generally Compl. Ex.
2; Countercl. § 33.) Under the Caesars Agreement, GRB agreed to sublicense the
name “BURGR Gordon Ramsay” and license certain recipes, menus and other trade
property to Caesars for use in a burger-themed restaurant named “BURGR Gordon
Ramsay” in the Planet Hollywood Resort & Casino in Las Vegas, Nevada. (Compl.
Ex. 2 at Recitals & § 6; Countercl. 9 33-34.) In exchange for this sub-license,
Caesars agreed to pay GRB a fee based on the amounts and percentages of gross
restaurant and merchandise sales. (Compl. Ex. 2 at § 8; Countercl. 4 35.)

Since its inception, GRB’s only business, and it sole income generating asset,
has been through the Caesars Agreement and the operation of the BURGR Gordon
Ramsay restaurant in the Planet Hollywood casino. (Ans. Y7, 25.)

C. The Relevant Gaming Commission Regulations And Their Impact On
The Caesars Agreement.

As a public gaming company, Caesars is a highly regulated business, subject
to and existing because of privileged licenses, including those 1ssued by the Nevada
Gaming Commuission (the “Commission”). (Compl. Ex. 2 at§ 11.2.) As a condition
of licensing and registration by the Commission, Caesars 1s required to have a
compliance review and reporting system (a “Compliance Program™). (Id.; see also

NEV. GAMING COMM’N REG. 5.045(1).) Among the subjects that a Compliance
6
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Program must monitor and routinely report to the Commission are “[a]ssociations
with persons . . . who may be deemed to be unsuitable to be associated with a licensee
or registrant.” (NEV. GAMING COMM’N REG. 5.045(6)(a).) Failure to take action to
climinate an unsuitable association and make timely reports of the action to the
Commission can result in fines, or the suspension, limitation or revocation of
licenses and registrations. See NEV. REV. STAT. §§ 463.225, .310 & .360.

Given this regulatory framework, the Caesars Agreement was expressly
conditioned on Caesars being satisfied that GRB, its members and managers
(including Seibel), and their respective affiliates are not at any time “Unsuitable
Persons.” (Compl. Ex. 2 at § 2.2.; Countercl. 9 36.) An “Unsuitable Person,” as
defined in the Caesars Agreement, 1s a person “whose affiliation with [Caesars] or
its [a]ffiliates could be anticipated to result in a disciplinary action relating to, or the
loss of, 1nability to reinstate or failure to obtain” gaming and alcohol licenses held
by Caesars. (Compl. Ex. 2 at § 1.) The Caesars Agreement granted Caesars the sole
and exclusive judgment to determine whether any person associated with GRB, its
members and managers, or its affiliates 1s an Unsuitable Person. (/d. at § 11.2;
Countercl. 9 36.) Upon such a determination of unsuitability of any person
associated with GRB, Caesars had the right to terminate the Caesars Agreement
upon written notice and a subsequent failure by GRB to cease its relationship with

such person to Caesars’ satisfaction. (Compl. Ex. 2 at § 11.2; Countercl. §36.) The
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Caesars Agreement provides Caesars with complete discretion as to such a
termination, providing that “[a]ny termination by [Caesars]| pursuant to this Section
11.2 shall not be subject to dispute by Gordon Ramsay or GRB.” (Compl. Ex. 2 at
§ 11.2.)

In the event of an early termination of the Caesars Agreement, to avoid an
immediate closing of the BURGR Gordon Ramsay restaurant, Caesars is entitled to
“operate the Restaurant and use the License for one hundred twenty (120) days from
such termination to orderly and properly wind-up operations of the Restaurant.” (/d.
at § 4.3.2(a).)

D. The Deteriorating Relationship Between Mr. Ramsay And Seibel And
The Resulting Deadlock At GRB.

The BURGR Gordon Ramsay restaurant has been a success despite the
increasingly dysfunctional and acrimonious relationship between Mr. Ramsay and
Seibel. As Seibel enthusiastically describes in his affirmative pleading, Mr. Ramsay
and Seibel have been engaged in contentious litigation since 2014 in the Supreme
Court of the State of New York relating to a separate restaurant joint venture in Los
Angeles called Fat Cow (the “New York Action”). (See Countercl. 49 37-42.) That

litigation involves mutual allegations by Siebel and Mr. Ramsay of breaches of
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contract and fiduciary duty, as well as a claim by Mr. Ramsay that Seibel committed
fraud.’

In this action, in response to Mr. Ramsay’s request to dissolve GRB, Seibel
filed a one hundred and three paragraph counterclaim alleging an outlandish
conspiracy theory pursuant to which Mr. Ramsay and Caesars have conspired to
render Siebel unsuitable for purposes of the relevant agreements and asserting
breach of contract and fiduciary duty claims against GRUS purportedly on behalf of
GRB. And just last week, in a transparent effort to end-run this Court’s recent
scheduling ruling, Seibel initiated yet another lawsuit against Mr. Ramsay (along
with Caesars) in the United States District Court for the District of Nevada (the
“Nevada Action”). The Nevada Action names Mr. Ramsay personally as a
defendant and asserts essentially the same claims and allegations as Seibel’s
counterclaims in this case, the resolution of which this Court had ruled should await
decision on the Dissolution Petition.

Seibel thus admits, as he must, that the parties’ relationship is severely
damaged and has undermined their ability to work together in GRB. (Countercl. q
43.) As such, beginning in late 2013, the managers have rarely met or discussed

business issues with each other. (/d. 9 46-47; Compl. 9§ 26 (*“the Managers of GRB

> The operative pleadings in the New York Action are attached as Exhibits 2-6 to the
Transmittal Affidavit.

9
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do not meet and do not speak”). Because the LLC Agreement requires the
unanimous agreement of the two managers for all decisions other than those related
to the License Agreement, this has resulted in a complete stalemate as to all decisions
on behalf of GRB, with no means of breaking the deadlock.

E. Seibel’s Criminal Activities LLead To The Termination Of The Caesars
Agreement And The License Agreement.

On April 18, 2016, Seibel pled guilty to a one-count felony criminal
information charging him with impeding the administration of the Internal Revenue
Code (26 U.S.C. § 7212) by using undeclared Swiss bank accounts and a
Panamanian shell company to hide more than $1 million in taxable income. (See Ex.
7 to Trans. Aff.; Ans. 9§ 10.) On August 19, 2016, Judge William H. Pauley, III of
the United States District Court for the Southern District of New York sentenced
Seibel to one month of imprisonment, six months of home detention, and 300 hours
of community service, and ordered restitution. (Ex. 7 to Trans. Aff. at 22:8-21; Ans.
M10.) Judge Pauley described Seibel’s actions as “a serious crime against the United
States” and found that “the fact 1s that [Seibel] knew very well what [he was] doing
was wrong.” (Ex. 7 to Trans. Aff. at 15:15, 21:25-22:1.) Judge Pauley further stated,
“[w]hatever the motivation for getting involved in this scheme and, more
importantly, for continuing in the scheme for as long as he did . . . the fact 1s that 1t
continued for many years, and he made a whole series of corrupt and misguided

decisions to perpetuate it.” (/d. at 21:10-15.)
10
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This event struck at the heart of GRB’s ability to continue the business
operations that it was formed to pursue. Following Seibel’s felony conviction,
Caesars sent notice to GRB, Seibel’s attorney, and Mr. Ramsay on September 2,
2016, stating that, in Caesars’ judgment, which judgment 1s deemed to be
contractually conclusive, the conviction rendered Seibel an Unsuitable Person under
the Caesars Agreement. (Compl. Ex. 3; Countercl. Ex. 4 (Seibel’s attorney
acknowledging receipt of Caesars’ Sept. 2 notice).) Caesars demanded that GRB
cease any relationship with Seibel within ten days, warning that if GRB failed to
terminate the relationship to Caesars’ satisfaction, Caesars would be required to
terminate the Caesars Agreement pursuant to Section 4.2.5 thereof. (Compl. Ex. 3.)
On September 6, 2016, GRUS requested that Seibel terminate his relationship with
GRB and that he sign all necessary documents confirming such termination. (/d. at
Ex. 5.)

In response to Caesars’ September 2 notice, Seibel proposed to disassociate
himself from GRB by transferring his interest in GRB to a family trust. (Countercl.
Ex. 4.) By letter dated September 12, 2016, Caesars rejected this proposal because,
in Caesars’ judgment, the proposed assignees would have direct and/or indirect
relationships with Seibel thereby rendering them Unsuitable Persons under the
Caesars Agreement. (/d.; Compl. Ex. 9.) GRUS thereupon reiterated its demand that

Seibel completely disassociate from GRB. (Compl. Ex. 7.)

11
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Siebel demurred. On September 21, 2016, Caesars termimated the Caesars
Agreement pursuant to Sections 4.2.5 and 11.2 thereof. (/d. at Ex. 10; Countercl. q
51.) On September 22, 2016, GRUS sent notice to GRB that it was terminating the
License Agreement because the termination of the Caesars Agreement defeated the
purpose of the License Agreement, and because Seibel had failed to disclose and/or
made misrepresentations concerning his criminal activities. (Countercl. Ex. 5.)

ARGUMENT

Judgment on the pleadings under Court of Chancery Rule 12(¢) is appropriate
“if the pleadings fail to reveal the existence of any disputed material fact and the
movant 1s entitled to judgment as a matter of law.” W. Coast Mgmt. & Capital, LLC
v. Carrier Access Corp., 914 A.2d 636, 641 (Del. Ch. 2006); see also Del. Ch. Ct.
R. 12(c). When considering a motion under Rule 12(c), the Court draws inferences
in favor of the non-moving party, but only if they are “reasonable.” W. Coast Mgmt.
& Capital, LLC,914 A.2d at 641.

The application for dissolution in this case i1s ripe for judgment on the
pleadings. For the reasons set forth below, the material facts are undisputed and
establish as a matter of law that dissolution 1s appropriate and necessary in light of

GRB’s 1nability to carry on its business.

12
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L. JUDICIAL DISSOLUTION IS APPROPRIATE BECAUSE IT IS
NOT “REASONABLY PRACTICABLE TO CARRY ON THE
BUSINESS” OF GRB.

Section 13.1 of the LLC Agreement provides that GRB may be dissolved
pursuant to a judicial decree of dissolution under 6 Del. C. § 18-802 (the “Act”).
(See Compl. Ex. 1 at § 13.1(c).) The Act provides that on application by a member

3 “the Court of Chancery may decree dissolution of a limited liability

Or manager,
company whenever it 1s not reasonably practicable to carry on the business in
conformity with a limited liability company agreement.” 6 Del. C. § 18-802. “The
standard set forth by the Legislature is one of reasonable practicability, not
impossibility.” PC Tower Ctr., Inc. v. Tower Ctr. Dev. Assocs. Ltd. P’ship, 1989
WL 63901, at *6 (Del. Ch.); see also In re Silver Leaf, L.L.C., 2005 WL 2045641,
at *10 (Del. Ch.). There 1s thus no need to show that the purpose of the entity has
been “completely frustrated,” and there 1s no need for the Court to entertain “what
ifs,” such as hypothetical future changes to the structure of the company that may
resolve its current problems. PC Tower Ctr., Inc., 1989 WL 63901, at *5. Instead,
it 1s sufficient to establish that it is not “reasonably practicable” to carry on the

company’s business based entirely upon the real-world circumstances facing the

company. /Id.

3 Seibel does not dispute that GRUS is a member of the Company, and therefore is
entitled to seek dissolution of GRB under the Act. Ans. q 5.

13
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While the Act does not declare with precision the factors the Court must
consider when evaluating whether it 1s “reasonably practicable” for a company to
continue, “several convincing factual circumstances have pervaded the case law”
and, when present, have consistently resulted in an order of judicial dissolution: “(1)
the members’ vote is deadlocked at the Board level; (2) the operating agreement
gives no means of navigating around the deadlock; and (3) due to the financial
condition of the company, there is effectively no business to operate.” Fisk
Ventures, LLC v. Segal, 2009 WL 73957, at *4 (Del. Ch.) (citing In re Silver Leaf,
L.L.C., 2005 WL 2045641, at *10-11; Haley v. Talcott, 864 A.2d 86, 95 (Del. Ch.
2004)), aff'd, 984 A.2d 124 (Del. 2009). It is not necessary for all of these factual
circumstances to exist for the Court to find that it 1s no longer reasonably practicable
for a business to continue to operate. See id. Nonetheless, the undisputed facts
reflected in the pleadings demonstrate that all three circumstances are present here.

A. The Managers Are Deadlocked And The Operating Agreement
Provides No Means Of Resolving The Impasse.

For purposes of determining whether judicial dissolution is warranted,
“Id]eadlock refers to the inability to make decisions and take action, such as when
an LLC agreement requires an unattainable voting threshold.” Meyer Natural Foods
LLC v. Duff, 2015 WL 3746283, at *3 (Del. Ch.) (citing Fisk Ventures, LLC, 2009

WL 73957, at *4-5; In re Silver Leaf, L.L.C., 2005 WL 2045641, at *10-11). The

existence of such a deadlock, even where the business of the company could

14
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otherwise reasonably continue, has been held sufficient grounds for judicial
dissolution of 50/50 LLCs such as GRB where there 1s no means of resolving the
deadlock under the LLC’s operating agreement. See Vila v. BVWebTies LLC, 2010
WL 3866098, at *6-7 (Del. Ch.) (noting that an unbreakable deadlock among 50/50
managers “provides an indisputable basis for dissolution” under the Act); Phillips v.
Hove, 2011 WL 4404034, at *26-27 (Del. Ch.) (ordering dissolution where two co-
equal managers were “deadlocked with no effective mechanism to break the
deadlock,” and noting that the fact that the LLC continued to operate marginally was
irrelevant to determining the existence of deadlock).

For example, in Haley v. Talcott, 864 A.2d 86 (Del. Ch. 2004), the Court
considered a claim by a member of an LLC requesting judicial dissolution of the
LLC because the two 50% members were deadlocked as to the future of the business.
The petitioner sought summary judgment on his dissolution petition, and the Court
held, as a matter of law, that dissolution was necessary because “an indisputable
deadlock between the two 50% members of the LLC...preclude[d] the LLC from
functioning as provided in the LLC Agreement.” /Id. at 89. In Haley, the sole asset
of the LLC was a parcel of real estate leased to a restaurant. Id. at 93. The two
managers, who were separately embroiled 1n contentious litigation related to their

other business ventures, could not agree on how best to utilize the real estate, and no

15
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provision existed in the LLC’s operating agreement to break the tie in the voting
interests, preventing the company from taking any actions. /d.
The Court analogized the circumstances in Haley to those relevant to 8 Del.

C. § 273, which enables the Court to dissolve joint venture corporations owned by
deadlocked 50% owners. Id. at 94 (*“§ 18-802 plays a role for LLCs similar to the
role that § 273 of the DGCL plays for joint venture corporations with only two
stockholders. When a limited liability agreement provides for the company to be
governed by its members, when there are only two members, and when those
members are at permanent odds, § 273 provides relevant insight into what should
happen.”). The Court’s deadlock assessment in Haley therefore focused on whether
the co-equal members were “unable to agree upon whether to discontinue the
business or how to dispose of its assets.” Id. at 94-95. The Court found that, as here,
the undisputed facts—including the petitioner’s request for dissolution and the
respondent’s objection thereto—supported a finding that the parties were at an
impasse as to whether and how to continue the business. Id. at 95-96. The Court
also took note of the evident hostility of the parties, finding:

With strident disagreement between the parties regarding

the appropriate deployment of the asset of the LLC, and

open hostility as evidenced by the related suit in this

matter, it 1s not credible that the LLC could, if necessary,

take any important action that required a vote of the

members. Abundant, uncontradicted documents in the

record demonstrate the inability of the parties to function
together.

16
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Id. at 96. With these findings, the Court held that 1t was “not reasonably practicable
for the LLC to continue to carry on business in conformity with the LLC
Agreement,” and ordered judicial dissolution of the entity under the Act. Id. at 98.
To similar effect 1s the holding in Vila v. BVWebTies LLC, 2010 WL 3866098

(Del. Ch.), in which the Court ordered judicial dissolution of an LLC under the Act
when two managers whose agreement was contractually required for the LLC to
move forward with any action were deadlocked. The Court emphasized that “a
deadlock would not necessarily justify a dissolution if the LLC Agreement provided
a means to resolve it equitably,” but found that the LLC’s operating agreement did
not provide any such means and specifically contemplated that a manager could seek
judicial dissolution. /d. at *8. Once again likening the situation to the joint venture
corporation scenario under Section 273, the Court explained:

The reason that the § 273 analysis is useful in the LLC

context is obvious: when an LLC agreement requires that

there be agreement between two managers for business

decisions to be made, those two managers are deadlocked

over serious issues, and the LLC agreement provides no

alternative basis for resolving the deadlock, 1t i1s not

“reasonably practicable” to continue to carry on the LLC

business “in conformity with [its] limited liability
company agreement.”

Id. at *7 (quoting 6 Del C. § 18-802) (emphasis in original); see also Phillips, 2011
WL 4404034, at *26-27 (ordering dissolution under the Act where the LLC

agreement required approval of the board of directors for all decisions on which the

17
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members could not agree, and where the members had never agreed on the
composition of the board, resulting in a “deadlock[] with no effective mechanism to
break the deadlock™); In re Silver Leaf, L.L.C., 2005 WL 2045641, at *10-11
(dissolving an LLC under the Act in part because the “contending interests [were]
split 50:50,” “two years of litigation...[had] shown [that] the two sides [could not]
agree on how to run [the LL.C],” and “the Operating Agreement, which mandates an
agreement by the majority in interest in order to effectuate important actions for [the
LLC], provide[d] no mechanism to break the impasse between the parties”).

Such 1s the case here. The facts are undisputed that the organizational
structure of GRB lends itself to this type of deadlock between co-equal managers
whose unanimous agreement is required for the Company to act, and that the
managers of GRB have in fact reached such a deadlock. GRUS and Seibel are co-
equal members of GRB with the right to appoint one manager each. (Compl. Ex. 1
at §§ 7.2, 8.1; Ans. ¥ 5 & 6; Countercl. ] 21.) GRUS appointed Mr. Gillies as its
designated manager and Seibel designated himself as manager. (Compl. Ex. 1 at
§ 8.1; Ans. 9 6; Countercl. 9 21.) The LLC Agreement requires that all decisions of
the managers (other than those relating to the License Agreement) be made based on
a majority vote of the managers, essentially requiring unanimity among the

managers for nearly every decision. (Compl. Ex. 1 at §§ 8.1, 8.11.) There 1s no

18
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mechanism in the LLC Agreement to break a voting deadlock between the managers.
(See generally Compl. Ex. 1.)

Even before Seibel’s felonious actions came to light, the pleadings make clear
that the working relationship between GRB’s owners and appointed managers had
broken down and reached an impasse requiring judicial dissolution. While Seibel
attempts to deny or downplay the existence of an insuperable deadlock, such
attempts are not reasonable and his own affirmative pleadings amply demonstrate
the undeniable fact that such a deadlock exists. As Seibel describes at length 1n his
affirmative pleadings, he and Mr. Ramsay have been engaged in contentious
litigation in the context of their business relationship since 2014, in the Supreme
Court of the State of New York related to their other restaurant joint venture in Los
Angeles, Fat Cow. (See Countercl. 9 37-42.) Seibel concedes that the parties’
acrimonious relationship concerning “the Fat Cow restaurant litigation bled over into
Seibel’s and Ramsay’s other ventures, including the one at 1ssue here.” (/Id. 4 43.)
As such, “[s]tarting in late 2013...GRUS and Gillies...repeatedly refused to meet or
discuss relevant business issues with Seibel.” (/d. 99 46-47; Compl. 9 26 (“the
Managers of GRB do not meet and do not speak™).) More recently, the disputes
among the parties have only increased, perhaps evidenced most graphically by
Siebel’s shrill opposition to the petition for dissolution and his attempt to inject into

this proceeding counterclaims against GRUS alleging breach of contract and breach
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of fiduciary duty claims. Just last week, in an effort to press those claims despite
this Court’s decision to defer them pending consideration of the propriety of
dissolution as a matter of law, Seibel filed yet another lawsuit against Mr. Ramsay,
the Nevada Action, duplicating his counterclaims here and repeating many of the
same pejorative allegations on which they are based.

This 1s precisely the kind of rancorous stalemate between co-equal
members/managers, here undisputed and indisputable, that has led our Courts to
declare judicial dissolution warranted. See, e.g., Vila, 2010 WL 3866098, at *7
(noting that the members had not communicated directly with each other for nearly
two years and that “a deadlocked management board is a quintessential example of
a situation justifying a judicial dissolution”); Haley, 864 A.2d at 95-96 (ordering
dissolution and noting the parties had not interacted since their “falling out” the
previous year); McGovern v. Gen. Holding, Inc., 2006 WL 4782341, at *23 (Del.
Ch.) (ordering dissolution of a partnership under analogous provision of DRUPLA
and pointing to the “dysfunctional” and “fractious” relationship between the limited

partners).’

* See Fisk Ventures, LLC, 2009 WL 73957, at *3 (“In interpreting § 18-802, this
Court has by analogy often looked to the dissolution statute for limited partnerships,
6 Del. C. § 17-802.7).
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The pleadings also make clear that the degree of dysfunction between the
GRB managers has only escalated following Seibel’s felony conviction and Caesars’
subsequent classification of Seibel as an Unsuitable Person under the Caesars
Agreement. These events, sufficient alone to render the entity’s ability to continue
to operate its business essentially impossible, and which prompted Mr. Ramsay’s
and GRUS’s need to immediately and completely dissociate from Seibel or risk Mr.
Ramsay’s other business ventures, have culminated in an irremediable impasse.

Following Caesars’ classification of Seibel as an Unsuitable Person under the
Caesars Agreement, Caesars directed GRB to “terminate any relationship with Mr.
Seibel and provide Caesars with evidence of such terminated relationship.” (Compl.
Ex. 3 at 2.) GRUS promptly requested that Seibel terminate his relationship with
GRB and sign all necessary documents confirming such termination. (Ans. 4 17;
Compl. Ex. 5 at 1.) Seibel rejected that proposal. (Ans. § 18; Compl. Ex. 6.) For
his part, Seibel proposed to transfer his interests in GRB to a trust. (Ans. g 18;
Compl. Ex. 6.) GRUS rejected this proposal because it would not fully disassociate

Seibel from GRB, as confirmed by Caesars.” (Ans. q19; Compl. Exs. 7, 9 (Caesars’

> Seibel claims that Mr. Ramsay and GRUS breached their fiduciary obligations by
failing to “consider[] in good faith Seibel’s proposed assignment,” which he
described as a “straightforward solution to the problem.” Countercl. § 52. Putting
aside the factual and legal infirmities of this breach of fiduciary duty allegation, and
their patent insufficiency under the gaming regulations to which Caesars is subject,
the fact that the parties did not further negotiate a potential resolution to the present
dispute before GRUS filed its dissolution petition 1s merely further evidence of the
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attorney confirming: “On September 12, 2016, we advised Mr. Seibel’s attorney that
such purported assignments were not acceptable to [Caesars]...because the proposed
assignees have direct and/or indirect relationships with Mr. Seibel.”).) GRUS again
requested that Seibel terminate his association with GRB to no avail. (Compl. Ex.
7.)

As Mr. Ramsay and GRUS explained to Caesars: “GRUS and Mr. Ramsay do
not have the legal authority to unilaterally terminate Mr. Seibel’s interest and

b

membership in the Company,” and, failing to accomplish this task, Caesars
terminated the Caesars Agreement on September 21, 2016. (Compl. Ex. 8 at 2; id.
Ex. 10 at 2 (“Because GRB failed to disassociate with an Unsuitable Person, Caesars
hereby terminates the Agreement pursuant to Section 4.2.5 of the Agreement,
effective immediately.”).) Having no other options to resolve the impasse facing
GRB, GRUS filed its Dissolution Petition, which petition Seibel warmly opposes.
(See generally Compl.; Ans.)

As this Court has explained, the Act has the “obvious purpose of providing an

avenue of relief when an LLC cannot continue to function in accordance with its

chartering agreement.” Haley, 864 A.2d at 94. The undisputed facts demonstrate

mability of parties to agree. In all events, it is of no relevance to the Court’s deadlock
analysis, as there 1s no requirement that the parties to try to resolve the impasse
before seeking judicial dissolution under the Act. Haley, 864 A.2d at 95-96.
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that Mr. Ramsay and GRUS cannot be directly or indirectly associated with any
Unsuitable Person, including Seibel. Under the Commission’s regulations, Nevada
gaming and alcohol beverage licensees can face serious penalties for doing business
with unsuitable persons. See Nev. Rev. Stat. §§ 463.225, .310 & .360. Because
GRUS’s equity interest in the Company 1s a form of continuing business association
with Seibel and the Company, this relationship may be a source of concern to other
licensees and registrants besides Caesars because there remains an indirect
relationship with a convicted felon. Consequently, GRUS and Mr. Ramsay must
disassociate from Seibel or jeopardize Mr. Ramsay’s other business dealings with
regulated entities. As such, it is impossible for the GRB members to resolve the
current deadlock; not only i1s Mr. Ramsay unable to resolve the current deadlock
with Siebel, but he (and GRUS) cannot associate with Seibel in any way. There is
thus no chance that GRB can continue. Therefore, it is clear, as a matter of law, that
dissolution 1s appropriate under the circumstances and must be ordered as a matter
of law. See Fisk Ventures, LLC, 2009 WL 73957, at *5 (granting petitioner’s motion
for judgment on the pleadings and ordering judicial dissolution under the Act in part
because, “[g]iven the Board’s history of discord and disagreement, I do not believe

that these parties will ever be able to harmoniously resolve their differences”).
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B. Following Seibel’s Felony Conviction And Termination Of The
Caesars Agreement, There Is No, And Cannot Be Any, Further
Business To Operate.

Putting aside the facts that the members of GRB and their appointed managers
are deadlocked and there is no means of resolving such deadlock, an order dissolving
the Company is equally appropriate because the business cannot continue. It 1s
undisputed that GRB was formed to develop or license the rights to develop first-
class, burger-themed restaurants. (Compl. Ex. 1 at Recitals & § 4; Ans. 9§ 7;
Countercl. 49 19-22.) It 1s also undisputed that the only such restaurant developed
since GRB’s inception was the BURGR Gordon Ramsay restaurant in the Planet
Hollywood casino, developed pursuant to the Caesars Agreement. (Ans. ¥ 7, 24,
25.) Fmally, it 1s undisputed that Caesars exercised its unilateral authority to
terminate the Caesars Agreement, thereby ending GRB’s sole income-generating
asset. (Ans. § 25 (admitting that “the Company did not have revenue-generating
business other than the agreement with Caesars™); Compl. Ex. 10; Countercl. 4 51.)
As a result, GRB has ceased to do business and should be dissolved.

Such was also the case 1n In re Silver Leaf, L.L.C., 2005 WL 2045641 (Del.
Ch.). There, the parties had formed an LLC to take advantage of an opportunity to
market a new vending machine that would dispense freshly cooked french fries, and
the LLC executed a sales and marketing agreement with the company that owned

the manufacturing rights to the vending machines. /d. at *1. Following a
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deterioration of the relationship between the companies, the company holding the
manufacturing rights terminated the sales and marketing agreement, which was the
only asset of the LLC. Id.; id. at *11. With the termination of the company’s only
asset,® the Court concluded: “[c]learly, the business of marketing Tasty Fries’s
machines no longer exists for Silver Leaf,” and, as a result, “Silver Leaf has no
business to operate.” Id. at *11. Accordingly, the Court dissolved the LLC under
the Act. I1d.

Similarly, in Meyer Natural Foods LLCv. Duff, 2015 WL 3746283 (Del. Ch.),
the Court determined that the purpose of an LLC (to market and sell beef supplied
by certain parties) could not be achieved and ordered dissolution in part because an
output and supply agreement that required the beef suppliers to deliver the product
to the LLC had been terminated. Id. at *5.

Seibel attempts to avoid the obvious impact of the termination of the Caesars
Agreement in two ways: first, by arguing that the BURGR Gordon Ramsay
restaurant continued to operate following the termination of the Caesars Agreement

(Countercl. 9 62), and second, because Seibel believes that the Company can still

¢ The Court noted that the LLC did have “possible choses in action” related to the
termination of the sales and marketing agreement, but noted that “[t]he ability to
prosecute those claims does not depend on the continued existence of the LLC, but
could, at least in theory, be managed by a court appointed receiver.” Id. at *11.
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continue its operations by pursuing other restaurant ventures. (Ans. 9 24.) Both
arguments fail as a matter of law.

As to Seibel’s first argument, the Caesars Agreement provides that, upon a
termination of the agreement by Caesars, to avoid an immediate closing of the
restaurant, Caesars 1s entitled to “operate the Restaurant and use the License for one
hundred twenty (120) days from such termination to orderly and properly wind-up
operations of the Restaurant.” (Compl. Ex. 2 at § 4.3.2(a).) Thus, the fact that the
restaurant continued to operate as of the date of Seibel’s counterclaims 1s merely a
function of Caesars’ rights under the Caesars Agreement in connection with the
termination of business operations. This residual operation of the restaurant does
not suggest that the business can continue to function going forward. It is in fact
unassailable evidence that it will not be able to do so. See Haley, 864 A.2d at 96
(ordering dissolution as a matter of law despite evidence that the LLC continued to
receive rent payments, and was “technically functioning” because “this operation
[was] purely a residual, iertial status quo™).

Seibel’s second argument likewise fails because it ignores the fact that, as
discussed above, Mr. Ramsay is not only disinclined to continue to do business with
a convicted felon like Siebel but cannot do so without destroying his own ability to
do business with similarly regulated parties. Thus, Siebel’s suggestion that the status

quo will suffice 1s naive at best. Moreover, this contention disregards the impact of
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the termination of the License Agreement, through which GRUS licensed certain
trademarks to GRB. (Countercl. Ex. 5.) Without the intellectual property provided
by Mr. Ramsay, through GRUS, to GRB, the Company cannot hope to capitalize on
the types of business opportunities that Seibel claims are available. The Court
recognized this truth in Vila v. BVWebTies LLC, 2010 WL 3866098 (Del. Ch.), when
celebrity home improvement expert Bob Vila terminated a license agreement that
granted an LLC use of certain intellectual property rights on a website, including the
use of his name, likeness, and certain trademarks. Id. at *2. As the Court explained:

Now that Vila has withdrawn the Vila IP, 1t is silly to think

that WebTies can continue to operate “BobVila.com.” [t

cannot. Moreover, the fact that Hill says that WebTies can

make profits running a website that does not use the Vila

IP is beside the point. Vila did not sign up for such a
business strategy and, in any event, does not support it.

Id. at *7 (emphasis added). So it is here. Mr. Ramsay has withdrawn the intellectual
property that was central to GRB’s purpose, and “it i1s silly to think™ that the
Company can continue operations without such intellectual property. Id.

Whether, as Seibel contends, the Company theoretically could operate some
type of business without the use of Mr. Ramsay’s intellectual property has no bearing
on the Court’s legal analysis. Mr. Ramsay did not agree to pursue such ventures
with Seibel, and, in any event, Mr. Ramsay cannot entertain them in light of Seibel’s

felony conviction. It is thus clear from the undisputed facts in the pleadings that the
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Company’s business cannot reasonably continue and that dissolution therefore 1s

warranted.

CONCLUSION

For the reasons stated above, GRUS respectfully requests that the Court to

grant 1ts motion for judgment on the pleadings and dissolve GRB.

POTTER ANDERSON & CORROON LLP

OF COUNSEL.: By: /s/ Timothy R. Dudderar
Donald J. Wolfe, Jr. (No. 285)

Paul D. Montclare Timothy R. Dudderar (No. 3890)
Jacob Albertson Jacqueline A. Rogers (No. 5793)
MITCHELL SILBERGERG 1313 North Market Street

& KNUPP LLP Hercules Plaza, 6™ Floor
12 East 49™ Street, 30™ Floor Wilmington, Delaware 19801
New York, NY 10017 (302) 984-6000
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Dated: January 17, 2017
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LICENSE AGREEMENT

THIS LICENSE AGREEMENT (“Azssement™, effestive as of the _day of
Movember, 2012, is between GR US LICINSING, LP, a Delawaie Timited parinership
(“Ligensor”) and GR BUBGR, LLC, a Delaware fimited liability company (“Licensee”).

A, Licensor is the owner of the distinctive trade name, service mark, trademark, Togo,

emhlem and indicia of origin, more particularly: set forth on Scheduls A attached hereto, {the:

55}

B.  Licensee has developed, and owns and operates-a burger-centric/burger-themed
restaurant congept {“Coneept”}.

€. Licensee is the owner of certain. distinctive trade names, service wmarks
imdemarks logos, emblems, and indicia of origin, including but mof limited to the marks set
forth on Sghedule B attached hereto, and such other trade names, servics marks and frademarks
as may be develaped from time to time by Licenses and its affiliates, whmh in no-event include
or shall at aoy time include the name “Gordon Ramsay” (the “Ldicen; .

D.  Licensor desires to grant Licensee an exclusive Heense 1o the Mark and permit

Licenses to use-the Mark solely in connection with the marketing and operation of restaurants
and fo sublicense the Mark to affiliated and tnaffiliated third parties for the development,
marketing and operation of first class restaurants under the name “BURGR Gordon Ramsay”
aubject to, and in accordance with, the terms and conditions set forth in s Agreement.

E. The Recitals are a material part of this Agreement.
NOW, THEREFORE, in coxcideration of the above reciials and of the mutual promises
set forth below, the parties horeby agree ag follows;

1. License,

1.1, Grant of License.
Licensor hereby gmnts o Lmensee the cmhsswa I‘Ight 1o use the Mark fm any ’md 5J§ purpasas
customarily necessary in connection with the development and opez ation of first class restanrants
solely under the name “BURGR Gordon Ramsay™ (the “Restaurant Opsyati ”) by Licensee; or
by any Sublicensee (as hereinafier defined) which is appmved by Licensor as set forth herein.

The hi::_ense granted hereunder is exciuswa and Llcensor «zl*ail not use, ot lmnsa to any ethm-

snciudec: name “Gm‘dﬂn Ratm%y n@r from usmo thu name G@rd{}n Ramsaiy th}mut hmitatmn
As between Licensor and Licenses afl rights in and to the name Gordon Ramsay aré expressly
reserved to Licensor. Al righis not expressiy licensed fo Licensee are reserved to Dicensor. Yor
the avoidance of auy doubt Licensee shall have no rights to use the name Gordon Ramsay in
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connection with the Licensee Marks or otherwise howscever save as ¢xpressly set-cut herein or
as approved in writing by Licensor.

' o s, The rights gracted in Section 1.1 above are sometimes
collectweiy reierred io in ﬂm Agraement as the “Licensed Righis”

shaii n_ot he unreas;c_nabﬂy w;.thh_eld__ c.ﬁndlﬁ.cm_eﬁ m‘ _(ielaye(i L}Gensevs. 'Shali_ have ﬂﬁa r;ght tQ
sublicense the Licensed Righis for the development and operation of Restaurant Operations as
determined by Licensee.

1.4, Property of Licensor. Without n any way hmﬁmg the scope of the Livensed
Rxghta expressiy glantad herem or ﬂ}fﬁ L&censee 3 dmcr\,tmn waih respec:t to the use or subhcetm

‘termb h&rﬁof L;censee auknowiedg&s and &vree& ihat the L:censed E‘jght& shali at aH tlmes
durmg,, 111@ 'Iarm be i:he saie ami excluswe property oi‘ Lxcensor Slihj&i’l o i‘ne chenSe
Lauensad Rzghts”s-ole}y for ihe dt'rratmn of the. Term and .that this ﬁk_greemem':i's fot mtencied asa
transfor or sale to Licensee of any of the Licensed Rights.

restaurantsj mciudmg, wﬁhout inmtatmn the Restaurant Opera‘rmn usmg th& Cancepi wiuch
system mcludss, wrthmﬁ hmrtatmn, umqug manus am:] metm stem% lﬁgrvdlﬁﬂts Iecipes

“Gordﬂn Ramsay” that may he mﬂl’uded therem or ihemon, all of whmh may bﬂ 1mprmfed
finthered and developed from time to time by Licensee and its affilintes, (hr:: “System™.
Licensor further acknowledges that #s between Licensor and Licensee the System is the scle and
exclusive property of Licensee.

2 ' andasds. Licensee will ensure that any Restaurant Operation that s
either operated {(a) hy Lmensec directly, or (b) by an affiliated or unaffilisted third party who has
subhwmed the Maﬂ{s fr-::am th.e chen&ee and wha has b&en 1;39:0%& bv L;censar as set ferth

mgh quahty and iu’si: class manner. T addxtlon Lmensee wﬂl ensure: tha.t all gosads offer\,d and
services rendered by Licensee or a Sublicenses, as the case may be, in comnection with any
Restaurant Operation are of high quality. Licensor shali from time to time be provided with the
reasonable opportunity to acciss any Bestanrant Operation(s) which are-developed and operated.
by L;cemec, and Lmensea shaﬂ use cnmmarcuﬂy reamnabie effertq 10 cause ?ubhcumea{s) to
deve!apad and Qperated bv such thhwnsa {5}, in mﬂncmon Wlfh he Mal ks ft:rr the purp«mﬁ 0f
inapecting the Restaurant Dperations to ensure Licensee’s compliance with the apphcabie quiality
standards.
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ation. Subject only to the sequirements set

forth- elsawhere in thxs Agreemem (mcludmg hut not timited to Section 2 with respect to the:
quahty standards. apphcable to the Restaurant Operation), Licensot acknowledges that it is the
intention of the parties that the Licensee shall have the right to use or sublicense (or not use or
not sublicense) the Licensed Rights in connection with varicus aspscts of the operation and
smanagement of Restanrant Opsrations that (8) the Licensor dlrectiy operates and manages or (b)
i}iat any Qﬂh!;censee Gperates and managea, m e.ach case ‘in mnfm’rmtv *mth thls wansa

maent of Certain Fm

(a3}  Licensce shall pay Licensor a license foe pursuant fo Section |
Company's Limited Liability Company Agreement relating to the sublicense of the Mask excent
with respect to any Restaurant Operations owned and operated by Caesars, Harral's or Planet
Hollywood in the USA.

{6)  Licensor shall be entitled to reimbursement of all reasonsble costs and
expenses including for the provision of services by amp}oyees or consultants of Licensor ar its
affiliates directly incurred by Licensor or its affiliates in connection with Licensor’s andfor its
affiliates” Rulfillment of his or its obligations under any sublicense with the Sublicensees for the
Mark to the extent that such éxpenses are not reftmbursed fo such person by, or covered directly
by, the SubHeensees, or otherwise covered purssant to the Company’s Limited Liability
Company Agreement, which reimbursement shall be-subjeet to the presentment to Licensee of
back-up therefor which is reasonably satisfactory to Licensee,

(¢} Licensee shall reimburse Licensor with any and all costs it inours: in
telgtion to the application registration and administration of the Mark,

5 Confidential Information. Each party understands and acknowledges that it may
hava access t@ 1:1fomnat1on of cr c{mcﬁmmg the other thai is canﬁd;,ntial or canstitutes a tra&e

and formuhs for ser tam s,igsmtme menu items {sgﬂecnv&ly o] - nati
pal‘tv Lmderstands and. agrcee that n;mntamznﬂ the strlct coﬁﬁdentiahty of‘ al Conﬁdannaj

Ini"orma&on 01‘ the eiher party whatsoevar excep‘f as subh usage is phﬂmtted ar reasona,bly
sontemplated by this Agreement ot g5 mav be reasenabiy necessary o perfornt its obligatioss
.henundar The term “(‘cmf’ de ’mi I-' i: i atw:a ’ GDE}‘« 1108 mehzﬁe however, m{-;mnaim that

ﬁns Agraement' pmv;ded that %uch mcmvmg pdl lV has ne reaqanabie grounds to beheve that.

such source is bound by a confidentiality agreement or Is otherwise under a duty to protect the
confidentiality of such information,
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| Represeniations. Yicensor represents to Licensee as follows:

{a)  Licensor has all requisite power and suthority to exccute and detiver this
-Agseement and to perferm ﬁs refspectwe abhgatmns heraundar The sxecution and dehvmy of
authm ized by ali naca%ﬁry corporatu action, Tiu'snﬁgreament has bﬁen duly e\ecntcd and
detivered by Licensar and constifutes the legal, valid and binding obligation of Licensor.

()  The execution and delivery of this Agreement by Eicensor doss not, and
the consumpiation of the performance of its ob]igatmns contemplated hereb} will not, conflict
with or viclate aiy eontract or agreement that is binding on Licensot or that relates to any
material portion of the Licensed Rights,

8.2.

_ ations. Licensee represents and covenants to
Licensor as ioiiawn

fa}  Licenses has all requisite power and authority to execute and deliver this

Agreement and o perfonn #s respective Ghligatmns herennder. The execution and delivery of

this Agreement by Licensee and the performance of its obligations hereunder have been duly
authorized by all necessiry cotporate action. This Agreement has bg-en duly exscuted and
delivered by Licensee and constitutes the legal, valid and binding obligation of Licensee,

'Wlth or Vi_(:-late auy mmra_ci or a_greemmi thai is bmdmg ._(m LI_&L»HS{.’,L,

6.3, O Lic 5. Liceisor repregents to Licenses with
respect fo the Lmensed nghts that Lxcensm 18 the owner Gf all nght title, angd interest in and to
the Marks. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein contained Licensee acknowledges
that the Mark has not been registered in the US trade mark registry as at the daie hereof.
Licensor ghalf ‘apply to register the Mark and will keep Licensee informed as to the progress with
such application.

7.

) {4) Licensee shall defend, indemuify and hold Licensor and their respective
officers, dirsctors, managers, stockholders, imemmbers, employif:'es agents, atiorneys,
represenfatives, affiliates, successors and assigns {collectively, an “Ind .nmﬁe' Licensor Party™)
harmless from and egatest any and all third pasty demamim Glms, actions, causes.of aci:u:mj
liabilities, suits, proceedings, judgments, Investigations or inguiries, or any: settlemem thereto,
and all related expenses, including, but act fimited, to all litigation expenses (including
regsonable attorneys’ fees dnd conrt costs) and settlement amounts (cai!euwel}f, “Tonges™), that
directly or indirectly arise from or in connection with the use by Licensee of the Mark or the

4
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performance of nonperformance of Licensce’s duties under this: Agreerent or under any sub-
Heense with a Sublicensee, except to the oxtent Losses result from Licensor's miscondunot,

breach of this Agresraent, any sublicensee with a Sublicensee, or negligence or ave cavered by
Licensor's mdemmty below, This paragraph shall survive the termination of this Agreement,

(b} Li'r.,eﬂmr s‘h'all' defmd indemnii‘y and hold 'Liceﬂse'e dnci itcz of ﬂc'e'rs

a%zgn‘; {wiieutweiy, an “Iﬁdemmﬁeci Lmensee P,artv and twgr,thm mth an Iiadumniﬂed
Licensor Party, an “In : v") harmless from and against any and all Losses that
dtreetly or mdirectiy arise fmm or in conpection with. elaims by third partics that the use by:
Licenses of the Marks in sceordance with this Agreement violates or inftinges upos the tights of
such third party, except to the extent Losses resuilt ot Licenses’s misconduct, hicach of this
Agae&msnt or negligence or are covered by Licenses's indemnity above, This paragraph shall
survive the termination of this Agreement.

7.2 Method of Asserting Claims,

{a) In the 3v&nt that any elaim or demand for which Licenser or Licensee,
i . Par ”) wmuid be habie to an Indcnmtﬂﬁd Party

‘nart}, ihc Indemmﬁed Party' shaﬂ nﬁtlfy the Indemmfymg Party pmmptly of such cla,zm or
demmand, specifying the nature of such claim or demand and the amount or the estimated amount

therﬁc-f to thu sxtem I:hen feasz,bla {whxch estimate shall aot be conclusive of the final amount of

{otige™). The failure to {imely give g Claim Notice
_promptly shad not 1‘61!63‘?&.« tha, mdmnnﬁymg Party of its obligations hereunder except to the
extent such delay is due to the negligence of the Indemnified Parly. The Indemnifying Party
shall thereupon, at its sole cost and expense (subject to Section 7.3 below), defond the
Indemnified Party against such claim or demand with counsel reasonably satisfaciory to the
Tndemnified Party., The Indemmified Party shall cooperate with' the Indemnifving Party in
connection therewith,

{b) The Indemmifying Party shall not, without the prior written. consent of
the Tndemmnified Party, consent o the entry of any judgment against the Indemnified Party or
enter info any seiflement or compromise which does not include, 3s an unconditional termy
thereof (1., therebeing no rf:qmremunt that the Indenwified Party pa} any amount of money or
give any other consideration), the giving by the claimant or piamnff to the Indemnified Party of
a release, in form and substance reasonably satzsf*wtm'y to the Indemnificd Party, from all

lzabx 1t3, in rﬂspcat of suuh clmm or ﬂtigatmn Except 8S othem s pmvxded for in S&cuon 7.6, 1f‘ )

'nghi to c:antml ﬁ‘lﬁ defen e oF settlemem nf any mch c:}'um or demand ami its costs and expense:s
shall be included as part of the indemnification obligation of the Indemnifying Party hereunder:

3
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:rrov;ded hawev-;a t’pai: 'the'fndc,mmﬂbd Party ::hall net %ti’l@ any suCh clalm or demand w;thout
w;t 1heid or dela}*ed If the Indeﬁmiﬁed' Part} shouid elect fo exercise sm,h rlght thu
Indenmifying Party shall have the right to participate in, but not control, the defense or
settlement of such clain or demand at its sofe cost and expense.

7.3 IgisBectial Prope 8. As a condition of this Agreement,
Licensee will prominently place on all items dwplﬁwmg or embodying the Magk {or on thelr
containiers, Tabels, tags and the like), and on all advertising and promotional material, stationery
and traﬂsacuon documents dxsplaymv the “via:k i;‘he foliawma (a) an appropr 1aie trademaik

pmwded by mesor, and (c) an} other I@genci& markm g8 OF nﬁtwes reqmred hy any law of
regulation or which Licensor reasonably may reguest.

. . Licensee shall not identify itsell as the owner of the
Mark or arw nght or mterssi th«,rem Gr ANy y 16@,:3&1‘&&9& of apphuatm‘n ﬁ}r rcglsirauan the.rectf _
whic:h is the sarne as, conﬁxsmgly sxmﬂar to, or whmh mcorp@mtas thc Maﬂ\ anywh»re in the
world.

iad ywnership. (i) All uge of the Mark by Licensse or 3
sublicensee as » trademark. Wl!l fnure m dxe ‘cse:nleﬁt of Licensor. All rights in the Mark other than
those spemﬁcaﬂy gmﬂted m ﬂns Agreement are: msarvcci f@r ths% use dnd bsneﬁ.t ef Lmensar

e nership, Al specially created designs, and any and all
copyti ghts and other mtaﬂgiblfa proper*y rights in t‘smm and in any package design, label, package
insert, signage, advertising, promotional or other material displaying the Mark, will be the
property of Licensor. i not created by Licensor, they will be deemed “werks made for hire” for
Licensor within the meaning of the U.8. Co p}rlght Law or any other applicable indusirial or
infeltectual property law. If ths.,y do not so qualify, all such intangible property. rights will be
deemed transferred to Licensor,

egisiral g Beeordatior Licensee will not seek any
copyright or fradsmark aagistratwn fm the Mark LlC%ﬁ‘iEG will cooperate fully with Licensor, in
the exeoution, filing and prosecution of any trademark or copyright applications that Licensor
31133- chﬂose ta f“ue Lmensea wﬂl exeuutw and df:lwar tar LICGHE()I' at any ttme wheiher durmg or
-c@nﬁrm Li_c_ensar 5 awnersmp _rrghts, to r_eco_rd this Agre:smem of 1o enter or tt,rm.mate meﬁe
as a registered nser, |

6 Infinge L Actions. Licenses shall reasonably cooperate with
Liceasor, to protect and defcﬂd the Mask Licensee shall promptly notify Licensor if any legal

6
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action Is institated against Licensee relating to Licensee’s use of the Mark or otherwise reiai:mg
io other intellectual property rights of Licensor. Liconsee shail also pmmpﬁy notify Licensor
and Licensor in writing of any counterfeiting or other infringement of the Mark or other
intellectual property tights of Licensor or otherwise relating to intellectval property rights of
Licemor of W Euc:h Llcensee bewmes aware. Subject te thﬁ pmwsmns af See’uon 7 1(1}) he‘.rmf
actlens whzch it d&ems necessar}f ta pmtes.,t ;ts mterest in thc Maik &nd other mtellectual
property rights, and Licensee shall cmperate with Licensor in any such action, AR costs incurred
shall be boma b}f Ltcensﬁe $aVe Wh&l‘ﬁ incury ad by hz eaah ﬂf 7 ](b} by Lmanson Lmensee shaii

[:censee dafamst Licemsor ar Lacensar, in wbzch Licensee is Jomad as plau‘ittﬁ Ltceﬂsar shaii
have the sole right to employ counsel and to direct the handling of the claim and ltigation and
any setﬂx,mant thereof Any mcmetary recmrery rasuitmg fmm aﬂ’v such actmn shall f rst be uqed

1d.ent1ﬁed damag_es are dratamlmed tn he. due tr) L;tccnsee .for ims S mc;urrad.%)y L_.icen_s_e_e,_ an_d- not
fo-Licensor, then Licensee shall be entitled to recover such separately identified amount,

and condltmm of thlb Agreemt,nt dnd Llcensee S lelted Llabihf}’ Cmnpany Agxmment
Licensee shall not object te, oppose or otherwise seck to limit in any way Licensor’s use or
explmtatmn of the MarL. m ar.ty manner which Is wnmlent thn li‘le sub, ct to the terms aind

(1) Licensor hereby acknowledges and agrees that Licensee shail have the
-nght to use and explozt the Llcensee Maiks ﬂn c»ughaui the 1mlverse m perpu.,tum suhjec‘t 0 the
F‘mept ag etherwteae pmwded fﬂr herem, Lmensor shfﬂl not ohjf:ct tc appcssa or i}thm‘th ﬁesk
to limitin any way Licensee’s iise or exploitation of the Licensee Marks; in aty manaer which is
consistent with torms and conditions of this Agresment and Licensee’s Limited Liab:ﬁtv
Company Agreenient.

(¢ The parties agree that in the event that any confusion arises between the
Maik'; and the LiCBHSEu M&I'kb thf;y wﬂl cooperaic mth c'mh ei.her and wmk in guﬁd fmth te

or further rest: zct their respeutwe uses ;}f t’ae Mark and the Ln,ensee M&ﬁc&, as 3@;}110&%}1&

(d)  Neither party will apply to register any further rademark uillising the
word BURGR without the consent and approval of the other, provided, however, Licensee may
do so without the consent of Licensor so Jong as (i) such further trademark does not include the
names or words “Gordon Ramsay™, “Ramsay” of “Gorden”, and (i) Seibel and/or GRUS ot thelr

7
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respective affiliates control Licenses.

9. Term. The term of this Agresment shall be for twenty (20) years from the date
hereof (the “Iﬁrm’} subject to. cirlier termination purstant to Section 10 hereof. Provided that
Licenses is not in breach of this Agreement, Licensor shall, af the request of Licensee, cousider
entering into a new license agreement for the Livensed Rights upon mutually sgroeable terms
nagotiated' in g@od faiﬁi i‘ he fﬁrezamg notmthstandmg, ﬂns Agreement shaﬂ cantmue in full

18,

10.1. Eyents of Default, The following consiitutes an event of default:

(@)  aparty is in-material default in-the performance of an obligation under
this- Agreement, and soch. deiauit continues for a period of thirty (30} days afier wriiten notice
from the agﬂmved party, WEVES that if such def'mh cannet by lt‘i nature reasonabiy

the defaultmg party plempﬂy cammencas and dlhgenily pursues the curing of such defimit
within a reasonable time thereafier.

10.2. Ri ; £.of Default. Upon the cccurrence of a continning and vocured
event of default under ‘?ecuon 10.1, the non-defaulting party may terminate this Agresment by
p; awdmg W 1tten nutiw t{) the Gthez g:fax ty of ats eiectmn tD do s0 {a H Fermmatzon Ngt;ce”) 'I’hi‘:

Sectmn 10 2 this A_s,reemam cah&’;ﬂl ccmtmlm in. fuil force and effec:t in avcor dm’ace wﬂh the terms
dﬂd mndttmn& hereef w;ih za:.pm: to, &nd durmg the eﬁt’ecnveness Df an}f sublma:nse betw pert

that elects 1o ex,eiclsﬂ 1t5 ibrmmaimn nght pursnant m tﬂis %utmn 10. 2 teserves any and all other
additional remedics that may be available to it under this Agreeraent and/or at law or in equity.

| - | . Upon termination of this Agrecment, all of Licensee’s
rights te use th¢ Lmunsed nghts will terminaie and Licensee must immediately discontinue all
use of the' Mark. Licansee shall, upos the request of Licensor after such termination, take such
actions and execute such doeuments; if any, as may be reasonably necessary or appropriate to
reflact its surrender of any riphts acquired by Licensee uoder this Agreement.

12, Foree Majeure. No party will be deemed to be in defauli of iis obligations under
this Agresment if and to the extent that such party is unable to pecform such obligation as a
result of fire, flood, storm or other casualty, act of God, sirike or other labor unrest,
unavailability of materials, war, riot or other civil commotion or any other cause beyond the

conirol of such party.

13, Asgipnmient. This Agreement and the rights and obligations of the parties
hersunder may nat be assigned, sublicensed, delegated, sold, transferred, or otherwise disposed

8
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of by Gpuafi@n of 1aw ar otherwise, withcut ﬂ‘lé prior wﬁi:ten cansent Of ths ct'her pdrty, wh;sh

aqstgn i;he banaﬁt but nﬂt its dutzﬂs and obhgaﬁons of ihiS Aﬂmcmﬁm wmmu* fﬁﬁez or mh;bmon._
The parties agree that any pa:miﬁcé assigninent or transfer (if any) shail (8} not relieve the

assigaor of any payment or other obligation under this Agreement, and (b) require the applicable

assignee to be Bound by all limitations, resivictions and guality control provisions set forth in this

Agreement,

14; ﬁgjgga Arw netme, siatament or dumand ruqum:d t@ be gwan under ﬂli&

ar by natmnaﬂywrecagmmﬁ nvemlght dehvery sewzce rewmt conf‘ rmed addresae& a i‘cslmw*;
to Licensor at:

1 Catherine Place
London, SWIE 6DX
United Kingdom-
Atti: Stuart Gillies

to Licensee at:

200 Centrat Pask South
191 Floor
New York New Yc:rk IE}Ot*} USA

;A,tt_n. RQWPH Smhel

or te such other addresses as parties may designate In the rsanner provided n this Section 14.
Any notice or other communication will be deemed given (a) on the date that is 3 business days
after it has been mailed if sent by certified mail, or (b) on the date received if'it has been given to
& nationally-recognized avernight delivery serviee.

16,  Entive Agreement: Conflief, This Agreement (mcludmo the recitals sei forth on
the initial page of tms Agr Vment which are hereby mcmporated herein by refevence) and its
exhibits constitute the entive understanding between the parifes relating to the subject matter
hereof. No party will be bonnd by any representation or agreement other than as expressly stated
in this Agreement or as subsequently set forth in writing and executed by a duly authorized
officer of the party 1o be bound thereby. In the event that the terms and provisions of fie
Cs':rmp*m}f s Limited Liability Company Agreement causes- any amhgmty of conflict in the
interpretation of the teims aud provisions of this Agreement, the terms and provisions of this

9
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Agreement will govern.

7. Governing Law. The validity, ioterpretation, and enforceability of this
Agreement will be governed by the laws of the State of New York, without regard to its confict
of laws provisions,

18, Resolution of Disputes. Except as otherwise provided herein, each of the parties
hereto (a) comsnts and aubmn o the ;umsdmusn of any atate or fedezai court of campmnt

'prorceedmg amsmg out of or reiatmg in- any manner to t}m Agreement, and (b) wawes any cldlm
that aaly such state or federal ccurt lS an mconvement f»:}mm faervice of pracess m any such

ﬁhaii alfcut_ the rtght 0%‘ _any pm‘ty tci_sf:;r,va legal_ proc;ess in any other manner pe_tmlﬂed by Iaw

| L N eligf. In the event that a party viplates or threatens to violaie any
applicable covenant i sat fc:rrth in Section 5 or (i) that is reasonably Bkely to xegatively affect
Licensor’s interest in the Licensed Rights, each patty agrees that the aggrieved party will be
without an adequate remedy at law and will, therefore, be entitled to enforce such restrictions by

preliminary, temporary and/or permanent mjunctmn or mandatory relief In any court of

competent jurisdiction without the necessity of proving damages, without the necessity of
posting any bond or other seeurity, and without prajudice to any other rights and remedies which
the aggrieved party may have at law or in oquity. '

EG.

prewsmn (:-f 111 is. Agreemvnt shail be construed as consﬂi:utmg a mntinmng walver or as a waiver
in other instances. The failure of any party to assert any of its righls hereunder shail not
constitute a waiver of any such rights, No course of conduct or method of doing business shatl
modify or amend the terms hereof,

21, gverability. If any provision of this Agreement shall be determined to be
unenforceable to any extent, the remainder of this Agreement shall not be affected and shall
continue o be valid and enforceable 1o the fullest exient penmttf-‘d by law, If any provision is
held invalid as to duration, scope, activity, or subject, such provision shall be construed by
Himiting and reducing it 50 as to be enforceable to the extent compatible with applicable law,

23, sunterparts and Signatuves. ‘This Agreement may be executed i it two.or more
-counterparzs e’m‘l m whmh shaﬁ be daemed an arigmai but al} of whm,,h mgether shaﬂ cansufute

facsxml_ie_ te Ihep | Gthf:r pariy_ ngnatqrss her_aan dismbutcﬁ by fabsﬁmia PDF_ elactm{m
transmission or similar means of transnyittal shall be deemed original signatures herson,

10
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23, DBinding fffect. This Agreement is bindlug upon each party and permitted
assignees.

24.  Terms of Agreement. The parties agree that the terms of this Agrécment shall
not be divilged to any third party, other than 2 party’s aftorneys, accountants and other
professianals with a reasonably need {0 know such information, without the prior written consent
of the other party, which consent shall not be wnreasonably withheld, delaved or conditioned.

2% Headings The headings ate inseted for convenience only and do not affect the
meaning of any provision of this Agresment, The Recitals are a materfed part of this Agreement,

[Signature Page Foflows]

11
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the partics have caused this Agreement to be exccuted as of
the - day and year set forth below,

5 General Partner

o

GR BURGR, LLC

By:

Name: Rowen Seibel
Title: Manager

ZOCA0BE.72L08085.7
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Schedule A

BURGR Gordon Ramsay
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Schedule B

BURGR and GR BURGR, and, subject to Seetion 8(d), any variation thersof, except with the
nae(s) or word(s) “Gordon Ramsay”, “Ramsay” or “Gordon”.
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EXRIBIT 2




[FILED: NEW YORK COUNTY CLERK 04/02/2014] INDEX NO. 651046/2014
NYSCEF DOC. NO. 1 RECEIVED NYSCEF: 04/02/2014

SUPREME COURT OF THE STATE OF NEW YORK

COUNTY OF NEW YORK
-------------------------------------- Ry ¢ Index No.
ROWEN SEIBEL, Individually and on behalf of
FCLA, LP and THE FAT COW, L1LC,
SUMMONS
Plaintiffs, Plaintiffs designate
New York County as
-against- the place of trial
GORDON RAMSAY and G.R. US LICENSING, LP, The basis of the venue
is Plaintiffs” address:
Detendants, 200 Central Park South
and New York, New York, 10019
FCLA, LP and THE FAT COW, LLC,
Filed:

Nominal Defendants.
________________________________ X

TO THE ABOVE NAMED DEFENDANTS:

YOU ARE HEREBY SUMMONED to answer the complaint in this action and to
serve a copy of your answer, or, if the complaint is not served with this summons, to
serve a notice of appearance on the plaintiffs’ attorney within twenty (20) days after the
service of this summons, exclusive of the day of service {or within thirty (30) days after
the service is complete if this summons is not personally delivered to you within the
State of New York); and in case of your failure to appear or answer, judgment will be
taken against you by default for the relief demanded in the complaint.

Dated: East Meadow, New York
April 2, 2014

CERTILMAN_E AL}*‘@ADLER & HYMAN, LL.P

Paul B. Sweeney, Esq. —
Attorneys for Plaintiffs
90 Merrick Avenue, 9th Floor

Fast Meadow, New York 11554
(516} 296-7000

28233751
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Defendant’s Address:
Gordon Ramsay

2230 Waybridge Lane

Los Angeles, California 90077

G.R. US Licensing, LP
2711 Centerville Road ~ Suite 400
Wilmington, Delaware, 19808

2823375.1
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SUPREME COURT OF THE STATE OF NEW YORK

COUNTY OF NEW YORK
----------------------------- --- et R Index No.
ROWEN SEIBEL, Individually and on behalf of
FCLA, LP and THE FAT COW LLC,
Plaintiffs,
-against- VERIFIED
COMPLAINT

GORDON RAMSAY and G.R. US LICENSING, LP,

Defendants,
and

FCLA, LP and THE FAT COW LLC,

Nominal Defendants.
_____ o X

Plaintiff Rowen Seibel, (“Seibel”), individually and on behalf of FCLA, LP
(“FCLA") and The Fat Cow LLC (“Fat Cow LLC") (FCLA and Fat Cow LLC collectively
“Entities™), as and for their Verified Complaint against Defendants Gordon Ramsay
(“Gordon Ramsay”) and G.R. U.S. Licensing, LI ("GR")(collectively with Gordon

Ramsay (“Ramsay”) and FCLA and Fat Cow, as Nominal Defendants, allege, as follows:

SUMMARY OF THE ACTION

1. This Action concerns the egregious misconduct, fraud, self-dealing, theft
of corporate opportunity and various breaches of fiduciary duty by Ramsay in
connection with two entities that Ramsay formed with Seibel to open, own and operate
a restaurant in Los Angeles, California called “The Fat Cow.” Although Ramsay and
Seibel had equal ownership interests in Fat Cow LLC and FCLA (collectively the

“Entities”), and all corporate action required the consent of both parties, Gordon

28193921
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Ramsay attempted to run the business and make decisions on behalt of the Entities
similar to his television personality on Hell’s Kitchen - as a dictatorship, without the
proper authority and without consent of his partner, as is required by the governing
Entity agreements. In fact, Ramsay’s conduct is far worse than taking action on behalf
of the Entities without any authority to do so, in contravention of the law and
agreements between the parties, and, as a result, intentionally driving the restaurant
formed by the Entities, The Fat Cow, (“Fat Cow Restaurant”) out of business. It has
now become clear that Gordon Ramsay fraudulently induced Seibel to invest over
$800,000.00 in Fat Cow Restaurant -- an investment that went towards an expensive
build-out of the leased space with a new kitchen, new fixtures and furnishings, and to
train the restaurant staff - but then intentionally forced Fat Cow Restaurant to close so
that he could use Seibel’s investment to benefit another Gordon Ramsay restaurant.
Ramsay represented to Seibel that he would take care of any trademark issues with the
name of the Restaurant, but failed to do so with the knowledge that the name of the
Restaurant violated the trademark of another previously established restaurant in
Florida. Ramsay then used the potential trademark violation as an excuse to close the
Fat Cow Restaurant, instead of merely changing its name -- as the parties had expressly
stated they would do if such a trademark issue arose. Ramsay then stole the prestigious
location leased to the Fat Cow Restaurant so that he could open another restaurant
without Seibel in the same location and benefit from Seibel’s $800,000 investment in
refurbishing the leased space and training the staff. On information and belief,

Ramsay’s new restaurant will now be featured in his Fox television program this
2
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season, instead of the Fat Cow Restaurant, as was agreed to by FCLA and Fox
television.

2. In short, Ramsay engaged in blatant fraudulent conduct, breaches of
fiduciary duty, thett of corporate opportunity, and misappropriation that injured Seibel,
as well as the Entities, in amount not less than $10 million.

PARTIES

3. Plaintiff Rowen Seibel is an individual residing 200 Central Park South,
New York, New York 10019,

4. Detendant Gordon Ramsay is an individual residing at 1 Catherine P,
London, Greater London SW1E GDX, United Kingdom and at 2230 Waybridge Lane,
Los Angeles, California 90077. Ramsay is a well-known celebrity chef and television
personality, appearing in television shows such as “Hell’s Kitchen”, “MasterChef” and
“Kitchen Nightmares.”

5. Defendant GR US Licensing LP ("GR")} is a limited partnership, organized
under the laws of Delaware and has its principal offices at 2711 Centerville Road, Suite
400, Wilmington, Delaware, 19808. Gordon Ramsay is the majority owner of GR and
controls GR. At all times, GR acted through Gordon Ramsay, and all actions by GR
were in fact actions taken by Gordon Ramsay.

6. Plaintiff, and Nominal Detendant, Fat Cow LLC is a limited liability
company, organized under the laws of the State of California and has its principal office

at 200 Central Park South, New York, New York, 10019,

2819392.1
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7. Seibel and GR are the sole members of Fat Cow LLC, each owning 50%
membership interest. Seibel and Ramsay are the designated “Managers” of Fat Cow
LLC.

8. Plaintiff, and Nominal Defendant, FCLA, LP ("FCLA") is a limited
partnership, organized under the laws of the State of Delaware, and has its principal
offices at 200 Central Park South, New York, New York 10019.

9. Seibel and GR are the sole limited partners of FCLLA, each owning a 49%
partnership interest. Fat Cow LLC is the sole general partner of FCLA and owns a 2%
partnership interest.

16.  The business of FCLA is, among other things, to “develop, own and
operate” the Fat Cow Restaurant at the leased premises, 189 The Grove Drive, Ste. 0-10,

Los Angeles, California 90036.

JURISDICTION

11.  Plaintiff Seibel resides in New York County, New York.

12, All the parties have consented to the jurisdiction of this Court in the FCLA
Limited Partnership Agreement.

13.  This action arises out of a dispute among the parties under the FCLA
Limited Partnership Agreement and The Fat Cow LLC Agreement. The FCLA Limited
Partnership Agreement provides that all parties consent to the personal jurisdiction of
the State of New York and requires that any litigation arising out of or relating to the
FCLA Limited Partnership Agreement must be brought in “State Supreme Court

located in New York County, New York.” The parties to the FCLA Limited Partnership
4
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Agreement are: (1) The Fat Cow LLC, as general partner, on whose behalf the FCLA
Limited Partnership Agreement was executed by its two Managers, Seibel and Gordon
Ramsay; (2) defendant GR, on whose behalf the Partmership Agreement was executed
by Ramsay, as limited partner; and (3) plaintiff Seibel, as limited partner.

14. In addition, Ramsay regularly conducts business in New York. Ramsay is
involved, as licensor and/ or operator, of no less than three (3) restaurants in New York
City, namely “The London Bar NYC, Gordon Ramsay at the London and Maze by

Gordon Ramsay.”

BACKGROUND

15. Since 2011, Seibel and Ramsay have had various joint venture
relationships in connection with a number of successful restaurants, such as Gordon
Ramsay Steak, in Las Vegas, Nevada, BurGR by Gordon Ramsay, in Las Vegas, Nevada
and Gordon Ramsay Pub & Grill, in Las Vegas, Nevada. Unlike Gordon Ramsay’s
other restaurants with respect to which he either licenses his name or has an ownership
interest in, and which Seibel is not affiliated with, most of which, on information and
belief, are not profitable, each of the atorementioned restaurants in Whichl both Ramsay
and Seibel have an interest is highly protitable.

16. In or around late 2011, Gordon Ramsay informed Seibel that he wished to
open another restaurant in Los Angeles, California that would be a casual, family
friendly American comfort food restaurant which Gordon Ramsay desired to be similar
to the Hillstone Group concepts such as Houston’s. Gordon Ramsay further informed

Seibel that he was looking for a new partner to join him in the venture and contribute to
5
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the start up and capital expenses. Despite significant earnings from his television
programs, Gordon Ramsay informed Seibel that he had significant cash flow problems
and could not fund the opening of a new restaurant without a partner to share expenses
and risks.

17.  Seibel agreed to partner with Ramsay to open, own and operate the new
restaurant. At Ramsay’s suggestion, and subsequently his insistence, the restaurant
was to be named “The Fat Cow.”

18.  Gordon Ramsay informed Seibel that Ramsay would be responsible for
obtaining the trademark “Fat Cow” and would file all appropriate applications to
protect the “Fat Cow” trademark.

The Lease of the Premises

19. In or around November 2011, Gordon Ramsay entered into a 10 year lease
with AF. Gilmore Company for the premises located at 189 The Grove Drive, Ste. 0-10,
Los Angeles, California 90036 (“Premises”). The lease provided that the “Permitted
Use” was an “upscale, full-service restaurant and bar operated by Gordon Ramsay
serving California eclectic cuisine ...”

20. The defined “Trade Name” of the tenant, Gordon Ramsay, was “The Fat
Cow.” Gordon Ramsay was permitted to operate in the Premises under the Trade
Name The Fat Cow “or under such Trade Name as is approved by Landlord, such
approval not to be unreasonably withheld, delayed or conditioned.”

21.  Gordon Ramsay was expressly permitted to assign the lease to an affiliate,

of which he was an owner of least 50%, that continued to operate the Premises within
6
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the Permitted Use set forth in the Lease and under the Trade Name “The Fat Cow”, so
long as advance notice was given to the Landlord.

Trademark Issues

22, On or about November 11, 2011, an entity controlled by Ramsay, called
Gordon Ramsay Holdings Limited Liability Company (“Gordon Ramsay Holdings”),
tiled a trademark application for “Fat Cow” with the United States Patent & Trademark
Office ("USPTO").

23. By February 2012, Seibel had informed Ramsay that as a result of his own
investigation, he determined that there could be problems with the “Fat Cow”
trademark due to an existing registered trademark filed by a Florida restaurant, “Las
Vacas Gordas”, which is Spanish for “Fat Cow.”

24.  Ramsay’s representatives told Seibel that “it is all under control” and
“don’t you worry, I'm the trademark queen.” Ramsay’s representatives further told
Seibel that although the U.S. Trademark application had not yet been approved, “there
is nothing stopping us from opening under the name 'Fat Cow' as planned ... we will
have the US mark in time for the May opening.”

25. In or around March 14, 2012, the USPTO issued a provisional full refusal
of the “Fat Cow” trademark application.

26.  Despite this refusal, Ramsay insisted that the restaurant proceed with the

name “Fat Cow” and assured Seibel that he would handle the trademark issue.
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27. By June 2012, Ramsay’s representative informed Seibel that their U.S.
counsel had presented to Ramsay the various options concerning the “Fat Cow”
trademark and name, but Ramsay “chose not to take any action at this time.”

28.  Nevertheless, Gordon Ramsay continued to assure Seibel that he would
take care of any trademark issue regarding the “Fat Cow” name and insisted on

opening the restaurant under that name.

The Fat Cow LLC

29.  On or about October 12, 2012, Seibel and GR formed Fat Cow LLC and
entered into a Limited Liability Agreement (“Fat Cow LLC Agreement”).

30.  Under the Fat Cow LLC Agreement, Seibel and GR each own a 50%
interest in the Company.

31.  The purpose of the LLC was to “serve as the general partner of FCLLA L.P.”

32.  The Fat Cow LLC Agreement provided that Fat Cow LLC would have two
Managers, Seibel and Gordon Ramsay (Gordon Ramsay being designated “Manager”
by GR). Fat Cow LLC and its business were to be run by the Managers and “all
decisions of the Managers shall be made upon unanimous consent of the Managers.”
Pursuant to the terms of the Fat Cow LLC Agreement, only after unanimous consent
was reached by the Managers was a Manager authorized to execute documents on
behalf of the Company necessary or appropriate in connection with any such decision.

FCLALP

33.  Simultaneous with forming Fat Cow LLC, the parties established FCLA

LP on October 12, 2012 and entered into a Limited Partnership Agreement for FCLA
8
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("FCLA Partnership Agreement”).

34.  The partners of FCL A are Seibel, GR and Fat Cow LLC. Seibel and GR are
limited partners each owning a 49% partnership interest in FCLA. Fat Cow LLC is the
general partner of FCLA, and owns a 2% partnership interest.

35.  The business of FCILA is to operate The Fat Cow restaurant (“Fat Cow
Restaurant”) at the Premises. Specifically, the “Business” of FCLA is to “develop, own

and operate a first class steakhouse restaurant under the name ‘Fat Cow’, or a variation

thereof as determined by the General Partner, at the Location.” (Emphasis added.} The

Location is defined as “189 The Grove Drive, Ste. 0-10, Los Angeles, California 90036.”

36.  Asset forth above and in the FCLA Partnership Agreement, in recognition
of the trademark issues with “Fat Cow”, the parties expressly contemplated that FCLA
was to operate a restaurant under the name Fat Cow “or a variation thereof as
determined by the General Partner.”

37.  The “tull and exclusive right, power and authority to manage all the
affairs and business” of FCL A was vested with the General Partner, Fat Cow LLC - an
entity jointly Managed by Seibel and Gordon Ramsay that required “unanimous”
consent by Seibel and Gordon Ramsay for all business decisions.

38.  The FCLA Partnership Agreement provided that Fat Cow LLC would
determine when additional funding was required and such funding requirements
would be equally made by Seibel and GR.

39.  The Partnership Agreement recognized that the General Partner, Fat Cow

LLC, was granting FCLA a license to the use the mark “The Fat Cow” and “The Fat
9

281939211

275
AA00733



Cow at the Grove.” This provision retlected the fact that Ramsay continued to
represent to Seibel that he would be able to obtain permission to use the name “Fat
Cow” and obtain trademark protection tor “The Fat Cow.”

The FCLA-Fat Cow License Agreement

40.  Simultaneous with executing the Fat Cow LLC Agreement and the FCLA
Partnership Agreement, Fat Cow LLC and FCLA entered into a License Agreement
between Fat Cow LLC and FCLA, whereby Fat Cow LLC licensed to FCLA the rights to
use the Trade Name “The Fat Cow at the Grove” and the Trademark “The Fat Cow.”

41.  The License Agreement was executed by Gordon Ramsay on behalf of
FCLA and on behalf of Fat Cow LLC.

42.  As with the FCLA Partnership Agreement, this provision reflected the fact
that Ramsay continued to represent to Seibel that he would be able to obtain permission
to use the name “Fat Cow” and obtain trademark protection for “The Fat Cow.”

43.  However, the License Agreement made specific provisions in the event
Ramsay was unable to obtain permission to use the name “Fat Cow” and obtain
trademark protection for “The Fat Cow.”

44.  Specifically, the License Agreement provided in Schedule A:

An affiliate of the Licensor has applied for the above

tradement in the United States Patent and Trademark Office
{(the “USPTO") and has received a USPTO Office Action
advising that such trademark is provisionally refused
because of a likelihood of confusion with the pre-existing
trademark “Las Vacas Gordas”.

The Licensor intends to re-file an application containing the
words “The Fat Cow” with a stylized logo. In the event that
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such application is denied, or is challenged and ultimately
denied or Licensor determines not to pursue such trademark
application, Licensor may apply for an alternative
trademark(s), in which case this Schedule A shall be
amended to retlect such alternative trademark(s)
applications and/or registrations, and any amended trade
name(s).

Licensor cannot assure that it will obtain registration of the
trademark “The Fat Cow” or any variation thereof, with or
without a stylized logo. (Emphasis added.)

45.  As the License Agreement recognizes, at the time Ramsay and Seibel
entered into the FCLA Partnership Agreement, Fat Cow LLC Agreement, Lease
Assignment and the License Agreement, Ramsay and Seibel understood that they may
not be able to use the name “Fat Cow” for the restaurant and expressly provided that.
alternative trademark(s) would be sought if necessary. The reasonable use of such
alternative trade names was also expressly permitted under the Lease.

Ramsay Assigns the Lease of the Premises to FCLA

46.  On or about October 20, 2012, Ramsay entered into a Lease Assignment
and Assumption Agreement with FCLA.

47.  Under the Lease Assignment, Ramsay transterred, assigned and set over
to FCLA all of Ramsay’s right, title and interest in, to and under the Lease.

48.  Upon information and beliet, contrary to his obligations under the Lease,
and in contravention of his duties to Seibel, FCLA and Fat Cow, Ramsay did not notify

the Landlord of the assignment.
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Seibel Agrees to Indemnify Ramsay For Losses Under the Lease

49. At the same time as the Lease Assignment, Seibel and Gordon Ramsay
entered into an Indemnitication Agreement, whereby Seibel agreed to indemnify
Gordon Ramsay for 50% of any liability or damages that Gordon Ramsay incurs under
the Lease.

530.  Seibel was willing to enter into the Indemnification Agreement with
Gordon Ramsay based on the aforementioned agreements entered into between them
establishing their partnership relétioﬂship and duties of trust and loyalty to each other,
as well as representations by Gordon Ramsay to Seibel that Gordon Ramsay would
clear any trademark issues. Based on these agreements and representations by Gordon
Ramsay to Seibel, and in recognition that the two partners would share equally in costs,
expenses and profits of the restaurant, Seibel was willing to agree to indemnity Gordon
Ramsay in the event there were losses or damages resulting from the Lease.

Agreement Between FCLA and Upper Ground Enterprises to Film
“Hell’s Kitchen 12”7 at Fat Cow Restaurant

51. FCLA and Upper Ground Enterprises, Inc. entered into an agreement
(“Hell’s Kitchen Agreement”) whereby FCLA permitted the filming at Fat Cow
Restaurant twenty (20) one-hour episodes of the television show, “Hell’s Kitchen”,
starring Gordon Ramsay, which consists of contestants engaging in cooking contests
and is broadcast during prime time domestically by the Fox Broadcasting Company as
well as internationally by various other television providers. Under the Hell’s Kitchen
Agreement, FCLA was to provide free access to the Restaurant to record the program
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and the winning contestant would work at Fat Cow Restaurant for one-year as the head
chet. Inexchange, lFat Cow Restaurant would be mentioned at least once every episode
and there would be at least one “beauty shot” of the Restaurant in every episode.

52.  Atsignificant cost and expense to FCLA, FCLA permitted access for the
recording of the Hell’s Kitchen episodes as provided in the Hell’s Kitchen Agreement in

the fall of 2012.

Ramsay Breaches His Obligations to Seibel, FCLA and Fat Cow

53.  Atall times, Gordon Ramsay and GR, which is owned and controlled by
Ramsay, as a partner of FCLA, had fiduciary duties of care and loyalty to Seibel, Fat
Cow LLC and FCLA.

54. At all times, GR, as member of Fat Cow LLC, and Gordon Ramsay, as
'Manager of Fat Cow LLC, had fiduciary duties of care and loyalty to Seibel and Fat
Cow LLC.

55.  As the opening drew closer without resolution to the name change, and
despite Seibel’s repeated suggestions that the restaurant open under another name,
Ramsay refused to consider Seibel’s suggestions and insisted that the restaurant would
open under the name “Fat Cow.” Ramsay continued to assure Seibel that he would
take care of the trademark issue.

56. In fact, in breach of his promises to Seibel and his duties to Seibel, Fat Cow
LLC and FCLA, Ramsay took no action to re-file the trademark application; took no

action to file a trademark application that Fat Cow LLC could use at the Restaurant;
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took no action to effectuate a change of the name of the Restaurant, and took no action
to secure permission from Las Vacas Gordas to use the Fat Cow name.

57, The Fat Cow restaurant opened on September 26, 2012.

58.  From October 1, 2012 through December 31, 2013 the restaurant generated
positive cash flow.

59. On or about February 27, 2013, Gordon Ramsay received notice from the
Landlord claiming that Gordon Ramsay was in default of the Lease in a number
respects, including, but not limited to (a) that Gordon Ramsay was rarely, if ever,
present in the Restaurant, and that therefore the Restaurant was not being operated by
Gordon Ramsay; (b) poor quality of food; (¢) assigning the Lease without providing
notice to the Landlord,

60.  Ramsay met with the Landlord to discuss the issues raised in the February
2013 letter. In a letter dated April 25, 2013 to Ramsay summarizing their meeting, the
Landiord stated that Gordon Ramsay had made the following representations during
their meeting:

You also committed to putting your name on the restaurant
and said you would promptly confirm the details of doing

so. | expect to hear back from you in the next week about
the steps you will take to put your name on the restaurant.

61.  According to the Landlord, Gordon Ramsay also made the following
comumitment:

Finally, we discussed the ownership structure of the
restaurant and you stated you owned the restaurant with a
partner but you are the sole operator. Please forward
documents that confirm whether the lease has been assigned
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and, if so, that show that the assignment was permitted
under the terms of the lease.”

62.  Ramsay’s statement to the Landlord that he was “the sole operator” of the
Restaurant was legally false and contrary to the terms of the Fat Cow LLC Agreement
and FCLA Partnership Agreement. Nevertheless, soon thereafter Ramsay began to act
as if he was the “sole operator” of the Restaurant and began to exclude Seibel from all
decisions regarding the operation of the Restaurant, refused to consult with Seibel, and
make decisions on behalf of FCLA and Fat Cow regarding the Restaurant without
Seibel’s consent and in violation of the FCLA Partnership Agreement and Fat Cow LLC
Agreement.

63. When he received a copy of the letter, Seibel informed Gordon Ramsay
again that he consented to changing the name of the Restaurant, particularly in light of
the trademark issues with Las Vacas Gordas. Gordon Ramsay specifically and
expressly informed Seibel that he would take all necessary steps to effectuate the
change of the name of the Restaurant. In the meantime, Gordon Ramsay told Seibel
once again that he would take care of any and all issues regarding the Fat Cow
trademark to the extent necessary.

64.  Ramsay never took any steps to change the name of the Restaurant.

65.  Gordon Ramsay had further secret negotiations and discussions with the
Landlord that he concealed from Seibel, FCLA and Fat Cow.

66. On or about April 22, 2013, Ramsay received notice from a restaurant in

Florida, Las Vacas Gordas, claiming that the Fat Cow Restaurant was infringing their
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mark “Las Vacas Gordas” and demanded that Ramsay either cease and desist from
further use of the trade name “Fat Cow” or enter into a License Agreement with Las
Vacas Gordas.,

67.  Onor around September, 2013, in exchange for a payment of $10,000.00,
Ramsay obtained permission until February 28, 2014 from Las Vacas Gordas to continue
to use the trade name Fat Cow in the operation of the Restaurant.

68.  The reason Ramsay only sought an extension until February 28, 2014 is
because Ramsay was prohibited by a prior agreement with The Blackstone Group
(“Blackstone”) from opening or operating any restaurant bearing his name in a
geographic area that included the Premises until after February 2014.

69.  Asaresult, Ramsay could have fulfilled his duties to Seibel, Fat Cow LLC,
FCLA, Blackstone, and the Landlord, as well as satisfying any concern of Las Vacas
Gordas, by changing the Fat Cow Restaurant name to “The Cow By Gordon Ramsay”
effective at any time after February 28, 2014.

70.  But Ramsay took no action to fulfill his duties. Despite his prior
assurances and promises to Seibel, Ramsay took no action after September, 2013 to enter
into a license agreement with Las Vacas GGordas, or obtain a further extension from Las
Vacas Gordas, to apply for a new trade name for the restaurant, or take any action to
change the name of the Restaurant.

71, Instead, in a dramatic money grab and breach of his fiduciary obligations
to Seibel, Fat Cow LLC and FCLA, Gordon Ramsay began taking steps to secretly shut

down Fat Cow Restaurant, using the trade mark issue as his straw man excuse, and
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open a new restaurant at the Premises without Seibel, FCILA and Fat Cow LLC that
utilized his name.

72.  Ramsay’s wrongful and secret unilateral actions were in breach of the
FCLA Partnership Agreement and Fat Cow LLC Agreement, and were intended to
enrich himself, at the expense of Seibel, FCLA and Fat Cow LLC.

73. To etfectuate his wrongtul scheme, on or about June 12, 2013, Ramsay’s
entity, Gordon Ramsay Holdings, filed an application with the United States Patent and
Trademark Office (“USPTO”) for the word mark “The Cow By Gordon Ramsay” to be -
used for restaurant and bar services,

74,  Ramsay did not disclose to Seibel, FCLA or Fat Cow LLC that any such
application had been filed or that he intended to use the name “The Cow By Gordon
Ramsay” as the new name for the Restaurant. In fact, Ramsay secretly filed the
trademark application because he intended to close the Fat Cow Restaurant, steal the
restaurant location, Premises and Seibel’s investment for himself, and open a new
restaurant at the Premises without Seibel, FCLA and Fat Cow LLC,

75.  Ramsay subsequently filed additional trademark applications with the
USPTO for additional names he considered using for a new restaurant at the Premises.

76.  Ramsay could have fulfilled his duties to Seibel, Fat Cow LLC, FCLA,
Blackstone, and the Landlord, as well as satisfying any concern of Las Vacas Gordas, by
changing the Fat Cow Restaurant name to “The Cow By Gordon Ramsay” or another
name acceptable to Ramsay and Seibel. Instead, the applications were intended to

benefit Ramsay’s new restaurant.
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77.  Ramsay engaged in further breaches of his fiduciary obligations to Seibel,
Fat Cow LLC and FCLA, and took additional unauthorized and unilateral actions on
behalf of Fat Cow and FCILA, all as part of his plan to loot and then close Fat Cow
Restaurant, and exclude Seibel from any benefit relating thereto.

78.  Ramnsay took action to misappropriate the assets of FCLA and Fat Cow
LLC, the Lease, the refurbished Premises, and other corporate opportunities, and to
establish a new restaurant at the Premises that would benefit from Seibel, FCLA and Fat
Cow LLC's investments in Fat Cow Restaurant, but that Ramsay would own and
operate without Seibel, FCLA and Fat Cow LLC and for which Ramsay would not have
to share profits with Seibel.

79.  Oninformation and belief, Andi Van Willigan (“Van Willigan”) was
employed by Ramsay’s entity, Gordon Ramsay Holdings, and worked with Ramsay in
connection with his “Hell’s Kitchen” and “Kitchen Nightmares” television programs.
Van Willigan was originally going to be a partner with Ramsay in the Fat Cow
Restaurant.

80.  However, upon finalizing their partnership, Ramsay and Seibel agreed
that Van Willigan would not be a partner in FCLA nor would she be employed by or
provide services to FCLA, Fat Cow LLC or Fat Cow Restaurant.

81.  Inoraround the summer of 2013, Gordon Ramsay stated that Van
Willigan would be working at the Fat Cow Restaurant. Unbeknownst to Seibel, Gordon
Ramsay’s insistence that Van Willigan work at the restaurant was so that Van Willigan

could assist Ramsay in his secref plan to loot the Restaurant and close it.
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82.  Seibel lacked confidence in Van Willigan's abilities and her fiscal aptitude,
a feeling apparently shared by Ramsay as evidenced by Ramsay’s prior termination of
Van Willigan in connection with other Ramsay restaurants. Seibel objected to Van
Willigan’s emiployment at the Restaurant and advised Ramsay that under no
circumstances would Van Willigan be compensated by FCLA or Fat Cow LLC.

83.  Contrary to Seibel’s direction, and without authority and without Seibel’s
consent, Ramsay caused FCLA to compensate Van Willigan in an amount of $10,000.00
per month.

84.  Van Willigan took numerous actions at the Restaurant, at Ramsay’s
instructions, to effectuate his secret plan to loot and then close the Restaurant.

85, In or around December 24, 2(13, Ramsay’s counsel informed Seibel’s
counsel that Ramsay intended to close the Restaurant, claiming Ramsay was required to
do so because the trademark agreement with Las Vacas Gordas expired on February 28,
2014. At no time did Ramsay seek Seibel’s consent to closing the Restaurant.

86. At no time, did Seibel consent to closing the Restaurant.

87. On or about December 26, 2013, Seibel’s counsel informed Ramsay’s
counsel that Seibel did not consent to closing the Restaurant. Seibel further requested a
meeting with Ramsay to discuss numerous business matters concerning the Restaurant.

88.  Ramsay refused to meet with Seibel. Instead, Ramsay continued to take

unilateral and unauthorized actions.
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89.  On or about December 27, 2013, at Ramsay’s instruction but without
Seibel’s consent, Van Willigan informed the staff at Fat Cow Restaurant that the
Restaurant would be closing.

90.  Seibel immediately informed Ramsay that he did not authorize the closing
of the Restaurant, did not authorize anyone to inform employees that the Restaurant
would be closing, and that Ramsay should correct the misinformation that had been
communicated to the staff at Ramsay’s request.

91.  Ramsay did not correct the misinformation. Ramsay continued to take
unauthorized action to close the Restaurant and misappropriate its assets and
opportunities.

92.  On or about January 27, 2014, Ramsay caused to be issued a WARN
Notice, formally notifying the employees of the Restaurant that the Restaurant would
be closing in sixty (60) days.

93.  There was no valid business reason to close Fat Cow Restaurant. Through
year-end 2013, when Ramsay unilaterally and incorrectly notified employees that the
Restaurant would be closing and, as a result, it became known to the public that the Fat
Cow Restaurant would be closing, Fat Cow Restaurant was generating positive cash
flow. Subsequent to informing staff, media and others that the restaurant was closing,
the cash flow deteriorated.

94.  Ramsay also breached his duties to Seibel, FCLLA and Fat Cow LLC by

misappropriating the Hell’s Kitchen Agreement.
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95.  Ramsay personally benefits from the broadcast of the Hell’s Kitchen
episodes. Knowing that he stood to personally benefit from the broadcasts, Ramsay
inducing FCLA and Fat Cow LLC to enter into and/ or agree to the Hell's Kitchen
Agreement in exchange for the promise of promotional benefits that FCLA and Fat Cow
LLC wound receive.

96. In breach of his obligations to Seibel, FCLA and Fat Cow, Ramsay secretly
plotted to close Fat Cow Restaurant so that it would never receive the benetits of the
Hell's Kitchen Agreement, and Ramsay misappropriated for his personal benefit the
consideration due to FCLA and Fat Cow under the Hell's Kitchen Agreement, and
intends to use his new restaurant as the promotional beneficiary of the Hell’s Kitchen
Agreement,

97, Under the Hell’s Kitchen Agreement, the episodes were recorded in the
fall of 2012 at Fat Cow Restaurant, causing the Restaurant to incur significant expenses,
interruptions of service and loss of revenue.

98.  The episodes recorded, however, did not begin to air until March 2014.
Because Ramsay had unilaterally and without permission or authority announced the
closing of Fat Cow Restaurant prior to March 2014, Ramsay secretly agreed with Upper
Ground Enterprises and Fox Broadcasting to delete all references to “Fat Cow” from the
episodes. Upon information and belief, the winning contestant will be hired as head
chef of the new restaurant that Ramsay is opening without Seibel, FCLA and Fat Cow

LLC in the Premises, with misappropriated assets of FCLA and Fat Cow,
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99.  Ramsay’s television programs are his most lucrative enterprises. Ramsay
was willing to sacrifice FCLA and Fat Cow LLC, and act contrary to their interests and
his duties to those Entities and Seibel, to benefit himself and his television programs.

100. Ramsay caused Fat Cow LLC and FCLA to enter into the Hell’s Kitchen
Agreement and allow the filming of Hell’s Kitchen at Fat Cow Restaurant to benetit
himself at FCLA’s and Fat Cow LLC's expense and exposure. FCLA and Fat Cow LLC
did not receive any consideration under the Hell’s Kitchen Agreement because Ramsay
wrongfully acted to close the Fat Cow Restaurant, and allowed and/ or caused Upper
Ground Enterprises and Fox Broadcasting to breach the Hell’s Kitchen Agreement by
removing any mention of Fat Cow from the broadcasts.

101. Upon information and belief, Ramsay entered into a new agreement with
Upper Ground Enterprises, Inc. to allow the removal of any mention of Fat Cow
Restaurant from the episodes, and to promote his new restaurant venture instead,
thereby once again misappropriating corporate assets and opportunities from FCLA
and Fat Cow LLC to enrich himself.

102.  Unbeknownst to Seibel, FCLA and Fat Cow LLC, in addition to the Hell's
Kitchen Agreement, Ramsay took additional steps to misappropriate the assets and
contracts of FCLA and Fat Cow LLC for his personal benefit.

103. Ramsay caused FCLA and Fat Cow LLC to train numerous employees of
his personal ventures and or independent contractors who did work for his lucrative
television programs. There were no business reason for FCLA and Fat Cow LLC to

train these mdividuals and FCLA and Fat Cow LLC received no benefit from the
22

28193921

288
AA00746



training. In fact, Ramsay’s emplovees engaged in numerous acts of egregious
misconduct with regard to employees of FCLA that caused significant personnel issues
for FCLA.

104.  Gordon Ramsay caused FCLA to hire a designer who was also performing
work on Gordon Ramsay’s home without disclosing to Seibel the existence of the
personal relationship.

105.  OnJanuary 24, 2014, Gordon Ramsay Holdings Limited Liability
Company filed another application with the United States Patent and Trademark Office
for the word mark “Gordon Ramsay at the Grove” to be used for restaurant and bar
services.

106.  On January 24, 2014, Gordon Ramsay Holdings Limited Liability
Company filed another application with the United States Patent and Trademark Office
for the word mark “GR Roast” to be used for restaurant and bar services.

107.  Upon information and belief, Ramsay decided he would not use the
previously registered name, “The Cow By Gordon Ramsay” for the new restaurant, and
instead intends to open a new Restaurant at the Premises under the trade name
“Gordon Ramsay at the Grove” or “GR Roast.”

108. The new Restaurant will use the kitchen, furniture and fixtures paid in a
large part by Seibel, Fat Cow LLC and FCLA. The new Restaurant will use the staff that
was trained with funds paid for by Seibel, Fat Cow LIC and FCLA.

109. In February 2014, just weeks before Ramsay was forcing the Restaurant to

close, Van Willigan, at Ramsay’s instructions and without Seibel’s consent, hired “bar
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consultants” paid for by FCLA to “consult” allegedly for the benefit of FCLA
notwithstanding that Ramsay was closing the Restaurant shortly thereafter. The “bar
consultants” were paid almost $3,000.00. There is no valid business reason for a
restaurant that is closing within weeks to hire “bar consultants.” Ramsay caused the
“bar consultants” to be hired for the sole benefit of the new restaurant he was secretly
plotting to open and, through Van Willigan, caused the “bar consultants” to be
wrongfully paid for by FCLA.

110. Throughout late 2013 and 2014, despite Seibel’s repeatedly informing
Ramsay that Ramsay’s unilateral and unauthorized actions are contrary to the parties’
Agreements, and despite Seibel’s requests that Ramsay meet with him to attempt to
save the Fat Cow Restaurant, in breach of this duties to Seibel, FCLA and Fat Cow LLC,
Ramsay has refused to meet or consult with Seibel and refused to retrack any of his
* unauthorized actions. Instead, Ramsay has now successfully forced the Fat Cow
Restaurant to close and is moving ahead with his new restaurant at the Premises with
the asset he misappropriated from FCLA and Fat Cow LLC.

AS AND FOR A FIRST CAUSE OF ACTION
AGAINST DEFENDANTS RAMSAY AND GR
(Breach of Fiduciary Duty and Self Dealing)

111, Plaintiffs repeat, reiterate and reallege each and every allegation contained
above as if fully set forth at length herein.
112, Atall times, GR, owned and controlled by Ramsay, as a partner of FCLA,

had fiduciary duties of care and loyalty to Seibel, Fat Cow LLC and FCLA.
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113, Atall times, GR as member, and Ramsay as Manager of Fat Cow LLC, had
tiduciary duties of care and loyalty to Seibel and Fat Cow LLC.

114.  GR and Ramsay owed a duty to Seibel, FCLA and Fat Cow LLC to
conduct business in the best interests of FCLA and Fat Cow LLC.

115, GR and Ramsay owe Seibel, FCLA and Fat Cow LLC a duty of good faith,
loyalty, and that degree of diligence, care and skill which ordinarily prudent men
would exercise under similar circumstances.

116. GR and Ramsay have breached their fiduciary duties in the manners set
tforth above, including but not limited to:

a. Failing to properly filed trademark application(s) with regard to
“The Fat Cow” and related logos;

b. Failing to attempt to negotiate a trademark license with Las Vacas
Gordas or attempt to negotiate an extension to continue to operate

the Restaurant under the name The Fat Cow;

c. Refusing to operate the Restaurant under any name other than The
Fat Cow:;
d. Submitting trademark applications for names that would be used

for Ramsay’s new restaurant, but which Ramsay and GR refused to
allow to be used for the Restaurant;
e. Misappropriating the Lease that was assigned to FCLA to Ramsay

and or entity(ies) controlled by Ramsay;
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Misappropriating the capital improvements paid for by Seibel,
FCLA and Fat Cow LLC at the Premises for use in Ramsay’s new
restaurant;

Misappropriating the staff and the expenses incurred training the
statf at Fat Cow Restaurant for Ramsay’s new restaurant;

Secretly negotiating with Landlord against Fat Cow LLC and
FCLA’s interests and to benefit Ramsay personally and his
personally controlled entity(ies);

Misappropriating the Hell's Kitchen Agreement from FCLA to
Ramsay and or entity{ies) controlled by Ramsay;

Secretly negotiating with Upper Ground Enterprises and Fox
against Fat Cow LLC and FCLA's interests and to benefit Ramsay
personally and his personally controlled entity(ies);

Refusing to communicate or meet with Seibel on business matters
and decisions that required unanimous consent;

Taking unauathorized and unilateral actions on behalf of FCLA and
Fat Cow LLC without Seibel’s consent, including, but not limited to
actions to close Fat Cow Restaurant; issuing the WARN Notice;
hiring and compensating Van Willigan; and entering into
negotiations and agreements with the Landlord and Upper Ground

Enterprises;
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117.  Based on the foregoing, Plaintiffs are entitled to compensatory and
punitive damages, in an amount to be determined at trial, but not less than $10 million,
with pre-judgment interest, attorneys’ fees and costs, and such other relief as this Court

may deem proper.

AS AND FOR A SECOND CAUSE OF ACTION
AGAINST DEFENDANTS
(Fraud and Misappropriation)

118.  Plaintiff repeats and realleges each and every allegation set forth above as
though fully set forth herein at length.

119. Ramsay made numerous fraudulent misrepresentations and/or material
omissions of fact which were false and known to be false by Ramsay.

120, Ramsay’s misrepresentations were made for the purpose of inducing
Seibel to invest over $800,000.00 with Ramsay, FCLA and Fat Cow LLC, and to induce
Seibel into believing that Ramsay continued to act in the best interests of FCLA and Fat
Cow LLC.

121, Seibel justitiably relied on Ramsay’s misrepresentation and/or material
omissions in deciding to enter into the FCLA Partnership Agreement, Fat Cow LLC
Agreement and to invest over $800,000.00 with Ramsay in FCLA and Fat Cow LLC.

122, To hide his fraud, Ramsay continued to make misrepresentations to Seibel
that he was acting in Fat Cow and FCLA's best interests, such as, for instance, informing
Seibel that he was going to take all necessary steps to make certain the Restaurant could

operate under the name “Fat Cow”, to remedy any allegations by Las Vacas Gordas that
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the use of “Fat Cow” infringed their trademark, and also to change the name of the
Restaurant.

123.  After Seibel invested in FCLA and Fat Cow, Ramsay began conducting
business on FCILLA and Fat Cow LLC's behalf without Seibel's authorization and
contrary to the interests of FCLA and Fat Cow LLC.

124, Ramsay misappropriated for his personal benefit the corporate
opportunities and assets of FCLA and Fat Cow LLC, including the assignment of the
Lease, the Upper Ground Enterprise Agreement.

125.  To hide his fraud from Seibel, Ramsay did not disclose to Seibel that was
filing trademark applications for names that we would not use for the Restaurant, but
rather use for his new restaurant. Ramsay also did not disclose to Seibel that he had
secret negotiations and agreements with the Landlord and Upper Ground Enterprises
that resulted in misappropriation of FCLA and Fat Cow LLC assets and opportunities.

126. Ramsay intended to misappropriate and did misappropriate all of Seibel’s
mvestment in FCLA and Fat Cow LLC.

127. By reason of the foregoing, punitive damages are warranted to punish
Defendants for conduct that exhibits a high degree of moral culpability and manifests a
willful, wanton or reckless disregard for the rights of others.

128. By reason of the foregoing, Seibel has been personally damaged in an
amount to be determined at irial, but in no event less than $10 miilion, exclusive of

punitive damages, attorneys’ fees, attorneys’ fees, costs, interest and disbursements.
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AS AND FOR A THIRD CAUSE OF ACTION
{Conversion)

126, Plaintiff repeats and realleges each and every allegation set forth above as
though fully set forth herein at length.

130. Defendants are in possession of property that rightly belongs to Plaintitf.

131. Defendants received possession of Seibel, FCLA and Fat Cow LLC’s funds
and property, without authority, intentionally exercised control over those funds and
property in such a manner as to interfere with FCLA, Fat Cow LLC and Seibel’s right of
possession.

132.  Defendants obtained funds and property from FCLA, Fat Cow LLC and
Seibel that, in good conscience, should not be retained by Defendants and that belong to
Plaintiffs.

133. By reason of the foregoing, punitive damages are warranted to punish
Defendants for conduct that exhibits a high degree of moral culpability and manifests a
willful, wanton or reckless disregard for the rights of others.

134. By reason of the foregoing, FCLA, Fat Cow LLC, and Seibel has been
personally damaged in an amount to be determined at trial, but in no event less than
$10 million, exclusive of punitive damages, attorneys’ fees, attorneys’ fees, costs,

interest and disbursements.
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AS AND FOR A FOURTH CAUSE OF ACTION
AGAINST DEFENDANTS
(Breach of Contract)

135.  Plaintiffs repeat, reiterate and reallege each and every allegation contained
above as if tully set forth at length herein.

136.  Asset forth in detail above, Ramsay breached several provisions of the
FCLA Partnership Agreement and the Fat Cow LLC Agreement by, among other things,
taking actions on behalf of the entities without unanimous consent.

137. By reason of the foregoing, Seibel, FCLLA and Fat Cow LLC have been
damaged in an amount to be determined at trial, but in no event less than $10 million,
exclusive of attorneys’ fees, costs, interest and disbursements.

AS AND FOR A FIFTH CAUSE OF ACTION

AGAINST DEEENDANTS
{Unjust Enrichment)

138. Plaintiffs repeat, reiterate and reallege each and every allegation contained
above as if fully set forth at length herein.

139, Ramsay received possession of Seibel, FCLA and Fat Cow LLC’s funds
and property, without authority, that will enrich Ramsay and benefit his new
restaurant.

140. Ramsay obtained funds and property from FCLA, Fat Cow LLC and
Seibel that, in good conscience, should not be retained by Ramsay and that belong to

Plaintiffs.
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141. By reason of the foregoing, FCLA, Fat Cow LLC, and Seibel has been
personally damaged in an amount to be determined at trial, but in no event less than

$10 million, attorneys’ fees, attorneys’ fees, costs, interest and disbursements.

AS AND FOR A SIXTH CAUSE OF ACTION
AGAINST DEFENDANTS
(Fraud in the Inducement)

142, Plaintiffs repeat, reiterate and reallege each and every allegation contained
above as if fully set forth at length herein.

143. Ramsay fraudulently induced Seibel to enter into the FCLA Partnership
Agreement, the Fat Cow LLC Agreement, and the Indemnification Agreement, based
on his repeated misrepresentations that (1) the Fat Cow trademark was under control;
(2) that he would handle any and all trademark issues related to Restaurant; and (3} if
such trademark issues could not be remedied, he would effectuate a change in the name
of the Restaurant.

144. Ramsay’s misrepresentations were intentional and intended to induce
Seibel to invest money in the Restaurant.

145. Ramsay’s misrepresentations were intentional and intended to induce
Seibel to invest money in the Restaurant and enter into the aforementioned
Agreements.

146.  Seibel relied upon Defendants’ misrepresentations regarding the name of
the Restaurant and the trademark issues when he agreed to enter into the Agreements

and invest in the Restaurant.
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147. Inorder to conceal his misrepresentations, Ramsay secretly filed new
trademark applications for new names that he would use only for his new restaurant,
but would not use for the parties” Restaurant.

148.  As a resulf of the fraudulent misrepresentations and concealment, Seibel
continued to fund FCLA and Fat Cow LLC, not knowing that Ramsay had made
material misrepresentations to Seibel and was concealing his intention to close the
Restaurant.

149.  Based on the foregoing, Seibel is entitled to compensatory damages, in an
amount to be determined at trial, but not less than $800,000.00, exclusive of punitive
damages, with pre-judgment interest, attorneys’ fees and costs, and such other relief as
this Court may deem proper.

WHEREFORE, Plaintiffs respectfully demand judgment against Defendants as
follows:

(@)  On their First Cause of Action, compensatory and punitive
damages, in an amount to be determined at trial, but not less than $10 million, with pre-
judgment interest, attorneys’ fees and costs, and such other relief as this Court may
deem proper;

(b)  ontheir Second Cause of Action, compensatory and punitive
damages, in an amount to be determined at trial, but not less than $10 million, with pre-
jadgment interest, attorneys’ fees and costs, and such other relief as this Court may

deem proper;
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(c)  on their Third Cause of Action, compensatory and punitive
damages, in an amount to be determined at trial, but not less than $10 million, with pre-
judgment interest, attorneys’ fees and costs, and such other relief as this Court may
deem proper;

(d)  on their Fourth Cause of Action, compensatory damages, inan
amount to be determined at trial, but not less than $10 million, with pre-judgment
interest, attorneys’ fees and costs, and such other relief as this Court may deem proper;

(e)  on their Fifth Cause of Action, compensatory damages, in an
amount to be determined at trial, but not less than $10 million, with pre-judgment
interest, attorneys’ fees and costs, and such other relief as this Court may deem proper;

(f)  on their Sixth Cause of Action, compensatory and punitive
damages, in an amount to be determined at trial, but not less than $800,00.00, with pre-
judgment interest, attorneys’ fees and costs, and such other relief as this Court may
deem proper;

(g)  awarding Plaintiffs attorneys’ fees, costs and disbursements; and
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(h)  granting Plaintiffs such other and further relief as this Court may

deem just, equitable and proper.

Dated: East Meadow, New York
April 2, 2014

By: »
PAul B. Sweéﬁey, Esq.
Attorneys for Plaintiffs
90 Merrick Avenue -~ 9th Floor
East Meadow, New York 11554

(516) 296-7000
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VERIFICATION

STATE OF NEW YORK )
) 88.;
COUNTY OF NEW YORK)
ROWEN SEIBEL being duly sworn, deposes and says:
1. I am the Plaintiff in the within action.
2. I have read the foregoing VERIFIED COMPLAINT and know the
contents thereof; the same is true to my own knowledge, except as to the matters therein

stated to be alleged upon information and belief, and as to those matters I believe them

to be true. The grounds of my belief as to all matters not stated upon my own

N/

knowledge are as follows: books, records, papers, and documents.

K//T»M L . wfi_w(ﬁ,,
/¥ ROWEN SEfBEL
Sw%rn to before me this
* day of 'A)wﬂ doty

AW

Notary Pubhc

BRIAK K, PEGLER

Mﬂ?ﬁ.ﬁ‘fﬂa AT, ‘3: Tate of E‘é@w‘%’w&c
iz, i SN C I B

{'}aaisﬂaﬁ by Mcf* san Tount

Comimission Bx pires June 30, M f,g
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SUPREME COURT OF THE STATE OF NEW YORK

Index No. Year
COLNTY OF NEW YORK
f N\
ROWEN SEIBEL, Individually and on behalf of FCLA, LP and THE FAT COW, LLC,
Plaintiffs,
~against-
GORDON RAMSAY and G.R. US LICENSING, LP,
. Defendants,
and
FCLA, LP and THE FAT COW, LLC,
Nominal Defendants.
" J
4 N
SUMMONS AND VERIFIED COMPLAINT
- /
4 !
CERTH,MANP? Ifl? ADLER & HyMAaN, LLP
Attorney(s} for
Office and Post Office Address, Telephone
80 MERRICK AVENUE, STH FLOOR
EAST MEADOW, NEW YORK 115564
(516} 295-7000
FAX (54B) 2R6-7111
\.. A
e R
To To the best of the undersigned’s knowledge,
information and belief, formed after an mquiry
reasonable under the circurnstances, the within
documentis and contentions contained herein are
not frivolous as defined m 22 NYCRR 130-1.1-a.
Dated: ... ... ... . . ..
Attorney(s) for
. S
4 _ N
PLEASE TAKE NOTICE:
D NOTICE OF ENTRY
that the within is a (cerrified) true copy of o
duly entered in the office of the clerk of the within named court on
D NOTICE OF SETTLEMENT
that an order
will be presented for settiement to the HON. of which the within is a frue copy
within named Court, at one of the judges of the
on
at _ M.
Drated,
- Yours, etc.
CERTILMAN BALIN ADLER & HYMAN, LLP
o J ]
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(FILED: NEW YORK COUNTY CLERK 05/27/2014] INDEX NO. 651618/2014
NYSC{EF DOC. NO. 1 RECEIVED NYSCEF: 05/27/2014

SUPREME COURT FOR THE STATE OF NEW YORK
COUNTY OF NEW YORK

GR US LICENSING, LP, a Delaware limited partnership,
for itself and derivatively on behalf of THE FAT COW :  Index No.
LLC, a California limited liability company, :
Plaintiff,
SUMMONS

-against-

ROWEN SEIBEL,
Defendant,

-and-

THE FAT COW LLC,
Nominal Defendant,

To the above named Defendant(s)

You are hereby summoned to answer the complaint in this action and to serve
a copy of your answer, or, if the complaint is not served with this summons, to serve
a notice of appearance, on the Plaintiff's attorney within 20 days after the service of
this summons, exclusive of the day of service (or within 30 days after the service is
complete if this summons is not personally delivered to you within the State of New
York); and in case of your failure to appear or answer, judgment will be taken against
you by default for the relief demanded in the complaint.

Plaintiff has designated the venue as New York County, pursuant to CPLR §§ 501
and 503(a) and (d). The basis for venue in New York County is made pursuant to CPLR
§§ 501 and 503(a) and (d).
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DATED: New York, New York

To:

May 27, 2014

Rowan Seibel
The Fat Cow LLC

MITCHELL SILBERBERG & KNUPP LLP

. / (D __

Paul D. Montclare, Esqg.

12 East 49th Street, 30th Floor
New York, New York 10017-1028
Telephone: (212) 509-3900
Facsimile: (212) 509-7239

Kevin E. Gaut, Esq. ( pro hac vice
application to be submitted)

11377 West Olympic Boulevard
Los Angeles, CA 90064-1683
Telephone: (310) 312-2000
Facsimile: (310) 312-3100
Artorneys for Plaintiff
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SUPREME COURT FOR THE STATE OF NEW YORK
COUNTY OF NEW YORK

GR US LICENSING, LP, a Delaware limited partnership,
for itself and derivatively on behalf of THE FAT COW :  Index No.
LLC, a California limited liability company, :

Plaintiff, COMPLAINT
-against- :
ROWEN SEIBEL,
Defendant,
_and-
THE FAT COW LLC,

Nominal Defendant,

Plaintiff GR US Licensing, LP (“GR”), a Delaware limited partnership, in its individual
capacity, and derivatively on behalf The Fat Cow, LLC, a California limited liability company,
for its Complaint against Defendant Rowen Seibel (“Seibel™), alleges as follows:

INTRODUCTION

1. This action seeks judicial dissolution of two entities — The Fat Cow, LLC, a
California limited liability company and FCLA, LP, a Delaware limited partnership (together,
the “Fat Cow Entities”) — and 1s a first step in thwarting Defendant Rowen Seibel’s fraudulent
scheme to freeload upon the renown and acumen of celebrity chef Gordon Ramsay (“Mr.
Ramsay’’), whose related entity is Plaintiff GR. Seibel has been engaged in a concerted effort to
usurp Mr. Ramsay’s invaluable name, trademarks, and restaurant concepts through, among other
things, outright and worldwide misrepresentations about Seibel’s rights to them.

2. Mr. Seibel first became involved with Mr. Ramsay in 2011 by falsely telling Mr.

Ramsay that he needed Seibel to provide contacts essential for Las Vegas restaurant ventures.
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Then, when Seibel learned in 2012 that Mr. Ramsay intended to open a new restaurant in Los
Angeles to be called “The Fat Cow,” Seibel begged to be included, this time falsely promising
Mr. Ramsay that Seibel would be an invaluable partner because of his significant restaurant
experience. GR and Secibel formed the Fat Cow Entities to jointly own and operate the
restaurant.

3. Having inveigled Mr. Ramsay to include him in The Fat Cow, Seibel took control
of the restaurant and proved egregiously inept in its management. As a result, the restaurant had
food, service and busines;s operations far below Mr, Ramsay’s exacting standards. Siebel’s
incompetent operations generated negative restaurant reviews and criticism from the restaurant’s
landlord.

4. Because of Seibel’s misconduct, The Fat Cow faced mounting losses and also
legal proceedings. For example, Seibel’s team mis-paid certain employees, resulting in
thousands of dollars in penalties and back wage assessments from the California Labor
Commissioner. Seibel hid these proceedings from Mr. Ramsay. Eventually, other employees
filed a class action lawsuit complaining about pay and labor practices implemented under
Seibel’s control.

5. Belatedly Mr. Ramsay was forced to select and assign new and competent The Fat
Cow management in an effort to save the restaurant. However, Seibel refused to cooperate in
any reasonable steps to solve the problems he had created. For example, Seibel refused to
contribute his share of the funds needed to pay lawyers to defend the class action lawsuit, and
after promising to attend a meeting to attempt settling the lawsuit, Seibel never showed.

6. At the height of these restaurant problems, Mr. Seibel stole from the restaurant

account, worsening its fiscal shortfall. After the fact, Mr. Ramsay learned that, while operating
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the restaurant, Seibel had also engaged in other self-dealing transactions by which he personally
benefitted from contracts of The Fat Cow vendors and enriched himself through (or advocated
for) other dishonest dealings.

7. The restaurant also faced trademark issues. The parties had agreed to name the
restaurant The Fat Cow, despite acknowledging in writing from the outset that both knew of
possible trademark concerns because a Florida restaurant was using the Spanish version of a
related name. When the trademark issue came to a head in 2013, Seibel ignored the problem and
left Mr. Ramsay to negotiate a solution. Mr. Ramsay’s representatives obtained a temporary
right to continue using “The Fat Cow” trademark, but that right ended in early 2014.

8. Despite an agreement that The Fat Cow business partners would make joint
decisions, Seibel rejected Mr. Ramsay’s suggestion that the restaurant should close and
unilaterally demanded in late 2013 and 2014 that the restaurant continue operating, while at the
same time refusing to provide funds needed to do so or to provide solutions to the trademark
problems. Ultimately, GR alone contributed monies to meet rent and other restaurant
obligations. Seibel did and contributed nothing.

9. Eventually, the restaurant closed due to the losses caused by Seibel’s derelictions
and the trademark issues. But Seibel tried to shift the blame to Mr. Ramsay and continued to
engage in misconduct that increased the venture’s losses. For example, with full disclosure and
acquiescence from Seibel, Mr. Ramsay suggested to the The Fat Cow landlord that, once the old
restaurant closed, Mr. Ramsay could start a new restaurant on the leased premises under Mr.
Ramsay’s sole and expert control. Starting such a new restaurant could have discharged the old
restaurant’s rent obligation. Seibel did not thank Mr. Ramsay for the effort. Instead, Seibel filed

a related lawsuit in this Court, making the false and nonsensical claim that Mr. Ramsay, a
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successful television star and renowned restaurateur with a reputation for perfection, fraudulently
induced Seibel to participate in The Fat Cow restaurant project with the intent to secretly cause it
to fail by producing a poor quality product and miring it in legal troubles so that he could then
close the restaurant, make off with Seibel’s money, and reopen a new restaurant in the same
location. The claim is nonsense. Now, no new restaurant has been or will be opened. Asa
result, the landlord has asserted substantial and ongoing rent obligations arising from the original
restaurant.

10. Seibel’s related lawsuit rewrote history in other ways. For example, it falsely
claims that Mr. Ramsay had promised that he alone would fix the trademark issue, when the
parties’ written agreement plainly provides otherwise.

11.  While engaging in misconduct at The Fat Cow, Seibel began interfering more
broadly with Mr. Ramsay’s business interests. Seibel has traveled throughout the world blatantly
mischaracterizing his rights under agreements governing restaurant ventures involving Mr.
Ramsay, and in doing so has falsely claimed rights to invaluable Ramsay trademarks and
concepts which Seibel does not hold.

12.  Inshort, Seibel has tried to ride Mr. Ramsay’s star, but through his own fraud,
misconduct, and derelictions, brought the The Fat Cow restaurant crashing down, while falsely
blaming Mr, Ramsay and otherwise interfering with his rights. This lawsuit begins efforts to
disassociate Seibel from Mr. Ramsay’s empire by dissolving the two Fat Cow Entities.
Dissolution is required because:

° The Fat Cow Entities require that all decisions be made through unanimous

agreement of the parties. At this point, no such agreements are possible and have

not been possible for some time.
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® The Fat Cow Entities were formed to operate The Fat Cow and perhaps extend the
restaurant concept to other locations if both parties agreed. The original The Fat
Cow is now closed, and GR and Mr. Ramsay will not agree to operating any other
such restaurant. The Fat Cow Entities thus serve no function, other than fostering
Seibel’s efforts to misrepresent the scope of his purported relationships with Mr.
Ramsay and providing Seibel potential future opportunities for self-dealing,

° GR is under no obligation o continue operating the Fat Cow Entities with a man
who has proven incompetent and dishonest, who has interfered with Mr.
Ramsay’s business operations by misrepresenting worldwide his authority to the
Ramsay name, trademarks, and concepts, who has caused significant losses at The
Fat Cow but eschewed any responsibility for doing so, and who has filed a
malicious and concocted lawsuit against Mr. Ramsay. Continued association with
Siebel through the Fat Cow Entities will only sully Mr. Ramsay’s reputation.

PARTIES AND DERIVATIVE CLAIMS

13.  Plaintiff GR US Licensing, LP (“GR”) is a Delaware limited partnership which
maintains its principal place of business in the State of Delaware, and related to chef Gordon
Ramsay.

14.  Upon information and belief, Defendant Rowen Seibel (“Seibel”) resides in the
State of New York.

15.  The Nominal Defendant The Fat Cow LLC is a California limited liability
company.

16.  GR brings the Second Cause of Action on its own behalf and derivatively on

behalf of The Fat Cow, LLC.
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17. For reasons set forth in the allegations in this complaint, it would be futile to seek
Seibel’s consent to dissolving The Fat Cow LLC, or to seek Seibel’s consent to The Fat Cow,
[LL.C commencing this action for the dissolution of FCLA, LP.

JURISDICTION AND VENUE

18. This Court has personal jurisdiction over Defendant Seibel pursuant to New York
Civil Practice Law and Rules section 301 because Seibel resides within this State.

19.  Venue is proper in the County of New York under New York Civil Practice Law
and Rules sections 501 and 503.

20.  Pursuant to the Limited Partnership Agreement of FCLA, LP (described below),
Seibel has consented to personal jurisdiction and venue in this Court.

STATEMENT OF FACTS

21. On about October 12, 2012, GR and Seibel entered into a “Limited Liability
Company Agreement of The Fat Cow, LLC” in order to form The Fat Cow, LLC as a California
limited liability company.

22.  GR and Seibel are the only Members and owners of The Fat Cow, LLC. GR and
Seibel each have a 50% membership interest in The Fat Cow, LLC.

23.  The Limited Liability Company Agreement of The Fat Cow, LLC calls for The
Fat Cow, LLC to be managed through the unanimous consent of two managers, one manager
designated by GR and one manager designated by Seibel. Seibel has designated himself as his
manager and GR has designated Mr. Ramsay as its manager.

24. On about October 12, 2012, GR, Seibel, and The Fat Cow, LLC entered into a
“Limited Partnership Agreement of FCLA, LP” in order to form FCLA, LP as a Delaware

limited partnership.
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25. GR and Seibel are the only limited partners of FCLA, LP. The Fat Cow, LLC is
the only general partner of FCLA, LP. GR and Seibel each have a 49% limited partnership
interest in FCLA, LP. Thé Fat Cow, LLC has a 2% partnership interest in FCLLA, LP. Under the
terms of the Limited Partnership Agreement of FCLA, LP, The Fat Cow, LLC makes all
decisions for FCLA, LP. As aresult, and because all decision for The Fat Cow, LLC must be
made unanimously by its managers Mr. Ramsay and Seibel, decisions for FCLA, LP must also
be made unanimously by them.

26.  I'CLA, LP was formed for the purpose of developing, owning, and operating a
restaurant to be known as The Fat Cow at the Grove, an upscale retail and entertainment
complex in Los Angeles, California.

27. GR and Seibel, through The Fat Cow, LLC and FCLA, LP, planned to develop
The Fat Cow into a successful restaurant at The Grove. If the inaugural The Fat Cow proved
successful, GR and Seibel potentially intended to use The Fat Cow, LLC as a vehicle for
licensing the “The Fat Cow” mark and concept for use at other future restaurant locations, if both
parties agreed.

28.  The Fat Cow restaurant at The Grove (the “Restaurant”) opened in about October
2012.

29. Seibel assumed initial management responsibility over the Restaurant. He did so
with utter incompetence, with the result that the Restaurant’s food, service and business
operations were far below the exacting Ramsay standards.

30. On or about June 13, 2013, a wage and hour class action was filed against, inter
alia, FCLA, LP and The Fat Cow, LLC, on behalf of a class of hourly employees at the

Restaurant. The lawsuit alleges that, as a result of Seibel’s management practices, the Restaurant
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failed to provide those employees with proper meal and rest breaks, failed to pay all wages to
which those employees were entitled, failed to timely pay those employees, and failed to provide
those employees with timely and accurate wage statements. As a result of Seibel’s management
practices, at least one other employee filed successful claims with the California Labor
Commissioner, which claims Seibel hid from GR and Mr. Ramsay.

31.  As aresult of Seibel’s incompetent management, the Restaurant lost money. GR
was belatedly forced to appoint new and competent management. GR requested that Seibel
provide funds to continue and improve operations and for defense of the ongoing class action
lawsuit. Seibel repeatedly refused to provide any such funds. As a result, GR was forced in late
2013 to provide its own additional operating and defense funds without contribution from Seibel.
The Restaurant could not have continued operations without that unilateral infusion by GR.

32.  After the Restaurant opened, a dispute over the “The Fat Cow” trademark arose
with a restaurant in Ilorida. The I'lorida restaurant alleged that The Fat Cow, LLC and FCLA,
LP were infringing on its trademark by their use of “The Fat Cow.” That dispute was settled
with FCLA, LP and The Fat Cow, LLC agreeing that they would discontinue use of the “The Fat
Cow” name. Seibel did nothing to resolve the dispute, leaving representatives of GR and Mr.
Ramsay tfo resolve it on their own.

33. By early 2014, the Restaurant could not continue to operate because: (a) it was
unprofitable due in part to the legal proceedings caused by Seibel, and could not pay its bills
without additional contributions from Seibel, which he refused to make; (b) the terms of the
trademark dispute resolution precluded further use of the “The Fat Cow” name; and (c) the
parties could not agree on who should manage the Restaurant, how it could be managed in a

manner that met appropriate standards, or whether it should continue operating. Despite his own
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acts precluding continued operation of the Restaurant, Seibel unilaterally demanded — in
violation of the provisions in the applicable agreements requiring unanimity — that the Restaurant
remain open. It nevertheless closed because it simply could no longer operate.

34. Seibel has, without consent, authority, or right of any kind, withdrawn funds —
including most recently $10,000.00 — from FCLA, LP accounts. Seibel has also personally
enriched himself by making self-dealing agreements with The Fat Cow vendors and through
other dishonest dealings or attempted dealings.

35. Seibel has filed a lawsuit against Mr. Ramsay and GR making malicious and false
accusations about The Fat Cow. Seibel has also interfered with the business operations of Mr.
Ramsay and his associated entities by misrepresenting, worldwide, his purported rights to license
Mr. Ramsay’s associated names, trademarks, and restaurant concepts. Seibel has done so
intentionally.

36.  Seibel has in bad faith attempted to preclude Mr, Ramsay’s opening of a new
restaurant on the original leased premises, even though a new such restaurant could have limited
back rent liability for the original The Fat Cow and is expressly permitted by the terms of the
Limited Partnership Agreement of FCLA, LP. Now, no such restaurant will be opened.

37.  Seibel has refused to cooperate in having The Fat Cow, LL.C and FCLA, LP file
for bankruptcy. Seibel’s refusal to consent to the filing of bankruptcy has caused FCLA, LP and
The Fat Cow, LLC to incur additional debts, including for defending the class action, which
would not have been incurred had bankruptcy been filed.

COUNT I
(For Dissolution Of The Fat Cow, LL.C By GR)

38. GR incorporates the allegations contained in paragraphs 1 through 37.
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39. Section 17707.03(b)(1) of the California Revised Uniform Limited Liability
Company Act (“RULLCA?”) provides that a limited liability company may be dissolved by the
Court when “[i]t is not reasonably practicable to carry on the business in conformity with the
articles of organization or operating agreement.”

40. Section 17707.03(b)(2) of the California RULLCA provides that a limited
liability company may be dissolved by the Court when “[d]issolution is reasonably necessary for
the protection of the rights or interests of the complaining members.”

41.  Section 17707.03(b)(3) of the California RULLCA provides that a limited
liability company may be dissolved by the Court when “[t]he business of the limited liability
company has been abandoned.”

42.  Section 17707.03(b)(4) of the California RULLCA provides that a limited
liability company may be dissolved by the Court when “[t}he management of the limited liability
company is deadlocked or subject to internal dissention.”

43.  Dissolution is required under these provisions because:

e The entity no longer serves any purpose. It was formed for the purposes of’ (a)

being the General Partner of FCLA, LP, an entity owning The Fat Cow, a
restaurant now closed and never to be re-opened; and (b) potentially to provide
similar services for other “The Fat Cow” restaurants if there was unanimous
agreement to form them. GR will make no such agreement.

° Management is deadlocked. The sole members, GR and Seibel, and their

management designees, Seibel and Mr. Ramsay, have not agreed and cannot agree

on anything concerning the Restaurant or any other operations of The Fat Cow,

10
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LLC or FCLA, LP. Indeed, the parties are bitterly opposed in the malicious
ongoing related lawsuit filed by Seibel, illustrating their inability to agree.

° GR needs protection from any further involvement with Seibel, as such an
affiliation sullies GR’s own reputation, and provides further opportunities for
Seibel to engage in self-dealing for his own enrichment and to make self-
interested misrepresentations about his authority over the invaluable Ramsay
name, trademarks and concepts.

44.  Accordingly, judicial dissolution of The Fat Cow, LLC should be granted.

COUNT II

(For Dissolution Of FCLA, L.P By GR Individually And Derivatively On Behalf Of The Fat
Cow, LLC)

45.  GR incorporates the allegations in paragraphs 1 through 44.

46.  Section 17-802 of the Delaware Revised Uniform Limited Partnership Act
provides that a limited partnership may be dissolved by the Court when it is “not reasonably
practicable to carry on the business in conformity with the partnership agreement.”

47.  Itis no longer reasonably practicable for FCLA, LP to operate the Restaurant in
conformity with the partnership agreement. The Restaurant has closed because of financial
issues, the inability of The Fat Cow, LLC managers to agree on restaurant operations, and the
trademark dispute. The parties are hopelessly deadlocked and engaged in bitter litigation, and
FCLA, LP has no ongoing business. Perpetuation of the entity serves no purpose, other than
providing opportunities for Seibel to engage in self-dealing for his own enrichment and to make
self-interested misrepresentations about his authority over the invaluable Ramsay name,
trademarks and concepts. Further perpetuation of the entity will also sully the reputation of GR

and Mr. Ramsay through prolonging the association with Seibel.

11

316
AA00774



48.  Accordingly, judicial dissolution of FCLA, LP should be granted. Such
dissolution should include appropriate accounting to GR for the additional amounts it has

provided to FCLA, LP in amounts not matched by Seibel.

WHEREFORE, GR, individually and derivatively on behalf of The Fat Cow LLC,
demands that judgment be entered ordering:
1. on the First Cause of action, the dissolution of The Fat Cow, LLC, and the

winding up of its affairs;

2. on the Second Cause of Action, dissolution of FCLA, LP, and the winding up its
affairs; and
3. the award Plaintiff attorneys’ fees and costs, and such other and further relief as

this Court deems proper.

DATED: New York, New York MITCHELL SJL.BERBERG & KNUPP LLP
May 27,2014 ;‘ )
By:

Paul D. Montclare

pam@msk.com

12 East 49th Street, 30th Floor
New York, New York 10017-1028
Telephone: (212) 509-3900
Facsimile: (212) 509-7239

and
Kevin E. Gaut , Esq. (admitted in California: pro hac
vice motion to be submitted)
keg@msk.com
11377 West Olympic Boulevard
Los Angeles, California 90064-1683
Telephone: (310) 312-2000
Facsimile: (310) 3012-3100

Attorneys for Plaintiff
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(FILED: NEW YORK COUNTY CLERK 06/27/2014] INDEX NO. 651618/2014
NYSCEF DOC. NO. 8 : RECEIVED NYSCEF: 06/27/2014

SUPREME COURT OF THE STATE OF NEW YORK

COUNTY OF NEW YORK

e e oo X Index No. 651618/14
GR US LICENSING, LP, a Delaware limited

partnership for itself and derivatively on behalf of

THE ¥AT COW LLC, a California limited

liability company,

Plaintiff,

~against-
DEFENDANT’'S ANSWER

ROWEN SFEIBEL,

Defendant,
and
THE FAT COW 1.1LC,

Nominal Defendant.

Defendant, Rowen Seibel, by his attorneys, Certilman Balin Adler & Hyman,

LLP, as and for his answer to the Complaint of Plaintiff, GR US Licensing, LP, a

Delaware iinﬁted partnership for itself and derivatively on behalf of The Fat Cow LLC,

a California limited liability company, dated May 27, 2014 (the ”C{}mpiaint”) allege as

follows:

1. Defendant denieé the allegations contained 11‘1 paragraph 1 of the

Compiai_lﬁt':, except Defendant _ad_fni_ts thét the action secks certain relief and denies
Plaintitfs :«;ﬁe entitied to suc:hl reﬁéf

) | Defendant denies the allegations contéinéd: -inl _pai*agraph 2 of the

Complaint, except admits Defendant and Mr. Ramsay became “involved” in 2011.

2872850.1
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3. Defendant denies the allegations contained in paragraph 3 of the
Complaint.

4, Defendant denies the allegations in paragraph 4 of the Complaint.

5. Defendant denies the allegations in paragraph 5 of the Complaint.

6. Defendant denies the allegations in paragraph 6 of the Complaint.

7. Detendant denies the allegations in paragraph 7 of the Complaint.

8. Defendant denies the allegation in paragraph 8 of the Complaint,
except admits that Seibel rejected Mr. Ramsay’s unilateral attempts to close the
Restaurant.

9. Defendant denies the allegations contained in paragraph 9 of the
Complaint, except admits that Mr. Ramsay forced the Restaurant to close and that
Defendant sued Mr. Ramsay and GR for their fraudulent and other misconduct, and
refers to the Complaint filed by Defendant for its full and accurate contents.

10.  Defendant denies the allegations in paragraph 10 of the Complaint.

11.  Defendant denies the allegations in paragraph 11 of the Complaint.

12.  Defendant denies the allegations in paragraph 12 of the Complaint.

RESPONSE TO PARTIES AND DERIVATIVE CLAIMS

13 Defendant admits that allegations in paragraph 13 and further

stafes that GR is owned and cont_rblled by Mr. Ramsay
14, Defendant admits the allegation in paragraph 14 of the Complaint.

15.  Defendant admits the allegation in paragraph 15 of the Complaint.

2872890 1
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16,  Paragraph 16 seeks a legal conclusion, a response to which is not
required, and Defendant refers to the Complaint for its full and accurate contents.
17.  Defendant denies the allegations set forth in paragraph 17 of the

Complaint.

TURISDICTION AND VENUE

18.  Paragraph 18 seeks a legal conclusion, a response to which is not
required, except to the extent a response is required, Defendant admits the allegation
contained in paragraph 18 of the Complaint.

19.  Paragraph 19 seeks a legal conclusion, a response to which is not
required, except to the extent a response is required, Defendant denies the allegations
contained in paragraph 19 of the Complaint.

20.  Paragraph 20 seeks a legal conclusion, a response to which is not
required, except to the extent a response is required, Defendant denies the allegations

contained in paragraph 20 of the Complaint.

STATEMENT OF FACTS

21.  Defendant admits the allegations contained in paragraph 21 of the

Complaint.

22, 'Defendé_nt admits the allegafions c_-(}ntained in paragraph 22 of the

. ! | -Compla_int.
-2, Defend.ant admits the ailegations éqntaihed in paragraph 23 of the

Complaint, and refers to the LLC Agreement for its tull and accurate contents,

3
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24.  Defendant denies the allegations contained in paragraph 24 of the

Complaint and refers to the FCLA LP Agreement for its full and accurate contents.

25.  Defendant admits the allegations contained in paragraph 25 of the
Complaint.

26.  Defendant denies the allegations contained in paragraph 26 of the
Complaint, and refers to the FCLA LP Agreement for its full and accurate contents.

27. Defendant admits the allegations contained in paragraph 27 of the
Complaint as they relate to Seibel. Defendants deny the allegations in paragraph 27 as
they relate to GR and states that GR misrepresented te Seibel its intentions.

28.  Defendant denies the allegations contained in paragraph 28 of the
Complaint.

29.  Defendant denies the allegations contained in paragraph 29 of the
Complaint.

30.  Defendant rdenies the allegations contained in paragraph 30 of the
Complaint, and refers to the Complaint filed in the purported class action for its full
and accurate contents.

31. Defe_ndant denies the allegations contained in paragraph 31 of the

- ] -:_Complaint

32. Defé_ndaﬁt.denies the allegat_iqné contained in paragraph 32 of the
‘V-I-fC(}mpiaint, except adrmts 'tlh_e. ,a-llegatians in the second S_entence of paragraph 32, and
-ﬁ_ll‘th@:f states that Ramsay fraudulently claimed he would handle the trademark issue,

4
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and failed to resolve the trademark issue because he intended to use the trademark
issue as an excuse to close the profitable restaurant.

33.  Defendant denies the allegations contained in paragraph 33 of the
Complaint.

34.  Defendant denies the allegations contained in paragraph 34 of the
Complaint.

35.  Defendant denies the allegations contained in paragraph 35 of the
Complaint, except admits he filed an action against Mr. Ramsay and GR and refers to
the Complaint filed for a full and accurate depiction of the allegations therein.

36.  Defendant denies the allegations contained in paragraph 36 of the

Complaint.

37.  Defendant denies the allegations contained in paragraph 37 of the

Complaint.
COUNT1I
(For Dissolution of The Fat Cow, LLC by GR)
38. D_efendant repeats, reiterates and realleges each and every

allegation set forth above in paragraphs 1 through 38 as if set forth more fully herein at

E - length.

39.._' '.-'.I’.aragraph 39 states a legal conclusion to which a response is not

. required.
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40.
required.

41,
required.

42.
required.

43.
Complaint.

44.
Complaint.

45,

Paragraph 40 states a legal conclusion to which a response is not

Paragraph 41 states a legal conclusion to which a response is not

Paragraph 42 states a legal conclusion to which a response is not

Defendant denies the allegations contained in paragraph 43 of the

Defendant denies the allegations contained in paragraph 44 of the

Defendant repeats, reiterates and realleges each and every

allegation set forth above in paragraphs 1 through 45 as if set forth more fully herein at

length.

46.
required.
Compiaix}tr
Cﬂmﬁlaiﬁ{'_. .

- 49

Paragraph 46 states a legal conclusion to which a response is not

Defendant denies the allegations contained in paragraph 47 of the

- Detendant deﬁies:flfla allegations contained in péragraph 48 of the

Defendant deﬂiés 't'hzlit Plaintiffs are entitled tc} any relief for the

claims contained in the Complant.
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AS AND FOR A FIRST AFFIRMATIVE DEFENSE

50. The complaint fails to state a claim upon which relief can be

granted.

AS AND FOR A SECOND AFFIRMATIVE DEFENSE

51.  Plaintiffs are barred from recovery in this action by the doctrine of

unclean hands.

AS AND FOR A THIRD AFFIRMATIVE DEFENSE

52. Plaintiff has acted in bad faith and is not entitled to the relief

requested in the Complaint.

AS AND FOR A FOURTH AFFIRMATIVE DEFENSE

53.  This court lacks jurisdiction over the claims asserted in the

Complaint.

AS AND FOR A FIFTH AFFIRMATIVE DEFENSE

54.  This action was not commenced in the form prescribed by statute.

AS AND FOR A SIXTH AFFIRMATIVE DEFENSE

55, The relief sought by the Plaintitfs should be denied because there

are less drastic remedies available to them for the harms alleged.
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WHEREFORE, Defendant Rowen Seibel respectfully demands judgment

dismissing the Complaint in its entirety, together with the costs and disbursements

herein, and such other, further, and different relief as to the Court seems just, proper

and equitable.

Dated: East Meadow, New York
June 27, 2014

TO:
Attorneys for Plaintiff
12 East 49th Street - 30th Floor
New York, New York 10017-1028
(212} 509-3900

».
£ )

CERTILMAN BALIN ADLER & HYMAN, LLP

By: /= T
Paul B. Sweeney

Attorneys for Defendant

90 Merrick Avenue - 9th Floor

East Meadow, New York 11554

(516) 296-7000

MITCHELL SILBERBERG & KNUPP LLP
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INDEX NO.

NYSCEF DOC. NO. 64
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RECEIVED NYSCEF:

SUPREME COURT OF THE STATE OF NEW YORK

COUNTY OF NEW YORK

ROWEN SEIBEL, individually and on behalf:
of FCLA, LP and THE FAT COW, LLC,

Plaintiffs,
V.

GORDON RAMSAY and G.R. US
LICENSING, LP,

Defendants,

and
FCLA, LP and THE FAT COW, LLC,

Nominal Defendants.

GORDON RAMSAY and G.R. US
LICENSING, LP, Individually and on behalf:
of:FCLA, LP and THE FAT COW, LLC

Defendants-Counterclaimants,

V.

ROWAN SEIBEL,

Plaintiff-Counterdefendant,

and
FCLA, LP, and THE FAT COW, LLC

Nominal Defendants-Counterdefendants.
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HON. MARCY S. FRIEDMAN

FIRST AMENDED VERIFIED ANSWER
AND COUNTERCLAIM OF GORDON
RAMSAY and G.R. US LICENSING, LP,
individually and on behalf of FCLA, LP and
THE FAT COW, LL.C
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ANSWER

The defendants Gordon Ramsay (“Ramsay’’) and G.R. US Licensing, LP (“GR”)
(collectively the “defendants™), by their attorneys Miichell Silberberg & Knupp LLP, answer the
complaint, on information and belief, as follows:

1. Deny the allegations contained in Paragraph | of the complaint, except admit that
the plaintiffs’ action alleges various causes of action and seeks various remedies; and further
aver that upon defendants’ motion, pursuant to CPLR 3211 (a)(7) and (a)(1), the Court in this
action, by the decision and order of the Hon. Marcy S. Friedman, J.S.C. entered on March 27,
2015, (NYSCEF Doc. 39), dismissed “all causes of actions [in the complaint], except the
derivative cause of action for breach of fiduciary duty and the direct and derivative causes of
action for breach of contract with respect to The Fat Cow LLC.” This order will hereinafter be

referred to as the ““Order of Dismissal’.

2. Deny the allegations contained in Paragraph 2 of the complaint.
3. Admit the allegations contained in Paragraph 3 of the complaint.
4, Deny that Ramsay resides in Los Angeles, CA, and otherwise admit the

allegations contained in Paragraph 4 of the complaint.
5. Admit the first sentence in Paragraph 5 of the complaint; with respect to matters
relevant to this action, admit that Ramsay was an agent for GR with respect to actions taken by

GR; and otherwise deny the remaining allegations contained in Paragraph 5 of the complaint.

6. Admit the allegations contained in Paragraph 6 of the complaint.
7. Admit the allegations contained in Paragraph 7 of the complaint.
7228893.4
2
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8. Admit only that FCLA, LP is a limited partnership, organized under the laws of
the State of Delaware, and has its principal offices at 200 Central Park South, New York, New
York, and otherwise deny the allegations contained in Paragraph 8 of the complaint.

9. Admit the allegations contained in Paragraph 9 of the complaint.

10.  Admit the allegations contained in Paragraph 10 of the complaint.

11. Admit the allegations contained in Paragraph 11 of the complaint.

12.  Refer to the FCLA Limited Partnership Agreement for the complete terms and
contents thereof, which are admitted and otherwise deny the allegations contained in Paragraph
12 of the complaint.

13.  Refer to the FCLA Limited Partnership Agreement and The Fat Cow LLC
Agreement for the complete terms and contents thereof, which are admitted, and otherwise deny
the allegations contained in Paragraph 13 of the complaint.

14.  Deny knowledge of information sufficient to answer the allegations contained in
Paragraph 14 of the complaint because these allegations are ambiguous and call for a legal
conclusion, and on that hasis deny these allegations.

15. With respect to the first sentence in Paragraph 15 of the complaint, deny
knowledg_e of information sufficient to answer these allegations because these allegations are
vague and ambiguous and on that basis deny these allegations; and deny the remaining
allegations contained in Paragraph 15 of the complaint, except aver that Ramsay’s afﬁligted
companies have an interest in Gordon Ramsay Steak, BurGR by Gordon Ramsay, and Pub &
Grill, all of which have locations in Las Vegas, Nevada.

16.  With respect to the first sentence of Paragraph 16 of the complaint, deny

knowledge of information sufficient to answer the allegations because these allegations are
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vague and ambiguous and on that basis deny these allegations; and deny the remaining
allegations contained in Paragraph 16 of the complaint, except admit only that Ramsay had
discussions with Plaintiff Rowen Seibel (“Seibel”) about the possibility of opening a restaurant
in Los Angeles, CA.

17.  Deny the allegations contained in Paragraph 17 of the complaint, except admit
“The Fat Cow” name was discussed.

18.  Deny the allegations contained in Paragraph 18 of the complaint, except admit
that trademarking “The Fat Cow” name was discussed.

19.  Admit only that Ramsay entered into a certain retail center lease agreement, dated
November 18, 2011 as amended, modified, and supplemented from time to time, with GFM,
LLC, d/b/a The Grove, for certain described premises at a retail center known as The Grove in
Los Angeles, California (the “Lease”), and refer to the Lease for the complete terms and contents
thereof, which are admitted, and otherwise deny the allegations contained in Paragraph 19 of the
complaint.

20.  Admit only that Ramsay entered the Lease and refer to the Lease for the complete
terms and contents thereof, which are admitted, and otherwise deny the allegations contained in
Paragraph 20 of the complaint.

21.  Admit only that Ramsay entered the Lease and refer to the Lease for the complete
terms and contents thereof, which are admitted, and otherwisc deny the allegations contained in
Paragraph 21 of the complaint.

22.  Admit the allegations contained in Paragraph 22 of the complaint.

23.  Admit only that Seibel knew that the US trademark application for “The Fat

Cow” referred to in Paragraph 22 of the complaint had not been approved and that there was an

4
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existing registered trademark filed by a Flonda restaurant, “Las Vacas Gordas”, which is
Spanish for “The Fat Cow”, and otherwise deny the remaining allegations contained in
Paragraph 23 of the complaint.

24.  Deny knowledge or information sufficient to answer the allegations set forth in
Paragraph 24 of the complaint because these allegations allege incomplete, unattributed
quotations by unidentified persons, and on that basis defendants deny the allegations contained in
Paragraph 24 of the complaint.

25. Admit the allegations contained in Paragraph 25 of the complaint.

26. Deny the allegations contained in Paragraph 26 of the complaint, except admit
that the restaurant opened under the name “The Fat Cow™.

27.  Deny knowledge of information sufficient to answer the allegations set forth in
Paragraph 27 of the complaint because these allegations allege incomplete, unattributed
quotations by unidentified persons, and on that basis defendants deny the allegations contained in
Paragraph 27 of the complaint.

28. Deny the allegations contained in Paragraph 28 of the complaint, except admit
that the restaurant opened under the name “The Fat Cow”.

29. Admit the allegations contaiped in Paragraph 29 of the complaint.

30.  Admit the allegations contained in Paragraph 30 of the complaint, and refer to
The Fat Cow LLC Agreement for the complete terms and contents thereof.

31. Admit the allegations contained in Paragraph 31 of the complaint, and refer to the

Fat Cow LLC Agreement for the complete terms and contents thereof.
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32.  Referto The Fat Cow LLC Agreement for the complete terms and contents
thereotf, which are admitted, and otherwise deny the allegations contained in Paragraph 32 of the
complaint.

33.  Admit the allegations contained in Paragraph 33 of the complaint.

34.  Admit the allegations contained in Paragraph 34 of the complaint.

35.  Refer to the terms of the FCLA Partnership Agreement for the complete contents
and terms thereof, which are admitted, and otherwise deny the allegations contained 1n Paragraph
35 of the complaint.

36.  Refer to the FCLA Partnership Agreement for the complete contents and terms
thereof, which are admitted, and otherwise deny the allegations contained in Paragraph 36 of the
complaint.

37.  Refer to the FCLA Partnership Agreement for the complete contents and terms
thereof, which are admitted, and otherwise deny the allegations contained in Paragraph 37 of the
complaint.

38.  Refer to the FCLA Partnership Agreement for the complete contents and terms
thereof, which are admitted, and otherwise deny the allegations contained in Paragraph 38 of the
complaint.

39.  Refer to the FCLA Partnership Agreement for the complete contents and terms
therecof, which are admitted, and otherwise deny the allegations contained in Paragraph 39 of the
complaint.

40.  Refer to the License Agreement for the complete contents and terms thereof,
which are admitted, and otherwise deny the allegations contained in Paragraph 40 of the

complaint.
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41.  Admit the allegations contained in Paragraph 41 of the complaint

42.  Refer to the FCLA Partnership Agreement and License Agreement for the
complete contents and terms thereof, which are admitted, and otherwise deny the allegations
contained in Paragraph 42 of the complaint.

43.  Refer to the License Agreement for the complete contents and terms thereof,
which are admitted, and otherwise deny the allegations contained in Paragraph 43 of the
complaint.

44,  Refer to the License Agreement for the complete contents and terms thereof,
which are admitted, and otherwise deny the allegations contained in Paragraph 44 of the
complaint. |

45. Refer to the FCLA Partnership Agreement, The Fat Cow LLC Agreement, Lease
Assignment and the License Agreement for the complete contents and terms thereof, which are
admitted, and otherwise deny the allegations contained in Paragraph 45 of the complaint.

46.  Admit the allegations contained in Paragraph 46 of the complaint.

47.  Refer to the Lease Assignment and Assumption Agreement for the complete
contents and terms thereof, which are admitted, and otherwise deny the allegations contained in
Paragraph 47 of the complaint. °

48.  Deny the allegations contained in Paragraph 48 of the complaint.

49.  Admit the allegations conta-ined in Paragraph 49 of the complaint.

50.  Refer to the Indemnification Agreement for the complete contents and terms
thereof, which are admitted, and aver that Seibel is bound by its terms as written, and otherwise

deny the allegations contained in Paragraph 50 of the complaint.
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51. Admit that FCLA and Upper Ground Enterprises, Inc. entered into an agreement
for the television show “Hell’s Kitchen,” starring Gordon Ramsay (“Hell’s Kitchen Agreement”)
and refer to the complete contents and terms thereof, and further admit that the Hell’s Kitchen
was broadcast during prime time domestically by Fox Broadcasting Company, as well as
internationally by various other television providers, and otherwise deny knowledge or
information sufficient to answer the allegations set forth in Paragraph 51 of the complaint
because these allegations are incomplete, vague and ambiguous and on that basis defendants
deny the remaining allegations contained in Paragraph 51 of the complainf.

52.  Deny knowledge or information sufficient to answer the allegations set forth in
Paragraph 52 of the complaint because these allegations are incomplete, vague and ambiguous
and on that basis defendants deny the allegations contained in Paragraph 52 of the complaint.

53. Deny the allegations contained in Paragraph 53 of the complaint, and refer to the
Order of Dismissal.

54, Deny the allegations contained in Paragraph 54 of the complaint, and refer to the
Order of Dismissal.

55.  Deny the allegations contained in Paragraph 55 of the complaint, except admit
that the restaurant opened under the name “The Fat Cow™.

56. Deny the allegations contained in Paragraph 56 of the complaint.

57.  Admit only that “The Fat Cow” officially opened on or about October 1, 2012 and
otherwise deny the allegations contained in Paragraph 57 of the complaint.

58.  Deny knowledge or information sufficient to answer Paragraph 58 of the

complaint because the term “positive cash flow” is vague and ambiguous and 1s susceptible to
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various interpretations, and also because this is a compound allegation covering different points
in time and on these bases deny the allegations contained in Paragraph 58 of the complaint.

59. Admit that on or about February 27, 2013, Ramsay received written Notice of
Default with respect to the Lease, and refer to such written notice for the contents thereof, and
otherwise deny the allegations contained in Paragraph 59 of the complaint.

60. Admit that Ramsay met with the Landlord, and recetved a letter dated April 25,
2013 and refer to such letter for the contents thereof, and otherwise deny the allegations
contained in Paragraph 60 of the complaint.

61. Refer to the April 25, 2013 letter for the contents thereof, and otherwise deny the
allegations contained in Paragraph 61 of the complaint.

62.  Deny the allegations contained in Paragraph 62 of the complaint.

63.  Deny the allegations contained in Paragraph 63 of the complaint.

64.  Deny knowledge or information sufficient to answer the allegations set forth in
Paragraph 64 of the complaint because these allegations are vague and ambiguous and on that
basis defendants deny the allegations contained in Paragraph 64 of the complaint.

63. Deny the allegations contained in Paragraph 65 of the complaint.

66.  Admit that Ramsay received a notice from an attormey representing a restaurant in
Florida, Las Vacas Gordas, claiming that ““The Fat Cow” was infringing upon the mark, “Las
Vacas Gordas,” and refer to the contents of that notice, and otherwise deny the allegations
contained in Paragraph 66 of the complaint.

67. Admit that on or about December of 2013, a written “Settlement Agreement” was
executed between FCLA LP, and The Fat Cow, LLC, and the owners of the “Las Vacas Gordas”

(“The Fat Cow”) the tradename, which among other things, permitted FCLA LP and The Fat
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Cow LLC to use “The Fat Cow” name for the restaurant at the Grove through February 28, 2014,
and refer to that Settlement Agreement for the terms thereof, and otherwise deny the allegations
contained in Paragraph 67 ot the complaint.

68.  Deny the allegations contained in Paragraph 68 of the complaint.

69.  Deny the allegations contained in Paragraph 69 of the complaint.

70.  Deny the allegations contained in Paragraph 70 of the complaint.

71. Deny the allegations contained in Paragraph 71 of the complant.

72. Deny the allegations contained in Paragraph 72 of the complaint.

73.  Deny the allegations contained in Paragraph 73 of the complaint.

74, Deny the allegations contained in Paragraph 74 of the complaint.

75.  Deny knowledge or information sufficient to answer the allegations set forth in
Paragraph 75 of the complaint because these allegations are incomplete, vague and ambiguous,
and on that basis defendants deny the allegations contained 1n Paragraph 75 of the complaint,
except admit that other applications were filed with the USPTO.

76.  Deny the allegations contained in Paragraph 76 of the complaint.

77.  Deny the allegations contained in Paragraph 77 of the complaint.

78.  Deny the allegations contained Paragraph 78 of the complaint.

79. Admit that Andi Van Willigan worked in connection with the “Hell’s Kitchen”
and “Kitchen Nightmares” televisiog programs starring Gordon Ramsay, and otherwise deny the
allegations contained in Paragraph 79 of the complaint.

80.  Deny the allegations contained in Paragraph 80 of the complaint.

81.  Deny the allegations contained in Paragraph 81 of the complaint.

7228893 4
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82.  Deny knowledge of information sufficient to answer the allegations set forth in
the first clause in Paragraph 82 of the complaint, ending with the word “aptitude”, and otherwise
deny the allegations contained in Paragraph 82 of the complaint.

83.  Deny the allegations contained in Paragraph 83 of the complaint, but admit
compensating Van Willigan for the work she was performing at the “The Fat Cow” restaurant.

84.  Deny the allegations contained in Paragraph 84 of the complaint.

85. Deny knowledge or information sufficient to answer the allegations set forth in
Paragraph 85 of the complaint because these allegations are incomplete, vague and ambiguous,
and on that basis deny the allegations contained in Paragraph 85 of the complaint.

86.  Inresponse to Paragraph 86 of the complaint, aver that Seibel and Ramsay did not
reach a decision about opefation of the restaurant by unanimous consent and on that basis deny
the allegations contained in Paragraph 86 of the complaint.

87.  Inresponse to Paragraph 87 of the complaint, aver that Seibel and Ramsay did not
reach a decision about the operation of the restaurant by unanimous consent, and otherwise deny
knowledge of information sufficient to answer the allegations set forth in the first clause in
Paragraph 87 of the complaint because they are based on alleged statements made by and to
unidentified persons and because such allegations are vague and ambiguous, and otherwise deny
the allegations contained in Paragraph 87 of the complaint.

88.  Deny the allegations contained in Paragraph 88 of the complaint

89. Admit only that the staff at “The Fat Cow” restaurant were advised that the
restaurant would be closing, and aver that that Seibel and Ramsay did not unanimously agree on
any decision about the operation of the restaurant, and otherwise deny the allegations contained

in Paragraph 89 of the complaint.
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90.  Deny the allegations contained in Paragraph 90 of the complaint.
91.  Deny the allegations contained in Paragraph 91 of the complaint.

92.  Inresponse to Paragraph 92 of the complaint, refer to the WARN Notice for the

contents thereof, and otherwise deny the allegations contained in Paragraph 92 of the complaint.

93. Deny the allegations contained in Paragraph 93 of the complaint.

94, Deny the allegations contained in Paragraph 94 of the complaint.

95. Admit the allegations in the first sentence of Paragraph 95 of the complaint, and
otherwise deny the allegations contained in Paragraph 95 of the complaint.

96.  Deny the allegations contained in Paragraph 96 of the complaint.

97.  Deny the allegations contained in Paragraph 97 of the complaint.

98. With respect to the allegations in the first sentence of Paragraph 98 of the
complaint admit only that episodes began to air in or about April 2014, and otherwise deny the
allegations contained in Paragraph 98 of the complaint.

99.  Deny knowledge of information sufficient to answer the allegations set forth in
the first sentence in Paragraph 99 of the complaint which are vague and ambiguous and
otherwise deny the allegations contained in Paragraph 99 of the complaint.

100. Deny the allegations contained in Paragraph'100 of the complaint.

101.  Deny the allegations contained in Paragraph 101 of the complaint.

102.  Deny the allegations contained in Paragraph 102 of the complaint.

103.  With respect to the first sentence of Paragraph 103 of the complaint, deny
knowledge or information sufficient to answer the allegations set forth therein because these
allegations are incomplete, vague and ambiguous, and on that basis deny this allegation, and

otherwise deny the allegations contained in Paragraph 103 of the complaint.
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104. Deny knowledge or information sufficient to answer the allegations in Paragraph
104 of the complaint which are vague and ambiguous, and on that basis deny the allegations
contained in Paragraph 104 of the complaint.

105. Deny the allegations contained in Paragraph 105 of the complaint, and aver that a
trademark for “ Gordon Ramsay at the Grove” was filed with the USPTO on January 27, 2014.

106. Deny the allegations contained in Paragraph 106 of the complaint, and aver that a
trademark for “GR Roast” was filed with the USPTO on January 27, 2014.

107. Deny the allegations contained in Paragraph 107 of the co‘mplaint.

108.  Deny the allegations contained in Paragraph 108 of the complaint.

109. Deny the allegations contained in Paragraph 109 of the complaint.

110. Deny the allegations contained in Paragraph 110 of the complaint.

ANSWER TO FIRST CAUSE OF ACTION

AGAINST DEFENDANTS RAMSAY AND GR
(Breach of Fiduciary Duty and Self-Dealing)

111. Repeat and reallege each and every prior response to paragraphs 1-110 of the

complaint as if fully set forth herein.

112.  Portions of this cause of action were dismissed by the Order of Dismissal and
require no answer, and otherwise admit only that GR was contrqlled by Ramsay, and further
state that the allegations in Paragraph 112 of the complaint call for a legal conclusion which
requires no answer and on thaﬁ basis defendants deny the allegations contained in Paragraph 112

of the complaint.

113. Portions of this cause of action were dismissed by the Order of Dismissal and

require no answer, and further state that the allegations in Paragraph 113 of the complaint call for

13
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a legal conclusion which requires no answer and on that basis defendants deny the allegations
contained in Paragraph 113 of the complaint.

114.  Portions of this cause of action were dismissed by the Order of Dismissal and
require no answer, and further state that the allegations in Paragraph 114 of the complaint call for
a legal conclusion which requires no answer, and on that basis defendants deny the allegations
contained in Paragraph 114 of the complaint.

115. Portions of this cause of action were dismissed by the Order of Dismissal and
require no answer, and further state that the allegations in Paragraph 115 of the complaint call for
a legal conclusion which requires no answer, and on that basis defendants deny the allegations
contained in Paragraph 115 of the complaint.

116. Portions of this cause of action were dismissed by the Order of Dismissal and
require no answer, and otherwise defendants deny the allegations contained in Paragraph 116 of

the complaint.

117. Portions of this cause of action were dismissed by the Order of Dismissal and
require no answer, and otherwise defendants deny the allegations contained in Paragraph 117 of

the complaint.

ANSWER TO SECOND CAUSE OF ACTION
' AGAINST DEFENDANTS
(Fraud and Misappropriation)

118. Repeat and reallege each and every response to Paragraphs 1-117 of the complaint

as if fully set forth herein.

7228893 4

14

341
AA00799



119.  This cause of action was dismissed by the Order of Dismissal and requires no
answer, and otherwise defendants deny the allegations contained in Paragraph 119 of the
complaint.

120.  This cause of action was dismissed by the Order of Dismissal and requires no
answer, and otherwise defendants deny the allegations contained in Paragraph 120 of the
complaint.

121.  This cause of action was dismissed by the Order of Dismissal and requires no
answer, and otherwise defendants deny the allegations contained in Paragraph 121 of the
complaint.

122.  This cause of action was dismissed by the Order of Dismissal and requires no
answer, and otherwise defendants deny the allegations contained in Paragraph 122 of the
complaint.

123.  This cause of action was dismissed by the Order of Dismissal and requires no
answer, and otherwise defendants deny the allegations contained in Paragraph 123 of the
complaint.

124,  This cause of action was dismissed by the Order of Dismissal and requires no
answer, and otherwise defendants deny the allegations contained in Paragraph 124 of the
complaint.

125.  This cause of action was dismissed by the Order _of Dismissal and requires no
answer, and otherwise defendants deny the allegations contained in Paragraph 125 of the

complaint.

12288934
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126. This cause of action was dismissed by the Order of Dismissal and requires no
answer, and otherwise defendants deny the allegations contained in Paragraph 126 of the
complaint.

127.  This cause of action was dismissed by the Order of Dismissal and requires no
answer, and otherwise defendants deny the allegations contained in Paragraph 127 of the
complaint.

128.  This cause of action was dismissed by the Order of Dismissal and requires no
answer, and otherwise defendants deny the allegations contained in Paragraph 128 of the

complaint.

ANSWER TO THIRD CAUSE OF ACTION
(Conversion)

129.  Repeat and reallege each and every prior response to Paragraphs 1-128 of the
complaint as if fully set forth herein.

130. This cause of action was dismissed by the Order of Dismissal and requires no
answer, and otherwise defendants deny the allegations contained in Paragraph 136 of the
complaint.

131. -This cause of action was dismissed by the Qrder of Dismissal and requires no
answer, and otherwise defendants deny the allegations contained in Paragraph 131 of the
complaint.

132.  This cause of action was dismissed by the Order of Dismissal and requires no
answer, and otherwise defendants deny the allegations contained in Paragraph 132 of the

complaint.
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133. This cause of action was dismissed by the Order of Dismissal and requires no
answer, and otherwise defendants deny the allegations contained in Paragraph 133 of the
complaint.

134.  This cause of action was dismissed by the Order of Dismissal and requires no
answer, and otherwise defendants deny the allegations contained in Paragraph 134 of the

complaint.

ANSWER TO FOURTH CAUSE OF ACTION
AGAINST DEFENDANTS
(Breach of Contract)

135. Repeat and reallege each and every prior response to Paragraphs 1-134 of the

complaint as if fully set forth herein.

136. Portions of this cause of action were dismissed by the Order of Dismissal and

require no answer, and otherwise defendants deny the allegations contained in Paragraph 136 of

the complaint.

137. Portions of this cause of action were dismissed by the Order of Dismissal and

require no answer, and otherwise defendants deny the allegations contained in Paragraph 137 of

the complaint.

ANSWER TO FIFTH CAUSE OF ACTION
AGAINST DEFENDANTS
(Unjust Enrichment)

138. Repeat and reallege each and every response to Paragraphs 1-137 of the complain;[

as if fully set forth herein.
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139.  This cause of action was dismissed by the Order of Dismissal and requires no
answer, and otherwise defendants deny the allegations contained in Paragraph 139 of the
complaint.

140.  This cause of action was dismissed by the Order of Dismissal and requires no
answer, and otherwise defendants deny the allegations contained in Paragraph 140 of the
complaint.

141.  This cause of action was dismissed by the Order of Dismissal and requires no
answer, and otherwise defendants deny the allegations contained in Paragraph 141 of the

complaint.

ANSWER TO SIXTH CAUSE OF ACTION
AGAINST DEFENDANTS
(Fraud in the Inducement)

142.  Repeat and reallege each and every response to Paragraphs 1-141 of the complaint
as if fully set forth herein.

143.  This cause of action was dismissed by the Order of Dismissal and requires no
answer, and oth_erwise defendants deny the allegations contained in Paragraph 143 of the
complaint.

144. This cause of action was dismiss'ed by the Order of Dismissal and requires no
answer, and otherwise defendants deny the allegations contained in Paragraph 144 of the
complaint,

145.  This cause of action was dismissed by the Order of Dismissal and requires no
answer, and otherwise defendants deny the allegations contained in Paragraph 145 of the

complaint.
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146. This cause of action was dismissed by the Order of Dismissal and requires no
answer, and otherwise defendants deny the allegations contained in Paragraph 146 of the

complaint.

147.  This cause of action was dismissed by the Order of Dismissal and requires no
answer, and otherwise defendants deny the allegations contained in Paragraph 147 of the
complaint.

148.  This cause of action was dismissed by the Order of Dismissal and requires no

answer, and otherwise defendants deny the allegations contained in Paragraph 148 of the

complaint.
149.  This cause of action was dismissed by the Order of Dismissal and requires no

answer, and otherwise defendants deny the allegations contained in Paragraph 149 of the

complaint.

DEFENSES AND AFFIRMATIVE DEFENSES

FIRST DEFENSE

150. The complaint fails to state a claim upon which relief may be granted.

SECOND DEFENSE
151.  Plaintiffs’ breach of fiduciary duty and loyalty claims and causes of action, and all
equitable claims in the complaint, are barred by the doctrines of unclean hands, estoppel,

acquiescence, ratification, waiver, plaintiffs’ bad faith, and laches.

THIRD DEFENSE

152. Plaintiffs’ claims and causes of action are barred because of Plaintiff Seibel’s

wrongful, culpable and bad faith conduct.
7228893.4
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FOURTH DEFENSE

153. Plaintiffs’ claims and causes of action based on breach of fiduciary duty, breach
of loyalty, and breach of contract are barred by (i) Plaintiff Seibel’s breaches of fiduciary duty
and duty of loyalty owed to the defendants and to The Fat Cow LLC and FCLA LP, and (ii)
Seibel’s breaches of contract. These breaches of duty and contract are alleged in the defendants’
counterclaim in this action, which are incorporated herein by reference.

FIFTH DEFENSE

154.  Plaintiffs’ breach of contract claims are barred in whole or in part because

performance of the contracts by defendants was frustrated, impossible or rendered commercially

impracticable in that inter alia the managers of The Fat Cow LLC were not able to make
material decisions upon unanimous consent, no funds were available to operate “The Fat Cow”
restaurant, and because of the wrongful conduct of the Plamntiff Seibel as set forth in the
defendants’ counterclaims in this action.

SIXTH DEFENSE

155.  Plaintiffs’ breach of contract clairﬁs are barred, in whole or in part, by plaintiffs’
failure to fulfill a condition precedent to defendants’ duty to perform, if any, because the
managers of The Fat Cow, LLC were not able to not make material decisions upon unanimous
consent with respect to the management of The Fat Cow, LLC, FCLA LP or operation of “The
Fat Cow” restaurant.

SEVENTH DEFENSE

156. Plaintiffs’ breach of contract claims are barred by their failure to mitigate any

alleged damages.
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EIGHTH DEFENSE
157.  Plaintiffs’ breach of contract claims are barred by the statute of frauds.
NINTH DEFENSE
158.  Plaintiffs’ breach of contract claims are barred under the parol evidence rule.

TENTH DEFENSE

159.  Plaintiffs’ claims are barred by the applicable statute of limitations.

ELEVENTH DEFENSE

160.  All causes of actions in the complaint, except the derivative cause of action for
breach of fiduciary duty and the direct and derivative causes of action for breach of contract with
respect to The Fat Cow, LLC, are dismissed and barred pursuant to the decision and order of the
Hon. Marcy S. Friedman, J.S.C. entered in this case on March 27, 2015, (NYSCEF Doc. 39),
which is the law of the case.

TWELFTH DEFENSE

161. Plaintiffs lack the capacity or standing to assert all or some of the causes of action
asserted in the complaint.
THIRTEENTH DEFENSE
162. Plaintiffs’ claims are barred, in whole or in part, by the business judgment rule.

FOURTEENTH DEFENSE

163.  Plaintiffs’ claims are barred, in whole or in part, by the manager’s privilege.

FIFTEENTH DEFENSE

164. Defendants hereby give notice of their intention to rely upon such other and
further defenses as may become available or apparent during pretrial proceedings in this action

and hereby reserve their rights to amend this answer and assert all such defenses.
7228893.4
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WHEREFORE, Defendants Gordon Ramsay and G.R. US Licensing, LP respectfully
demand judgment against the Plaintiffs dismissing all claims and causes of action in the
complaint and awarding to defendants Gordon Ramsay and G.R. US Licensing, LP, attorneys’

fees and costs, and such other relief as this Court may deem just and proper.

VERIFIED COUNTERCLAIM

Gordon Ramsay and G.R. US Licensing, LP individually and on behalf of nominal
defendants The Fat Cow, I.LLC and FCLA, LP (collectively, Ramsay and GR are referred to
herein as “counterclaimants”), by their attorneys Mitchell Sitberberg & Knupp LLP, for their

counterclaim against Rowen Seibel (“Seibel”), allege, on information and belief, as follows:

PARTIES
1. Counterclaimant Gordon Ramsay (“Ramsay”) is an individual.
2. Counterclaimant G.R. US Licensing, LP (“GR”) 1s a Delaware limited partnership

affiliated with Ramsay. GR is a limited partner in FCLA, LP and a member of The Fat Cow,
LLC.

3. Seibel 1s an individual residing in the State of New York.

4, FCLA, LP (“FCLA™)is a Delaware limited partnership. Counterclaimants GR
and nominal counterdefendant The Fat Cow, LLC bring certain claims in this counterclaim
derivatively on behalf of nominal counterdefendant FCLA.

5. The Fat Cow, LLC is a California limited liability company. Counterclaimant GR
brings certain claims in this counterclaim derivatively on behalf of nominal counterdefendant

The Fat Cow, LLC.
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FACTS

Background of Ramsayv and Seibel

6. Gordon Ramsay is a world-renowned chef, author and television personality. He
operates over two-dozen restaurants, which have received numerous awards. He also has five,
successful, prime-time television shows in the United States, including Hell’s Kitchen, Kitchen
Nightmares, Hotel Hell, and Master Chef. Ramsay’s Hell’s Kitchen show is in its twelfth
season.

7. In 2011, Ramsay planned to open, through an affiliated entity, “The Fat Cow,” a
new farm-to-table restaurant. Ramsay planned to open the restaurant at an upscale outdoor
shopping plaza in Los Angeles called “The Grove.” He intended that Andi Van Willigan, one of:
his long-time assistant chefs who has also participated in Ramsay’s television programs, would
operate the restaurant day-to-day. |

8. When Seibel learned that Ramsay intended to open the Los Angeles restaurant, he
asked to be included. Although Ramsay had no need for Seibel’s money, and although Seibel
offered no particular talents or expertise that would aid in the new restaurant, Ramsay agrced to
include Seibel in the Los Angeles restaurant plans as an accommodation to Seibel because Seibel
and Ramsay had been involved in other restaurant ventures.

Restaurant Operations and lL.ease

9. On November 18, 2011, before Seibel became involved, Ramsay personally
entered into a lease agreement (the “Lease Agreement”) for the restaurant space at The Grove
with GFM, LLC (“GFM?”) as landlord. Van Willigan later also agreed to become personally

liable under the Lease Agreement. The rent under the Lease Agreement was significant — for ten
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years at roughly $50,000 per month. (The exact rent varied as common maintenance expenses,
utilities, and other charges changed over time) See, e.g., Lease Agreement, Article 3.

10.  The Los Angeles “The Fat Cow” restaurant opened in Fall 2012. At about the
same time, Seibel’s investment and the operations of the “The Fat Cow” were structured as
follows. Through a Limited Liability Company Agreement dated October 12, 2012 (“The Fat
Cow, LLC Agreement”), Seibel and GR formed nominal counterdefendant The Fat Cow, LLC,
as a California limited liability company. GR and Seibel were the sole members, and Ramsay
and Seibel were the exclusive managers, of The Fat Cow, LLC. See The Fat Cow, LLC
Agreement, Articles 5 and 6.

11.  Through an October 12, 2012 Limited Partnership Agreement (the “FCLA LP
Agreement”), the parties also formed nominal counterdefendant FCLA, LP, a Delaware limited
partnership, for which The Fat Cow, LLC was general partner and 2% owner. Setbel and GR
were each equal 49% limited partners in FCLA. See FCLA LP Agreement, Article 7.1.

12. Under The Fat Cow, LLC Agreement, the ‘“‘Managers shall have the full and
exclusive right, power and authority to manage all the business and affairs of the Company and
to make all decisions on behalf of the Company” and ““all decisions of the Managers shall be
made upon unanimous consent of the Managers.” The Fat Cow, LLC Agreement, Article 7(a).
Under the FCLA LP Agreement, the “exclusive right, power and authority to manage all the
affairs and the business of the Company ... shall be vested in the General Partner [i.e. The Fat
Cow, LLC].” FCLA LP Agreement, Article 8.2. As result of these provisions, decisions for
“The Fat Cow” restaurant required the unanimous consent of Ramsay and Seibel.

13. Seibel and GR each invested approximately $800,000 (for a total of $1.6 million)

in FCLA for purposes of establishing and operating “The Fat Cow” restaurant.

24

351
AA00809



7228893.4

14. The Fat Cow, LI.C owned the “The Fat Cow” name and restaurant concept.
Under a written agreement dated October 12, 2012 between The Fat Cow, LLC and FCLA (the
“License Agreement”), The Fat Cow, LLC licensed these names and concepts to FCLA.

15. Seibel asked that the Lease Agreement be assigned to FCLA. The parties
prepared and signed an October 20, 2012 Lease Assignment and Assumption which assigned the
Lease Agreement to FCLA, but, on information and belief, The Grove never approved the
assignment because Seibel, who was responsible for doing so, failed to comply with the lease
formalities for landlord approval.

Seibel’s Restaurant Operations

16.  Instead of Van Willigan managing “The Fat Cow” restaurant operations as
Ramsay originally intended, Seibel insisted that Seibel himself was expert in restaurant
operations, and from the very commencement of “The Fat Cow” restaurant’s Fall 2012 opening
until late 2013, Seibel demanded that his manager from Seibel’s affiliated Las Vegas
“Serendipity” restaurant be placed in day-to-day charge ofithe “The Fat Cow” restaurant under
Seibel’s direction and oversight.

17. As a result, restaurant operations were a disaster. On information and belief,
despite being paid $10,000 per month, Seibel’s hand-picked manager, Jerri Rose Tassan, was not
complying with California wage and hour laws or other California restaurant requirements; hired
workers without adequate documentation; incurred improper expenses; failed properly to train,
supervise or organize the kitchen and wait staff; failed to obtain the correct kitchen equipment;
failed to adopt written or legally compliant employment policies or operations manuals; and
alienated the staff, with the result that the restaurant could not keep capable chefs. On

information and belief, Seibel knew about and directed this illegal and reckless activity.
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18. On information and beliefy Jern Rose Tassan spent inadequate time at “The Fat
Cow “ restaurant or in California, working instecad mostly at Seibel’s Las Vegas “Serendipity”
restaurant or other Seibel ventures (thus effectively using her “The Fat Cow” salary to subsidize
other Seibel operations.) On information and belief, Seibel knew about and directed such
activity.

19. On information and belief, Seibel personally sought reimbursements from “The
Fat Cow” restaurant for undocumented and personal expenses. On information and belief, Seibel
also took kick-backs from “The Fat Cow” vendors (like the water vendor) and attempted to
implement fraudulent tax schemes -- for example, advocating that “The Fat Cow” avoid sales tax
on its purchases ofichairs, tables, and silverware by falsely claiming that it was buying those
items for re-sale.

20. On information and belief, as a result ofiSeibel’s actions and management ofi““The
Fat Cow” restaurant, employees and chefs quit, customers complained, reviews were poor, and
food service and wait times were substandard. In February 2013, The Grove threatened eviction
over the poor food operations, and expressed concern that Ramsay was not more directly
involved.

21. Individual restaurant employees filed claims before the California Labor
Commissioner. On information and belief, Seibel and Jerrt Rose Tassan concealed the claims,
lost them, and then concealed those losses from Ramsay and GR.

22. Later, in June 2013, with the employment problems still not having been fixed by
Seibel and Jerri Rose Tassan, restaurant employees filed a class action lawsuit in Los Angeles

Superior Court alleging numerous violations ofiCalifornia’s labor laws.
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Efforts To Fix The Problems

23.  As aresult of these problems, Jerri Rose Tassan was replaced by Van Willigan.
The manager change took place in Fall 2013. The restaurant paid Van Willigan the same
$10,000 per month which it had paid Seibel’s manager, Ms. Tassan, but unlike Ms. Tassan and
Seibel, Van Willigan spent significant time properly and knowledgeably running the restaurant.
As result, operations substantially improved.

24.  Seibel was nevertheless unhappy with the change, and, on information and belief,
began stealing $10,000 a month from FCLA, offering a flimsy after-the-fact (and unjustified)
excuse that he had not authorized Van Willigan’s hiring and so should receive a monthly amount
equal to her pay.

25.  Van Willigan’s hiring came too late to solve the restaurant’s problems. By late
2013, the restaurant had exhausted its $1.6 million in capital and had extensive unpaid bills (for
example, the restaurant owed the lawyers defending the cl-ass action lawsuit more than $75,000).

26.  Inlate 2013, Ramsay asked Seibel to contribute additional capital to help pay
such expenses. Seibel refused. At year-end 2013, GR contributed another $90,000 ofiits own
funds so that FCLA could meet certain restaurant expenses, including back-due rent and
attorneys’ fees for the class aetion lawsuit. Seibel contributed nothing and refused to contribute
anything,

27. At the same time, the restaurant faced other problems. Before Seibel and Ramsay
formed the operating entities, one of Rénsay’s companies filed a trademark application for “The
Fat Cow.” However, the U.S. Patent and Trademark Office (“USPTO”) preliminarily refused to
issue the trademark because a Miami restaurant owned a similar Spanish language mark, “Las

Vacas Gordas™ (the Spanish translation of “The Fat Cow™). This was no secret. The Fat Cow
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agreements (drafted by Seibel’s lawyers) specifically recited the USPTO’s preliminary rejection
of the registration, and noted that the parties would try to convince the USPTO to change its
mind but there were no guarantees. See License Agreement, Schedule A.

28. Beginning in April 2013, the Miami restaurant threatened to sue for trademark
infringement and demanded immediate cessation of use. Seibel left Ramsay on his own to try to
address the problem.

29. In late 2013, Ramsay’s lawyers negotiated a temporary license allowing the
restaurant to continue using “The Fat Cow” name until March 2014. Given the Miami owner’s
ire, Ramsay’s lawyers did very well to extend the use even for that long.

Closing Of The Restaurant.

30.  With all these problems, restaurant operations became untenable and

commercially unsustainable. The restaurant was insolvent; therec was no money to meet ongoing

obligations.
31. Seibel refused to provide more funding,
32.  The restaurant in any event could not operate under the existing name. The Lease

required landlord permission to change the name, which on information and belief, the landlord
would not have given under the circumstances. Changing the name would also have required a
substantial additional investment that Seibe] was unwilling to make. Seibel did not offer or
propose any plan to fund the continuing operation of the restaurant. Instead, Seibel demanded
that the restaurant continue to operate (while never explaining who would pay for that or how it
could occur). Ramsay did not want to continue operating the restaurant. Seibel could not
unilaterally demand that the restaurant continue operating, and in any event the restaurant could

not in fact continue to operate. Because the restaurant had to close, Ramsay took steps to limit
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further liability by complying with the WARN Act, and otherwise efficiently terminating
restaurant operations.

33.  The WARN Act notice was particularly important, since if the restaurant had
closed without such notice, the principals could have been liable.

34, Seibel not only failed to provide any plan for continuing restaurant operations, he
impeded every effort to streamline its necessary closure or to address the problems he had
created and which made that closure necessary. For example, Ramsay organized a settlement
conference for the employee class action suit, which made serious allegations creating a
substantial risk ofliability. Seibel promised to appear. Ramsay’s representatives flew from
London to Los Angeles to attend the conference, but Seibel was a no show. Seibel continued to
refuse funding any defense or settlement of the case.

35. Seibel also tried to impede the essential WARN Act notice, even threatening
personal liability to Van Willigan for sending the notice.

36. Seibel also refused, despite Ramsay’s request, to declare bankruptcy for FCLA or
The Fat Cow, LLC, and Ramsay could not declare bankruptcy without Seibel’s cooperation. On
information and belief, that the failure to declare bankruptcy exacerbated the losses.

The Potential New Restaurant.

37. Although Ramsay had no particular interest in operating a new restaurant at The
Grove, he was properly concerned about the 10-year, about $600,0l00 annual lease. GFM was
willing to have a Ramsay-operated and owned restaurant on the premises. (Indeed, the existing
lease expressly required Ramsay’s personal involvement in the restaurant).

38. Ramsay told Seibel that he was going to try negotiating a lease for a new Ramsay-

only restaurant in the same space, to mitigate liability under the lease.
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39.  Seibel knew the landlord would not agree to a lease involving Seibel, and that a
new lcase with Ramsay was the only option. Scibel nevertheless not only objected to any new
Ramsay lease, but filed these proceedings falsely and outrageously claiming that Ramsay’s
negotiations (fully disclosed to Seibel) were a “secret” attempt to steal the old lease. Because of
Seibel’s objections, Ramsay abandoned the idea of a new lease. So did GFM, who
counterclaimants are informed and believe was afraid that any new lease negotiations would
enmesh it in this litigation. Instead, GFM has separately sued Ramsay seeking past and future
unpaid rent.

FIRST CAUSE OF ACTION FOR BREACH OF
FIDUCIARY DUTY
[By GR derivatively on behalf of FCLA and The Fat Cow, LLC Against Seibel|

40.  Counterclaimants incorporate by reference each allegation above.

41.  Counterclaimant GR, as a member of The Fat Cow, LLC, brings these claims
derivatively on behalf of nominal counterdefendant The Fat Cow, LLC. Demand that The Fat
Cow LLC bring these claims directly is futile and excused because these claims seek recovery
from Rowen Seibel who is one of two managers of The Fat Cow, LLC and who in that capacity
can arguably preclude The Fat Cow, LLC from bringing these claims directly.

42. Cour;ter;:laimant GR, as both a limited partner in FCLA, and derivatively on
behalf of The Fat Cow, LLC as a general partner in FCLA, brings thesc claims derivatively on
behalf of nominal defendant FCLA. Demand that The Fat Cow, LLC bring these claims directly
is futile and excused because these claims scck recovery from Rowen Seibel, because FCLA is
managed by The Fat Cow, LLC, and because Seibel is a manager of The Fat Cow, LLC and so

can arguably preclude FCLA from bringing these claims dircctly.
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43, Counterclaimants deny that the managers of The Fat Cow, LLC owe fiduciary
duties. Counterclaimants also contend that none of the breaches of fiduciary duty alleged in the
complaint or in these counterclaims constitute direct harm to The Fat Cow, LLC as opposed to
direct harm to FCLA. Therefore counterclaimants believe that The Fat Cow, LLC cannot itself
recover for any such harm other than to the extent it sues derivatively, as general partner of
FCLA and on behalf of FCLA. However, without waiving these positions, these counterclaims
are asserted on behalf of The Fat Cow, LLC to the extent The Fat Cow, LLC managers like
Seibel are determined to have fiduciary duties to The Fat Cow, LLC and to the extent any of the
alleged harms 1s deemed to be to The Fat Cow, LLC rather than FCLA.

44, Seibel owed fiduciary duties to FCLA by virtue of the fact that he assumed
managerial responsibility for its business and restaurant operations.

45.  Subject to Paragraph 43 above, counterclaimants are informed and believe that
Seibel breached any fiduciary duties he owed to The Fat Cow, LLC as its manager and his
fiduciary duties to FCLA assumed as result of controlling and managing its affairs, through the
among others the following acts and conduct:

A. Embezzling and converting more than $80,000 in FCLA monies, knowing
that such monies belonged to FCLA, knowing that he had no entitlement -
to such monies, and intending to use and using such monies for his own
personal purposes.

B. Obtaining kickbacks and other personal payments from FCLA vendors,
including the water vendor, knowing that such payments belonged to

FCLA, knowing that he had no entitlement to such payments, and
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intending to use and using such kickbacks and payments for his own
personal purposes.

Submitting for reimbursement and obtaining from FCLA reimbursements
for expenses that were not and/or were not properly documented to be
legitimate “The Fat Cow” expenses, knowing that he was not entitled to
such reimbursements.

Hiring and retaining his hand-picked manager Jerri Rose Tassan for “The
Fat Cow” restaurant knowing that she was not competent to operate “The
Fat Cow” restaurant, knowing that she was violating California law in
such operations, and knowing she was operating “The Fat Cow” restaurant
in a substandard fashion that would result in operational losses and
liabilities, but doing so notwithstanding such knowledge because among

other reasons Seibel intended: (1) to use “The Fat Cow” restaurant funds to

‘pay the manager for performing services for the benefit of other Seibel

enterprises; and (11) to use “The Fat Cow” restaurant operations to obtain
other improper and personal benefits of the kind described above.
Intentionally and knowingly concealing the operational deficiencies and
liabilities incurred at ““The Fat Cow” restaurant, including concealing that
employees had asserted and won administrative actions obtaining
recompense for what California labor authorities determined to be
improper employment practices.

Willfully failing and refusing to declare bankruptcy of ““I'he Fat Cow”

restaurant, knowing and intending that under the circumstances the
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restaurant could not continue to operate and that they delay in taking such
steps would causc additional losses.
G. Willfully refusing and disrupting efforts by Ramsay to mitigate losses at
the “The Fat Cow” restaurant and to efficiently terminate its operations.
46.  As adirect and proximate result of these fiduciary breaches, The Fat Cow, LLC
and FCLA have incurred losses subject to proof at trial, but not less than $1 million, including
but not limited to: (a) amounts paid to defend and settle the employee class action; (b) amounts
incurred to defend and/or resolve claims by “The Fat Cow” vendors and creditors; and (c) losses
incurred (but which would not have been incurred) at “The Fat Cow” restaurant but for Seibel’s
misconduct; and (d) expenses, kickbacks, embezzlements and other amounts improperly taken
by Seibel.
47. By reason ofithe foregoing, punitive damages are warranted to punish Seibel for
conduct that exhibits a high degree ofimoral culpability and manifests a willful, wanton or

reckless disregard for the rights ofiothers.

SECOND CAUSE OF ACTION FOR BREACH OF CONTRACT
[By GR and Ramsay individually against Seibel]

48.  Counterclaimants incorporate by reference eagh allegation above.

49, Seibel and GR are parties to The Fat Cow, LLC Agreement. Counterclaimants
deny that Ramsay is a party to The Fat Cow, LLC Agreement; however, the Court has ruled
otherwise. Without waiving his position that he is not a party to The Fat Cow, LLC Agreement,
Ramsay asserts this claim individually and in addition to GR, to the extent that he is deemed a

party to The Fat Cow, LLC Agreement.
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50. Counterclaimants deny that any party to The Fat Cow, LLC agreement can be

liable for not making unanimous decisions, since no party can be forced to agree with the other.

However, without waiving that position, GR and Ramsay assert these claims to the extent the

Court determines otherwise.

51. Subject to Paragraphs 49 and 50 above, counterclaimants are informed and

believe that Seibel has materially breached the provision ofiThe Fat Cow, LLC Agreement

requiring that “all decisions ofithe Managers shall be made upon unanimous consent ofithe

Managers” by deciding unilaterally, and without consent from GR or Seibel, and engaging in

conduct without consent from GR or Seibel, to among other things:

A.

Obtain kickbacks and other personal payments from “The Fat Cow”
restaurant vendors.

Obtain personal reimbursements for expenses that were not legitimate
“The Fat Cow’’ expenses.

Direct and approve activities at “The Fat Cow” restaurant that violated
California law, alienated customers, employees, and the landlord, and

resulted in substandard operations.

Conceal the operational deficiencies and liabilities incurred at “The Fat

Cow” restaurant, including that employees had asserted and won
administrative actions obtaining recompense for what California labor
authorities determined to be improper employment practices.

Prevent bankruptcy ofi“The Fat Cow” restaurant.

Prevent reasonable efforts to mitigate losses at the “The Fat Cow”

restaurant and efficiently terminate its operations.
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G. Make and insist that “The Fat Cow” restaurant continue operating.
52. GR and Ramsay performed all obligations on their part under The Fat Cow, LLC
Agreement.
53.  As adirect and proximate result of Seibel’s breaches of the Fat Cow, LLC
Agreement, counterclaimants incurred losses according to proof at trial but in an amount not less

than $1 million.

THIRD CAUSE OF ACTION FOR INDEMNIFICATION
[By Ramsay individually against Seibel]

54.  Counterclaimants incorporate by reference each allegation above.

55.  Under the terms of the Indemnification Agreement entered into by Seibel in or
about October 2012, Ramsay is entitled to contractual indemnification from Seibel for any loss,
liability, or damage (including but not limited to counsel fees and costs) resulting from Ramsay
having entered into the Lease at The Grove.

56. Ramsay has performed all terms and conditions to be performed on his part under
the Indemnification Agreement, except as such performance has been excused by the acts or
omissions of Seibel.

57. On or about February 19, 2014, Ramsay, through one of his entities, paid GFM,
LLC Fifty-Two Thousand Two Hundred Twenty [.)ollars and Fifty Cents ($52,220.50) that was
past due for rent and other charges under the Lease.

58. On or about June 12, 2014, Ramsay, through one of his entities, paid GFM, LLC
Two Hundred Thirty Thousand Six Hundred Twenty-Three Dollars and Eighty-Three Cents

($230,623.83) that was past due for rent and other charges under the Lease.

7228893 4
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59, On or about August 7, 2014, GFM, LLC brought an action against Ramsay based
on a breach of the Lease. Ramsay incurred One Hundred Seventy-One Thousand One Hundred
Fifty Dollars and Nineteen Cents ($171,150.19) in legal fees and costs arising from that lawsuit.

60. On or about November 4, 2015, Ramsay settled the lawsuit with GFM, LLC for
Eight Hundred Thousand Dollars ($800,000.00).

61. Ramsay has repeatedly requested that Seibel indemnify him for the amounts
specified above. Seibel has materially breached the Indemnification Agreement by failing and
refusing to provide such indemnification.

62.  As aresult of Seibel’s material breaches of the Indemnification Agreement,
Ramsay is entitled to an order indemnifying him for one-half of the rent and other charges paid
by Ramsay under the Lease, one-half of legal fees and costs incurred by Ramsay in defending
the action brought by GFM, LLC, and one-half of the amount paid to settle the action with GFM,
LLC.

WHEREFORE, counterclaimants respectfully demand judgment against Seibel as
follows:

A, On the First Cause of Action, compensatory and punitive damages, in an
amount to be determined at trial,r but not less than $1 million;

B. On the Second Cause of Action, compensatory damages, in an amount to
be determined at trial, but not less than $1 million;

C. On the Third Cause of Action, compensatory damages for indemnification
from Setbel for liability and damages resulting from Ramsay having
entered into the Lease at The Grove, in an amount to be determined at

trial, but not less than one-half of $1,253,994.52;
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D. Award counterclaimants attorneys’ fees, costs and disbursements, and

prejudgment interest; and

E. Grant counterclaimants such other and further relief as this Court may

deem just, equitable and proper.

DATED: New York, New York

February 24, 2016

Respectfully submitted,

MITCHELL SILBERBERG & KNUPP LLP

By: /%M/L@u\

37

Paul D. Méntclare (pdm@msk.com)
12 East 49th Street, 30th Floor

New York, New York 10017-1028
Telephone: (212) 509-3900
Facsimile: (212) 509-7239

Kevin E. Gaut (keg@msk.com)
(admitted pro hac vice)

11377 West Olympic Blvd.

Los Angeles, California 90064-1683
Telephone: (310) 312-2000
Facsimile: (310) 312-3100

Attorneys for
Defendants and Counterclaimants Gordon
Ramsay and G.R. US Licensing, LP
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FILED: NEW YORK COUNTY CLERK 04/11/2016 11:55 AM INDEX NO. 651046/2014
NYSCEF DOC. NO. 66 RECEIVED NYSCEF: 04/11/2016

SUPREME COURT OF THE STATE OF NEW YORK

COUNTY OF NEW YORK

------------------------------------------------------------------------ X Index No. 651046/2014
ROWEN SEIBEL, Individually and on behalf of

FCLA, LP and THE FAT COW, L1C,
PLAINTIFF’S REPLY

Plaintiff, TO DEFENDANTS GORDON

RAMSAY’S AND G.R. US

-against- LICENSING’S AMENDED
COUNTERCLAIMS

GORDON RAMSAY and G.R. US LICENSING, LP,

Defendants,
and

FCLA, LP and THE FAT COW, LLC,

Nominal Defendants,

_________________________________________________________________________ X
GORDON RAMSAY and G.R. US LICENSING, LP,
Individually and on behalf of FCL.A, LP and
THE FAT COW, LLC,
Defendants-Counterclaimants,
-against-
ROWAN SEIBEL,
Plaintiff-Counterdefendant,
and
FIL.CA, LP, and THE FAT COW, LLC,
Nominal
Defendants-Counterdefendants.
___________________________________________________________________________ X

Rowen Seibel, (“Plaintiff”), by his attorneys Certilman Balin Adler & Hyman, LLP,
hereby replies to defendants Gordon Ramsay’s (“Ramsay”™) and G. R. US Licensing, LP’s
(“GR™)(collectively “Defendants”) amended counterclaims, dated February 24, 2016

(“Counterclaims™) as follows:

32976821
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1. Plaintiff admits the allegations contained in paragraph 1 of the

Counterclaims,

2. Plaintiff admits the allegations contained in paragraph 2 of the
Counterclaims.

3. Plaintiff admits the allegations contained in paragraph 3 of the
Counterclaims.

4, Plaintiff admits the allegations contained in the first sentence of paragraph

4 of the Counterclaims, and with regard to the remaining allegations refers to Defendants’
Counterclaims for the full and complete contents thereof.

5. Plaintiff admits the allegations contained in the first sentence of paragraph
5 of the Counterclaims, and with regard to the remaining allegations refers to Defendants’
Counterclaims for the full and complete contents thereof.

6. Plaintiff admits that defendant Ramsay 1is a known television personality
and chef, and appears in television shows including Hell’s Kitchen, and denies knowledge or
information sufficient to form a belief as to the truth of the remaining allegations contained in
Paragraph 6 of the Counterclaims,

7. Plaintiff denies knowledge or information sufficient to form a belief as to
the truth of the allegations contained in Paragraph 7 of the Counterclaims.

8. Plaintiff denies the allegations contained in paragraph 8 of the
Counterclaims.

9. Plaintiff denies knowledge or information sufficient to form a belief as to

the truth of the allegations contained in Paragraph 9 of the Counterclaims, except admits that
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Ramsay entered into the Lease Agreement, and Plaintiff refers to the Lease Agreement for the
full and complete contents thereof.

10. Plaintift admits the allegations contained in the first sentence of paragraph
10 of the Counterclaims. Plaintiff denies the remaining allegations contained in Paragraph 10,
except admits the Plaintiff and Ramsay entered into The Fat Cow LLC Agreement, a California
LLC, with GR and Seibel as the sole members, and Seibel and Ramsay as the managers, and
refers to the Fat Cow LLC Agreement for the full and complete contents thereof,

11.  Plaintiff admits the allegations cc;ntained in paragraph 11 of the
Counterclaims, and refers to the FCLLA LP Agreement for the full and complete contents thereof.

12.  Plaintiff denies the allegations contained in the first 2 sentences of
paragraph 12 of the Counterclaims and refers to the Fat Cow LLC Agreement for the full and
complete contents thereof. Plaintiff admits the allegations contained in the third sentence of
paragraph 12.

13.  Plaintiff denies the allegations in paragraph 13 of the Counterclaims,
except admit that both Ramsay and Seibel initially invested approximately $800,000 each for the
purpose of establishing and operating the Fat Cow restaurant.

14.  Plaintiff denies the allegations contained in paragraph 14 of the
Counterclaims, except admits that Fat Cow LLC and FCLA entered info a License Agreement,
and refers to the License Agreement for the full and complete contents thereof.

15.  Plaintiff denies the allegations contained in paragraph 15 of the
Counterclaims, except admits that Ramsay entered into a Lease Assignment and Assumption of

the Lease Agreement with FCLA, and refers to the Lease Assignment and Assumption
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Agreement for the full and complete contents thereof; and Plaintiff admits that the Grove did not
approve the lease, and further states that it was Ramsay responsibility to obtain such approval.

16.  Plaintiff denies the allegations contained in paragraph 16 of the
Counterclaims.

17.  Plantiff denies the allegations contained in paragraph 17 of the
Counterclaims.

18. Plaintift demies the allegations contained in paragraph 18 of the
Counterclaims.

19.  Plaintiff denies the allegations contained in paragraph 19 of the
Counterclaims.

20.  Plaintiff denies the allegations contained in paragraph 20 of the
Counterclaims, except admits that Ramsay received a letter from the landlord on or about
February 27, 2013, and refers to the letter for the full and complete contents thereof.

21.  Plaintiff admits the allegations contained in the first sentence of paragraph
21 of the Counterclaims. Plaintiff denies the remaining allegations contained in paragraph 21 of
the Counterclaims.

22, Plaintiff denies the allegations rcontained in paragraph 22 of the
Counterclaims, except admits that a class action lawsuit was filed in Los Angeles Superior Court
alleging violations of California labor laws.

23. Plaintiff denies the allegations contained in paragraph 23 of the
Counterclaims, except admits that Ramsay wrongfully caused the restaurant to pay Van Willigan

$10,000 per month.
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24, Plamntiff denies the allegations contained 1n paragraph 24 of the

Counterclaims.

25, Plaintiff denies the allegations contained in paragraph 25 of the
Counterclaims.

26.  Plamtiff denies the allegations contained 1 paragraph 26 of the
Counterclaims.

27, Plaintiff denies the allegations contained in paragraph 27 of the
Counterclaims, except admits that Ramsay filed a trademark application for “The Fat Cow™ and
that the USPTO preliminarily rejected the application due to the mark “Las Vacas Gordas™ being
previously issued to a Miami restaurant owner, and admits that the parties’ Fat Cow Agreements
contained provisions concerning the trademarks for the restaurant, and refers to those agreements
for the full and complete contents thereof. Plaintiff further states that Ramsay promised Seibel
that he would take care of any trade mark 1ssues concerning the name of the restaurant and failed
to do so.

28. Plaintiff denies the allegations contained in paragraph 28 of the
Counterclaims, except admits that counsel for the Miami restaurant sent a letter dated April 22,
2013 to Ramsay, and refers to the letter for the full and complete contents thereof.

29.  Plaintiff denies the allegations contained in paragraph 29 of the
Counterclaims, except admits that Ramsay negotiated a limited temporary license.

30.  Plaintiff denies the allegations contained in paragraph 30 of the
Counterclaims.

31. Plaintiff denies the allegations contained in paragraph 31 of the

Counterclaims.
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32.  Plantiff denies the allegations contained in paragraph 32 of the
Counterclaims, except admits that Seibel informed Ramsay that he would not consent to closing
the restaurant, and that Ramsay unilaterally issued a WARN notice over Seibel’s objection, and
took additional unilateral and unauthorized steps to close the restaurant.

33. Plaintiff denies the allegations contained in paragraph 33 of the
Counterclaims, except states that to the extent paragraph 33 asserts a legal conclusion no
response is required.

34.  Plaintiff denies the allegations contained in paragraph 34 of the
Counterclaims.

35.  Plantiff denies the aliegations contained in paragraph 35 of the
Counterclaims, except admits that Seibel objected to the issuance of the WARN notice.

36,  Plaintiff denies the allegations contained in paragraph 36 of the
Counterclaims.

37.  Plantiff denies information sufficient to form a belief as to the truth of the
allegations contained in Paragraph 37 of the Counterclaims.

38.  Plaintiff denies the allegations contained in paragraph 38 of the
Counterclaims.

39.  Plaintiff denies the allegations contained in paragraph 39 of the
Counterclaims, except admits that Seibel filed the Complaint in this action and refers to the
Complaint for the full and complete contents thereof, admits that GFM has sued Ramsay, and
refers to the complaint in that action for the full and complete contents thereof, and denies
information sufficient to form a belief as to the truth of the allegations contained in the second to

last sentence of Paragraph 39 of the Counterclaims.
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40,  Plaintift repeats, reiterates and reasserts each and every reply set forth
above in paragraphs 1 through 39 as if set forth fully herein.

41. Plaintiff denies the allegations contained in paragraph 41 of the
Counterclaims, except admits that Defendants have asserted Counterclaims in this action and
refers to the Counterclaims for the full and complete contents thercof, regarding the allegations
concerning the Fat Cow LLC Agreement, Plaintiff refers to the Fat Cow LLC Agreement for the
full and complete contents thereof, and states that to the extent paragraph 41 asserts a legal
conclusion a reply is not required.

42, Plaintiff denies the allegations contained in paragraph 42 of the
Counterciaims, except admits that Defendants have asserted Counterclaims in this action and
refers to the Counterclaims for the full and complete contents thereof; regarding the aliegations
concerning the Fat Cow LLC Agreement and FCLA Agreement, Plaintiff refers to the Fat Cow
LLC Agreement and FCLA Agreement for the full and complete contents thereof, and states that
paragraph further asserts a legal conclusion, a reply to which is not required.

43.  Plaintiff denies information sufficient to form a belief as to the truth of the
allegations contained in Paragraph 43 of the Counterclaims, except to the extent Paragraph 43
concerns the contents of the Counterclaims or Defendants’ Answer to Plaintiffs’ Complaint,
Plaintiff refers to those documents for their full and complete contents.

44,  Paragraph 44 states a legal conclusion, a response to which is not required.

45, Plaintiff denies the allegations contained in paragraph 45 of the
Counterclaims, except to the extent Paragraph 45 states a legal conclusion, a response to which 1s

not required.
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46. Plaintiff denies the allegations contained in paragraph 46 of the
Counterclaims.

47, Plaintiff denies the allegations contained in paragraph 47 of the
Counterclaims,

48.  Plaintiff repeats, reiterates and rcasserts each and every reply set forth
above in paragraphs 1 through 47 as if set forth fully herein.

49,  Plaintiff admits the allegations contained in the first two sentences of
paragraph 49. For the third sentence of paragraph 49, Plaintiff refers to the Counterclaims for
the full and complete contents thereof.

50.  With regard to the allegations contfained in paragraph 50, Plaintiffs refer to

the Answer to Plaintiffs Complaint and the Counterclaims for the full and complete contents

thereof,

51, rPlaintiff denies the allegations contained in paragraph 51 of the
Counterclaims.

52, Plaintiff denies the allegations contained in paragraph 52 of the
Counterclaims.

53, Plaintiff demes the allegations contained in paragraph 53 of the
Counterciaims.

54.  Plaintiff repeats, reiterates and reasserts each and every reply set forth
above in paragraphs 1 through 53 as if set forth fully herein.

55.  Plaintiff denies the allegations contained in paragraph 55 of the
Counterclaims, except admits that Seibel entered into the Indemnification Agreement and refers

to the Indemnification Agreement for the full and complete contents thereof.
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56.  Plamtiff denies the allegations contamned in paragraph 56 of the
Counterclaims.

57.  Plaintiff denies information sufficient to form a belief as to the truth of the
allegations contained in Paragraph 57 of the Counterclaims.

58.  Plamntiff denies information sufficient to form a belief as to the truth of the
allegations contained in Paragraph 58 of the Counterclaims.

59, Plaintiff admits that GFM, LLC (‘GFM”) brought an action against
Ramsay based on breach of a lease and otherwise denies information sufficient to form a belief
as to the truth of the remainder of the allegations contained in Paragraph 59 of the
Counterclaims.

60,  Plamtiff denies information sufficient to form a belief as to the truth of the
allegations contained in Paragraph 60 of the Counterclaims.

61.  Plaintiff denies the allegations contained in paragraph 61 of the
Counterclaims, except admits that Ramsay has requested monies in connection with the
Indemnification Agreement.

62.  Plaintiff denies the allegations contained in paragraph 62 of the
Counterclaims.

63.  Plaintiff denies that Defendants are entitled fo any relief for the claims

contained in the Counterclaims,
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AS AND FOR A FIRST AFFIRMATIVE DEFENSE

1. The Counterclaims fail to state claims upon which relief can be granted.

AS AND FOR A SECOND AFFIRMATIVE DEFENSE

2, Defendants alleged causes of action are barred by the doctrines of

acquiescence, ratification, laches and/or waiver.

AS AND FOR A THIRD AFFIRMATIVE DEFENSE

3. Defendants lack standing to assert all or some of the claims.

AS AND FOR A FOURTH AFFIRMATIVE DEFENSE

4. Defendants are equitably estopped from pursuing these causes of action
against Plaintiff,

AS AND FOR A FIFTH AFFIRMATIVE DEFENSE

D. Defendants™ alleged causes of action are barred, in whole or in part, by

unclean hands.

AS AND FOR A SIXTH AFFIRMATIVE DEFENSE

6. At all relevant times, Plaintiff acted reasonably, in good faith, and with

justification.

AS AND FOR A SEVENTH AFFIRMATIVE DEFENSE

7. The claims set forth in the Counterclaims are barred, in whole or in part,
by virtue of putative Defendants’ bad faith, wrongful and/or malicious conduct.

AS AND FOR AN EIGHTH AFFIRMATIVE DEFENSE

8. Defendants’ claims are barred, in whole or in part, by their failure to

mitigate damages.
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AS AND FOR A NINTH AFFIRMATIVE DEFENSE

9. Plaintiff Rowen Seibel is not liable to Ramsay in connection with the
Indemnification Agreement executed by Plaintiff in or about October 2012 (the “Indemnification
Agreement”) as a result of Ramsay’s bad faith, wrongful and/or malicious conduct and
intentional wrongdoing, including but not limited to Ramsay’s improper and unilateral closing of
The Fat Cow Restaurant, causing the potential for liability to GFM for unpaid rent and other

charges.

AS AND FOR A TENTH AFFIRMATIVE DEFENSE

10. Public policy prohibits Ramsay from seeking indemnification from
Plaintiff under the Indemnification Agreement for any loss, liability, or attomeys’ fees that arose
out of Ramsay’s own bad faith, wrongful and/or malicious conduct and intentional wrongdoing,

AS AND FOR AN ELEVENTH AFFIRMATIVE DEFENSE

11.  Plaintiff is not hiable to indemnify Ramsay for Ramsay’s unilateral, bad
faith and voluntary settlement of the action brought by GFM against Ramsay, on or about August
7, 2014 (the “GFM Action™), which settlement was made without prior notification to Plaintift.

AS AND FOR A TWELFTH AFFIRMATIVE DEFENSE

12.  The unilateral and voluntary settlement of the GFM Action made by
Ramsay for $800,000.00 was not reasonable and was not entered into in good faith, thus Plaintiff

is not liable to indemnify Ramsay.

AS AND FOR A THIRTEENTH AFFIRMATIVE DEFENSKE

13, Ramsay did not notify Plaintiff of the two voluntary payments made to

GFM for rent and other charges in the amount of $52,220.50 and $230,623.83 made in or about

11
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February 2014 and June 2014, respectively, and, as such, Plaintiff is not liable to indemnify
Ramsay for these voluntary payments,

AS AND FOR A FOURTEENTH AFFIRMATIVE DEFENSE

14.  Ramsay is not entitled to attorneys™ fees and costs for enforcing the
Indemnification Agreement against Plaintiff as such attorneys’ fees and costs are not expressly
provided for in the Indemnification Agreement.

AS AND FOR A FIFTEENTH AFFIRMATIVE DEFENSE

15. Without waiving any of the foregoing defenses, to the extent this Court
determines that Plaintiff is liable to Ramsay for Ramsay’s legal fees and costs a.risiﬁg out of the
GFM Action, such amount must be reduced to the extent these fees and costs were incurred for
the purpose of seeking indemnification against Plaintiff, including but not limited to the
preparation and filing of the cross-complaint against Plaintiff in the GFM Action.

AS AND FOR A SIXTEENTH AFFIRMATIVE DEFENSE

16.  Plaintiff hereby gives notice that he intends to rely upon such other and
further defenses as may become available or apparent during pretrial proceedings in this action,
or through discovery, and hereby reserve all rights to amend this Reply and to assert all such

defenses.
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WHEREFORE, Counterclaim Defendant Rowen Seibel respectfully demands
judgment dismissing the Complaint in its entirety, together with the costs and disbursements

herein, and such other, further, and different relief as to the Court seems just, proper and

equitable,

Dated: East Meadow, New York
April 4, 2016 CERTILMAN BA/B# AD

WS

Paule’Sx/veeney

Nicole L. Milone
Attorneys for Plaintiff
90 Merrick Avenue — 9th Floor
East Meadow, New York 11554
(516) 296-7000

T

TO: MITCHELL SILBERBERG & KNUPP LLP
Attorneys for Defendants
12 East 49th Street — 30th Floor
New York, New York 10017-1028
(212) 509-3900
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VERIFICATION

STATE OF NEW YORK )

) ss.:
COUNTY OF NEW YORK )

ROWEN SEIBEL being duly swom, deposes and says:

1. I am the Plaintiff in the within action.

2. { have read the foregoing PLAINTIFF’S REPLY TO DEFENDANTS

GORDON RAMSAY’S AND G.R. US LICENSING’S AMENDED COUNTERCLAIMS
and know the contents thereof, the same is true to my own knowledge, except as to the matters
therein stated to be alleged upon information and belief, and as to those matters I believe them to

be true. The grounds of my belief as to all matters not stated upon my own knowledge are as

follows: books, records, papers, and documents.

/%’W-gw-g;&b_a/é

ROWEN SEIBEL

Swom to before me this
S day of April, 2016

Notary Puinc/// T

CarlM 8imms
Notary Public State of New York
New York County
Lic. #01516188175
Comm. Exp. June 2, 2016
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF NEW YORK

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA,

V.

ROWEN SEIBEL,

Defendant.

Before:

HON. WILLIAM H.

APPEARANCES

PREET BHARARA
United States Attorney fo

r the

Southern District of New York

ROBIN MOREY

Assistant United States Attorney

ROBERT FINK
MICHAEL SARDAR
Attorneys for Defendant

16 CR 279 (WHP)

New York, N.Y.
August 19, 2016
2:15 p.m.

PAULEY IITI,

District Judge

SOUTHERN DISTRICT REPORTERS, P.C.

(212)

805-0300

381
AA00839



10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

GB8JYSEIS

(Case called)

THE COURT: Good afternoon. I note the presence of
the defendant at counsel table.

This matter 1s on for sentencing. Are the parties
ready to proceed?

MR. FINK: Yes, your Honor.

MS. MOREY: Yes, your Honor.

THE COURT: Mr. Fink, have you reviewed with your
client the presentence investigation report?

MR. FINK: I have, your Honor.

THE COURT: Are there any factual matters set forth 1in
the report that you believe warrant modification or correction?

MR. FINK: I've done that already, yes.

THE COURT: DNothing further?

MR. FINK: DNothing further.

THE COURT: Ms. Morey, are there any factual matters
set forth in the report that the government believes warrant
modification or correction?

MS. MOREY: No. We addressed a possible
misunderstanding in our submission, but, no. Nothing that the
Court has to decide.

THE COURT: Very well.

Mr. Fink, do you wish to be heard?

MR. FINK: Yes, your Honor. I believe that your Honor
has before you the probation department's presentence report

SOUTHERN DISTRICT REPORTERS, P.C.
(212) 805-0300
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dated July 14, 2016; our letter to the Court with the exhibits,
which i1s dated August 5, 2016; the government's 44-page letter,
which includes exhibits, dated August 12, 2016; and then our
reply letter, which is dated August 16, Z2016.

THE COURT: I have all those materials, and I've
reviewed them.

MR. FINK: Thank you, your Honor. Then I'll be very
brief. I shall not repeat what i1s 1in there.

Sentencing 1s probably the most difficult endeavor for
both defense attorneys and for the Court. I've practiced now
for nearly 50 years. I've never appeared before your Honor at
a sentencilng proceeding.

In the past, I've represented defendants who deserved
and received jJall sentences. I submit to your Honor that this
1s a case that cries out for a sentence not including Jjail.
It's a unigque case. Rowen 1s a unique human beilng.

If there exists a case where your Honor could make an
exception to imposing a prison sentence, I submit to you this
is the case. The probation department has recommended to
your Honor that no jailil be imposed in this case.

This recommendation was made after a careful and
thorough review of the facts of the case: The fact that
between Rowen and his mother, this account was always his
mother's, not Rowen's; the fact that all deposits were made by
the mother; the fact that Rowen never personally benefited from

SOUTHERN DISTRICT REPORTERS, P.C.
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the account.

I think also of great importance to the probation
department in making their recommendation was the condition of
Rowen's mother. She 1s gravely 111, and Rowen cares for her.
No one else would; no one else could.

The government makes an 1ssue of the fact that there
are full-time nurses who can care for his mother. This was
done, 1n part, by Rowen out of respect for his mother. His
mother has to be bathed every day, has to be dressed,
undressed. The nurses do that.

That 1s not a substitute for what Rowen does on a
daily basis for his mother. The mother needs Rowen's presence.
Rowen is now 34 years old, and he's lived with his mother and
his grandmother for his entire life.

I've known Rowen for almost three years, and I've
personally never seen a closer, more caring relationship than
that between -- Rowen his mother. Rowen has done everything a
person can do to try to right the wrong he has done.

The plea agreement says that there's a tax loss of
three years of $53,686. Rowen's accountant believed that the
government made a mistake; that Rowen owed more taxes,
and Rowen voluntarily paid $65,089.

He's also paild interest. He's also paid a civil fraud
penalty. So he's paid the IRS $147,693.09. On top of that, he
has paid the Treasury Department $650,100 in penalties.

SOUTHERN DISTRICT REPORTERS, P.C.
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He's branded a felon and will be branded as a felon
for his entire life. He has already suffered collateral
consequences from that. Rowen is truly contrite. I submit to

your Honor that he's suffered enough, and I implore your Honor
not to 1mpose a prison sentence.

I said I'd be brief. $So, unless your Honor has any
questions for me, I will say no more. Thank you.

THE COURT: All right. Thank you, Mr. Fink.

Ms. Morey.

MS. MOREY: Your Honor, we didn't have an opportunity
to respond --

THE COURT: TIf you would, would you take the podium.

MS. MOREY: Yes, sir.

Your Honor, the government did not respond or submit a
response to the August 16 letter from the defendant because,
for the most part, 1t appeared to be -- they would raise things
that misrepresented or twisted sort of what the government
said. Unless your Honor was confused by them or had a
question, i1t doesn't seem to be -- to pay a lot of response to
cach individual one.

There were three things I did want to respond to or
cover, and that is they raised the 1ssue about what the
government said about his age, and they pointed out how that
age group 1s known for being impulsive, doing things without
thought, whatever.
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That may very well be true, but that makes the point
the government was trying to make, which 1s whatever may be
saild about that age group, 1t doesn't apply to this young man
who did something that age group is not doilng, and that 1is
engage 1in tax fraud.

Tax fraud, tax-related crimes -- unlike the majority
of the federal crimes that get prosecuted, the taxes are
specific-intent crimes. It 1s not a general intent. We have
to prove that an individual acted knowing that what they did
was wrong.

It can't be just like in structuring, that they
structured their transactions to avoild something being filed
with the government. We would have to prove, 1f it was a tax
case like 1t used to be, that they knew that structuring was
illegal.

Here he pled guilty and allocuted to acting corruptly.
Those kind of crimes can't be done accidentally. They can't be
done 1mpulsively. There was absolutely nothing impulsive about
this.

He and his mother flew eight hours to Switzerland and
opened up this account and sat there and did it, and he
contacted them over the years to see what they were dolng 1n
terms of the investments.

In 2008 he learned that the IRS was 1nvestligating UBS
and, 1n particular, Bradley Birkenfeld, who was the banker that
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had dealt with them. He did not do what other defendants did.
For example, they mention Ms. Curran and her case in Florida.
In 2008 when she learned she owed taxes on that account, she
hired a lawyer and sought to get right with the government.

In 2008 what this young man did -- and 1t's kind of
impressive and completely out of character for perhaps that age
group —-- 1s he flew over there. He came prepared.

He came prepared with a shell corporation, a
Panamanian shell corporation, and he asked that they close out
the UBS account and took all the money and put it in another
secret Swiliss bank account at Bandque Safra.

He made sure this time his name was not on it. He had
it 1n the name of this Panamanian shell company. Should the
FBI have served a treaty requirement on Banque Safra for all
records pertaining to US account holders, they would not have
produced Bangue Safra or the Mirza account because that was a
Panamanian corporation. It wasn't casual. It was thoughtful.
That's our point.

We also polinted out what a very competent businessman

he 1s and how at the very time he's doing this stuff -- it's
like over a five-year period -- he has a whole group of lawyers
he deals with with his business matters. He could easily have

discussed this with them. He did not. §So that's the age
issue.
The second 1ssue they raise against this wvoluntary
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disclosure about did he read it, did he not read it, the
government's position has remained consistent. The sentence he
cites was where we saild, you say the information says he read
1t or didn't read it or did read it. It doesn't say that he
didn't read it. It's not to say he didn't really. We weren't
accusing him -- or I should say the information.

But more importantly, about voluntary disclosure, that
he knowilingly signed. Whether he read it or not, he's legally
obligated to the contents. He's charged legally with the
knowledge of 1it.

Well, whether he read 1t or not, he knowingly signed
it. He knowingly mailed it to the IRS for its consideration
and reliance. There 1s one thing that he knew was not in 1it,
and that was 1nformation about the Mirza account because he did
that on his own.

He did not have a conversation with the attorney who
prepared 1t. He knew that that attorney couldn't have known
about the Mirza account, and he knew that this was all about
telling the IRS about your foreign bank accounts.

So, at a minimum, whether he read 1t or not, he knew
he did not tell that attorney, because he had no conversation
with the attorney. That's what the attorney's statement said.

Finally, I would just sort of -- they continued to
call it cooperation because he did not fight the grand jury's
subpoena for the records. This 1s an obligation under the law.

SOUTHERN DISTRICT REPORTERS, P.C.
(212) 805-0300

388
AA00846



10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

GBJYSEIS

He 1s suggesting that he should get credit for
cooperating because he did not engage in what the Second
Circult has described as a "reckless attempt to avoild paylng
lawfully imposed taxes vital to the function of the
United States.” To be able to treat that as something that 1is
to his credit seems an 1injustice.

Unless the Court has any questions for the government,
we rest on the things we've said in our submissions,
your Honor.

THE COURT: Did the government ever pursue any case
agalinst the attorney?

MS. MOREY: Mr. Smith?

THE COURT: Yes.

MS. MOREY: We had no reason to believe Mr. Smith knew
he was beling lied to by the defendant's mother. So, no. We
did not investigate him. We believe that he thought what he
submitted was accurate.

Was 1t embarrassing from a professional polint of view
for him to have admitted he sent a document to this man to sign
and submit to the IRS but he did not review 1t with him? Yes,
but I leave that to the ethics authorities.

As he 1ndicated 1n the affidavit they submitted to the
government, apparently the mother said --

THE COURT: Did you draw that to the attention of the
grievance committee?
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MS. MOREY: I have not. If your Honor thinks 1t's
appropriate, I will discuss 1t. We don't Jjust do that. I will
discuss it with John McEnany, who does that information in our
office, since you raised 1it.

THE COURT: What 1s the government's view regarding
the circumstances of the defendant's execution of that
application to participate 1n the voluntary program?

MS. MOREY: We did not charge him with a false
statement.

THE COURT: Right. But what I'm drawing from 1t, what
I've seen, on the very last day of eligibility of the program,
his mother's lawyer sends him this application with
instructions to sign 1t and mail i1t today.

MS. MOREY: Right.

THE COURT: Or what?

MS. MOREY: You know, I would assume that there's
more -- our position, our legal position, about it 1s 1t was
obstructive, because he knowlingly signed 1t. He made no -- he
claims now that he has never read it. He made no effort to
read this.

Again, I come back to looking at the other part of his
life at that point. That was 1in 2009. He 1s actively being
represented in all of his business matters 1nvolving R Squared
Global and his very important and valuable trademark and
license agreement for Serendipity 3 by the law firm that 1is so
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involved with him that six members I think 1t was -- four
submitted letters on his behalf. So he has this whole other
access to legal advice.

In fact, there was another lawyer who said he
represented the family for 30 years. Yet this man who had the
understanding and intelligence and wherewlthal at that tender
age of 25 or 24 to sign what has turned out to be a very, very
valuable licensing agreement with Serendipity 3, for which he
always had counsel, the same firm, did not seek counsel about
these matters.

The government's position 1s that was 1ntentional.
Whether he read it or not, he knew he signed 1t. They do not
dispute it contains false information, and 1t was obstructive.

I also jJust pointed out how he had to, at the very
least, have known that it could not be complete because he and
he alone knew about Mirza, and he knew -- or I should say I
don't know what he says. I only know what the lawyer says.

The lawyer says he never had a conversation with the
defendant about anything. So the defendant could not have
explained about how the year before he flew over knowling the
account was there, took the money out, used a Panamanian shell
company, and went to another bank. That's very sophilisticated
behavior.

So the government's position is he is culpable for
what he did. We're not going to get into whether he read it or
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not because he's liable. When you sign a document and you give
it to the IRS, whether you read 1t or not, you're charged with
the knowledge of 1it.

So that's our position. We believe the lawyer was
lied to. I'm not sure what his culpability would be 1f a
client comes 1n and lies to him and he believes it.

This 1s a sophisticated kid. He wasn't a kid. He was
a businessman. He was making millions of dollars. He had the
wherewithal and the knowledge to do things that other people
didn't think were important on his business purposes.

He doesn't get to act like, I'm just an ignorant young
person. It's what he could have done, and he did not. It's
his actions. His actions were obstructive, and they were
knowingly obstructive. And he has pleaded guilty to knowingly
and with corrupt intent obstructed the IRS.

THE COURT: Anything further?

MS. MOREY: ©No, your Honor. Not from the government.

THE COURT: Thank vyou.

Mr. Fink?

MR. FINK: Yes, your Honor. The government started
the conversation saying that my client committed tax fraud.
There 1s no charge of tax fraud here at all. So I don't think
that's accurate.

When the account was closed and the account was
reopened, he was there alone, but his mother was with him. The
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mother did it. Also this i1dea that he came with a shell
corporation to open the account, the bank did that. He had
nothing to do with that. The check that UBS made out was made
out to a corporation that was his father's, and that was put
into the account.

Should he have challenged his mother? Yes. Should he
have challenged his father? Yes. He made a mistake. It's
cost him dearly. I don't think jJail should be imposed.

THE COURT: Before you sit down, Mr. Fink, let me just
ask you about what you've just described to me.

In 2008 when he went over to Switzerland and closed
the numbered account, did you Just tell me that his mother
accompanied him?

MR. FINK: Yes. Not to the bank.

THE COURT: But to Switzerland?

MR. FINK: Yes.

THE COURT: Who arranged for the Panamanian
corporation?

MR. FINK: I believe it was his father.

THE COURT: Did he go to Banque Safra?

MR. FINK: Yes.

THE COURT: Does your client wish to address the
Court?

MR. FINK: Yes, your Honor.

THE COURT: 1I'1ll hear from him now.
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THE DEFENDANT: Your Honor, I stand before you today
deeply saddened, humbled, and heartbroken. This terrible
situation has caused me great psychological pain and physical
i1llness. I've galned weilght. I don't sleep. I've started to
drink, which I've never done before.

I continue to obsess over what a tremendous
disappolintment I am to myself and to my family. It's
impossible for me to adequately express how deeply sorry I am
to the Court, to our great country, and to my family for the
burden and shame I have brought upon them.

I'm especially sorry to my wife and daughter for the
extent they've had to suffer for my mistake. My mom and
grandmother are not here today. I've tried to 1nsulate them
from this ordeal.

I'm sorry to all of them for making them live these
past few years with this dark cloud over our heads. I thank
them all greatly for being there for me during these tough
times.

To my friends, employees, my colleagues, I want to
thank you for standing by me. I'm sorry that I've let you all
down. I promise to never let you see me 1n this circumstance
again.

Your Honor, I've tried to live an honorable life as a
doer of good. The reason of obeying whatever my mom asked me
to do with her funds 1s no excuse for what I've done. I'm
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ashamed of my stupidity. It's not acceptable.

Until this point, I've lived an untarnished life.
Going forward, I have this scar that will be with me forever,
and I'll try to continue to be the best person I can be all
around to impact lives 1n a positive way.

I can solemnly promise you that I will never be in
trouble again. Thank you, your Honor, for allowing me to say
these words.

THE COURT: You may be seated.

We're golng to take a very brief recess.

(Recess)

THE CQURT: The defendant, Rowen Seibel, comes before
this Court having pled guillty to a corrupt endeavor to obstruct
and impede the due administration of the Internal Revenue
Service laws, a serious crime agalnst the United States.

This Court's reviewed the presentence 1nvestigation
report. I adopt the findings of fact in the report as my own
and will cause the report to be docketed and filed under seal
as part of the record in this case. I've also reviewed all of
the parties' submissions in connection with this sentencing.

Turning first to the guidelines, the base offense
level for this crime 1s 14. Because the offense involved
sophisticated means, namely, the creation of offshore bank
accounts, a further 2-level enhancement 1s warranted.

The defendant pled guilty back in April before
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Magistrate Judge Pittman. I've reviewed those plea minutes and
accepted the plea previously by order.

Accordingly, I grant the defendant a 3-level reduction
for acceptance of responsibilility. So his total offense level
1s 13. This 1s his first criminal conviction. So his criminal
history category 1s a I, and that yields a guideline range 1n
this case of 12 to 18 months.

Now, the question becomes what's the appropriate
sentence 1n this case taking i1nto account all the factors under
Section 3553 (a).

In March of 2004 the defendant, who was then 23 years
old traveled with his mother to UBS's offices 1n Switzerland
where he opened a numbered UBS account concealing his identity.
Together with his mother, he took steps to keep the account's
exlstence secret from US tax authorities, and his mother
deposited considerable sums into the account over the next two
years.

In May or thereabouts of 2008, a series of news
articles in the New York Times and the Wall Street Journal
reported on a government investigation into UBS's efforts to
help wealthy Americans evade taxes.

The Seilbel family reacted to those reports by creating
a Panamanian shell company 1n which the defendant was himself
the beneficial owner and Jjumped on a flight to Switzerland to
close the numbered UBS account.

SOUTHERN DISTRICT REPORTERS, P.C.
(212) 805-0300

396
AA00854



10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

17
GBJYSEIS

As the government notes 1n its submission, in a shrewd
move to avoid detection, Seibel opened a bank account in the
name of a Panamanian company 1n another Swiss bank, and a
$900,000 check from UBS was deposited into the account.

The defendant filed tax returns that failed to report
his overseas income, and he falsely claimed that he did not
have an interest or signatory authority owver a bank account in
a foreign country.

Then, 1n the fall of 2009, after learning of a program
that allowed US taxpayers to disclose thelr previously
undeclared offshore accounts, Seibel's mother's attorney
prepared an application.

That application falsely stated that while Seibel was
aware that his mother had made deposits i1nto the UBS account
for his benefit, he was unaware of the status of the account

and had reached the conclusion that the deposits had been

"stolen or otherwilise disappeared.” This conduct 1is not really
a momentary aberration. It was carried out —-- and the false
filings occurred -- over a number of years.

Oliver Wendell Holmes famously observed that taxes are
what we pay for civilized socilety. The integrity of our tax
system depends upon both the perception and reality that the
government will seek out and prosecute those who knowlingly and
willingly cheat on their taxes. This is particularly important
with wealthy and sophisticated i1ndividuals like Mr. Seibel.
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Now, Seibel's attorneys argue that he's already been
treated more harshly than other Americans with overseas UBS
accounts. He's paid civil penalties of perjury more than
$675,000, far in excess, they argue, of any offshore voluntary
disclosure program, and this Court appreciates that.

While he's paild a heavy financial penalty, to leave it
at that really just reduces the risk of getting caught to a
calculable cost of doing business, c¢civil penalties and
attorneys' fees.

Now, Mr. Seibel's attorneys argue at length that his
family will suffer terrible and devastating consequences --
those are their words -- 1f they're forced to live without him.
That may well be true, but it's true of many families. He's
the primary breadwinner for his family and cares for his ailing
mother and elderly grandmother who live with him and have no
other family members.

He submits nearly 50 letters from family, friends,
employees, business assoclates, and attorneys. Those letters
are touching, and there's no doubt that he's devoted to his
mother and grandmother, that he's adored by his wife, whom he
married two weeks before pleading guilty, and that he treats
his stepdaughter as his child. There's also no doubt that he's
generous and caring to his employees and treats them like
family.

Now, the parties' submissions, both the government's
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and the defendant's, are filled with some hyperbole.
Mr. Seibel's attorneys characterize their client as a
"voungster" and accuse the government of ageilsm.

While Seibel may have been only 23 when he traveled
with his mother to Switzerland, he was clever beyond his years.
He had a marketing degree from NYU. The following year, he
started his own licensing business, R Square Global, and began
negotliating agreements with some of the trendiliest restaurants
in New York.

The point I'm making 1s that he may be young, but he's
no youngster. He's a sophisticated businessman.

Seibel's counsel and the government also spar over
whether a sentence of imprisonment here would create a
disparity in sentencing. The defendant argues that the
majority of UBS clients received noncustodial sentences.

The government counters that 6 of the 11 defendants
Seibel's counsel points to received downward departures for
substantial assistance, and another one had a guldeline range
of 0 to 6 months.

The other 4, the government points, out had an average
age of 78.5 years. In any event, that is really academic.
Their circumstances are different, and each defendant needs to
be individually assessed under the 3553(a) factors.

Certainly general deterrence 1s an important
consideration 1in a tax fraud case. There's also the need for
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specific deterrence. Mr. Seibel has a long and bright future
ahead of him. As he advances 1in business, 1t's critical that
he understand that unlawful actions have consequences beyond a
checkbook.

However, a variance from the guldelines 1s entirely
appropriate in this case. I find that a guideline sentence
here would be unjust. Mr. Seibel was 23 at the time the
numbered account was established. He clearly has strong family
ties and responsibilities, he has no criminal history, and he's
acknowledged responsibility for the crime.

Moreover, the circumstances surroundiling Selbel's
application under the wvoluntary disclosure program, about which
much was instilled in the submissions and here today, suggests
that his conduct 1s partly attributable to the actions of his
mother and his mother's lawyer.

Seibel's mother did not qualify for the program
because she was already under investigation by the IRS. The
government's own submission established that on the last day of
the program period, Selbel's mother's attorney drafted the
false submission and emalled 1t to Seilbel to print out and mail
that same day.

While this Court cannot delwve into Mr. Seibel's mind,
the circumstances suggest to me that this submission was not
entirely of his own making. Mr. Seibel's lawyers characterize
him as having been "fortunate to lead a middle class life."
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That's surely an understatement.

Mr. Seibel had a privileged upbringing. He grew up 1in
the same luxury apartment house on Central Park South that he
currently lives 1in, attended private schools, and had virtually
every opportunity available to him.

His lawyers acknowledge that he never "wanted or
needed a foreign bank account" and "certainly was not
interested or motivated by the relatively modest tax savings”
that the account provided.

Whatever the motivation for getting involved in this
scheme and, more importantly, for continuing in the scheme for
as long as he did, whether simply to please his mother or
something else, the fact is that it continued for years, and he
made a whole series of corrupt and misguided decisions to
perpetuate 1it. Now he has to live with the consequences of
that.

The government's suggestion that a guideline sentence
1s appropriate here 1is a wooden and reflexive one because there
are a number of 1ssues 1n this case.

It's agalinst that backdrop that I am prepared to
impose sentence on the defendant, and I'd ask him to stand at
this time.

As I've tried to make clear to you, I don't understand
how you got involved and how you allowed 1t to continue.
Perhaps 1t was Jjust out of love for your mother. But the fact
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is that you knew very well what you were dolng was wrong.

The fact that you're a wealthy and successful
businessman should not excuse you from a custodial sentence.
This was not a momentary aberration, but I belilieve that a very
short custodilial sentence 1s appropriate 1n this case so that
the lesson 1s remembered 1n the long career that you will have
ahead of you.

It's my judgment that you be sentenced to a term of
one month of imprisonment to be followed by a year of
supervised release subject to the followling conditions:

First, six months of home detention; second, 300 hours
of community service. I want the community service to be 1n
food preparation or in a food kitchen, something in which you
can bring the skills that you have to bear for those who have
never had access to the kinds of opportunities that you've had.

I'm also going to impose all the standard conditions
of supervised release and that you provide your probation
officer with access to any requested financial information.

I will enter an order of restitution 1n the amount of
$53,686, although I take it from Mr. Fink's remarks that
restitution has been paid in an amount higher than that.

MR. FINK: That 1s correct, your Honor.

THE COURT: ©So is there any need for a further order
of restitution?

MR. FINK: No, your Honor.
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MS. MOREY: I think you need to impose the order —-- I
don't believe there needs to be another specific separate
order, but I do believe there needs to be part of the --

THE COURT: I will provide within the judgment for
restitution —--

Ms. MOREY: Yes, your Honor.

THE COURT: -- in the amount of $53,686. I'm
confident that Mr. Fink will be able to file a satisfaction of
that payment with the clerk's office.

I'm also imposing the mandatory special assessment of
$100. I'm imposing a fine of $15,000 on the defendant. This
constitutes the sentence of this Court.

I advise you that to the extent you have not
previously walved your right to appeal, you have the right to
appeal. I advise you further that 1f you cannot afford
counsel, counsel will be provided to you free of cost.

Mr. Fink and his firm have done a superb job in
representing you 1n this case, and I'm confident that he'll
advise you further with respect to your appellate rights.

You may be seated.

MR. FINK: Would your Honor consider the one month to
be served at home, home imprisonment? That way he'd be with
his mother.

THE COURT: DNo. I specifically am imposing one month
of imprisonment and then home detention.
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MR. FINK: Would your Honor consider that he not
surrender until his mother dies, which will not be long~?

THE COURT: You know, you stood up here before, and
you argued that he's had this hanging over his head for a long
time. I think it's about time that he put this matter behind
him.

I'm prepared to arrange for a surrender date, and you
can pick a date so long as 1t's not more than 75 or 90 days
from now.

MR. FINK: Thank you, your Honor.

THE COURT: I would think that you'd want to wait to
see where he will be designated.

MR. FINK: Would your Honor suggest Otisville?

THE COQURT: I will. In his case, I will.,.

MR. FINK: Thank you, your Honor.

THE COURT: I will suggest Otisville.

MR. FINK: Could he self-surrender?

THE COURT: I will allow him to self-surrender.

MR. FINK: Thank you, your Honor.

THE COURT: On the question of timing, Mr. Fink, do
you want to confer with your client as to when he wishes to
self-surrender?

MR. FINK: Yes.

(Pause)

MR. FINK: As long as your Honor will permit. I think
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you said 75 to 90 days. Then 90 days.

THE COURT: He'll surrender to a facility to be
designated by the Bureau of Prisons by November 29.

MR. FINK: Yes, your Honor.

THE COURT: Just, once again, to be clear, this 1s an
offense that it can't Just be disposed of like a business debt
as a cost of doing business.

It's important that a message be sent to all those who
have enjoyed the kinds of success that Mr. Seibel has enjoyed
and who have the kind of assets that he has, that they
understand that the risks are far higher than just a financilal
penalty. The risk 1s one to their liberty.

I think that the defendant will get this point, and
I'm confident that I'm never golng to read about him beilng
charged in some other criminal enterprise.

Anything further?

MS. MOREY: Not from the government, your Honor.

THE COURT: Anything further, Mr. Fink?

MR. FINK: No, your Honor.

THE COURT: All right. This matter 1s concluded.

MS. MOREY: Thank you.

MR. FINK: Thank you.

(Adjourned)
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